Pecyn Dogfennau

Mark James LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,

P N
anor Sir GAr B

= o Chief Executive,
Carmarthenshlrg Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
O N County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP
“nty Cow™®

DYDD MERCHER, 6 MEDI 2017

AT: HOLL AELODAU’R PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW | FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O'R
PWYLLGOR SAFONAU A GYNHELIR YN CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL,
CARMARTHEN AM 10.00 AM, DYDD GWENER, 15FED MEDI, 2017 ER
MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD
YNGHLWM

Mark James

PRIF WEITHREDWR

0 AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA
Swyddog Democrataidd: Kevin Thomas
Ffon (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224027
Ffacs: (01267) 224911
E-bost: kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: ADO016-001
e Sir Gar R EICH cYNeorarleinamdani

www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
Uy Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

AELODAETH: 9 AELOD

Aelodau Annibynnol (5)

1. Mrs. Mary Dodd

2. Mr. M. Andre Morgan Is-Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor
3. Mr. Alun Williams

4. Lle-Gwag

5. Lle-Gwag

Aelod Pwyllgor Cymunedol (1)

1. Lle-Gwag

Aelodau Etholedig y Cyngor Sir (3)

1. Y Cynghorydd Susan M. Allen

2. Y Cynghorydd B.A. Louvain Roberts
3. Y Cynghorydd Gareth B. Thomas

o Sir o hfc EICHCYNGORarleinamdani
o Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire L
¢ 4  YOURCOUNciLdoitonline
nty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



10.
11.

12.

13.

AGENDA

YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB
DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.
PENODI CADEIRYDD AC IS-GADEIRYDD

LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y
PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR Y:-

4.1 1AF MEHEFIN, 2017

4.2 9FED MEHEFIN, 2017

ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU
CYHOEDDUS CYMRU 2016/2017

COFLYFR COD YMDDYGIAD

HYFFORDDIANT YNGHYLCH Y COD YMDDYGIAD AR GYFER
CYNGHORWYR SIR

HYFFORDDIANT YNGHYLCH Y COD YMDDYGIAD AR GYFER
CYNGHORWYR TREF A CHYMUNED

PAPUR GWYN LLYWODRAETH CYMRU AR DDIWYGIO
LLYWODRAETH LEOL

CWYNION A CHANMOLIAETH
CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD G SQUIRES

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN'Y CYNGHORWYR GARETH
THOMAS, JEAN LEWIS, KEN HOWELL, TYSSUL EVANS,
MANSEL CHARLES, EIRWYN WILLIAMS AC ANN DAVIES

UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG, BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN
FATER BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) DEDDF
LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972

o Sir Ga R EICHCYNGORarleinamdani
o Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

9-10
11-18
19 -142

143 - 182

183 - 186

187 - 192

193 - 262

263 - 292
293 - 300

301 - 312

Carmarthenshire L
¢ %  YOURCoUNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow© www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 3

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU
15fed MEDI, 2017

PENODI CADEIRYDD AC IS-GADEIRYDD

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Bod y pwyllgor yn penodi Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd o blith yr aelodau annibynnol sydd wedi
dangos diddordeb yn y swyddi.

Y rhesymau:
Rhaid dewis Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor o blith yr aelodau annibynnol o'r Pwyllgor .

Argymbhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y Cyng E
Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Y Prif Weithredwr
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: | Swyddi:

Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r | Rhifau ffon:

Gyfraith

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Rheolwr Dros Dro y
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol

01267 224018

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk.

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

P
onsor Sir Gar 3 www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
2 YOuR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q, ===\
oy g
Uty Con®®

Tudalen 5



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

ELECTION OF CHAIR OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Following the resignation of Mr Downward, the committee is required to elect a new
Chair from amongst those independent co-opted members of the committee that have
expressed an interest.

All members of the committee will be entitled to participate in the vote should the role
of Chair be contested.

In the event that the current vice-chair of the committee is elected as chair, it will also
be necessary to elect a new vice-chair.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 6



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this

report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones

Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance
& Disorder

and

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE

ICT Risk Staffing Physical
Management | Implications Assets
Issues

NONE NONE NONE NONE

CONSULTATIONS

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Head of Administration and Law

1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

»,

Q, ===\
oy g
Uty Con®®

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 7



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Legal file DPSC-154 | Legal Services, County Hall
- - .
onor Sir Gar EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cowt® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 8



Eitem Rhif 4.1

PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

Dydd lau, 1 Mehefin 2017
YN BRESENNOL: Mr. C.A. Downward (Cadeirydd)

Aelodau Annibynnol:
M. Dodd, M.A. Morgan a A. Williams

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith/ Swyddog Monitro
R. Edgecombe, Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Ystafell Bwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin - 10.00 -
10.15 am

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr S.M. Allen a
B.A.L. Roberts.
Bu i'r Cadeirydd longyfarch y Cynghorwyr S.M. Allen, B.A.L. Roberts a G.B.
Thomas ar gael eu hail-ethol a bu iddo longyfarch y Cynghorydd J. Gilasbey ar
gael ei hethol i'r Cyngor Sir ac estynnodd ei ddiolch iddi am ei gwaith ar y Pwyligor
yn gynrychiolydd cymunedol.

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch buddiannau personol.

3. CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD SIR E. DOLE

Bu i'r Pwyllgor ystyried cais gan y Cynghorydd Sir E. Dole, a oedd wedi ei benodi'n
arweinydd y Cyngor ar 20 Mai 2017, am ollyngiad i benodi'r Cynghorydd L. Evans,
sy'n chwaer-yng-nghyfraith iddo, yn Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol gan ei fod am
iddi ymgymryd a rél yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Dai, sef swydd sydd a
chyflog uwch yn hytrach na chyflog sylfaenol. Rhoddwyd gollyngiad i'r Cynghorydd
Dole benodir Cynghorydd Evans i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn y rél hon o dan y
Weinyddiaeth flaenorol a bu'r Cynghorydd Evans yn gwasanaethu'n flaenorol, er
2012, fel llefarydd yr wrthblaid ar Dai ar 6l iddi gael ei phenodi i'r r6l honno gan
arweinydd yr wrthblaid ar y pryd hwnnw, y Cynghorydd Hughes-Griffiths. Hefyd,
bu'r Cynghorydd Evans yn flaenorol yn dal swydd gyflogedig Cadeirydd Pwyllgor
Craffu ar Ol iddi gael ei henwebu ir r6l honno gan y cyngor llawn. Yn dilyn
trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ganiatau gollyngiad i'r Cynghorydd E.
Dole, o dan Reoliad 2(d) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau
Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) 2001, i'w alluogi i benodi'r Cynghorydd L. Evans yn
Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol os oedd yn ystyried ei bod yn briodol gwneud
hynny.

CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
> Your counciLdoitonline Tudalen 9
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q 222 ”y
Ol'l)[y CO\“\O



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 4.2

PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

Dydd Gwener, 9 Mehefin 2017
YN BRESENNOL: C.A. Downward (Cadeirydd)

Aelodau Annibynnol:
M. Dodd, M.A. Morgan ac A. Williams

Y Cynghorwyr:
S.M. Allen, B.A.L. Roberts a G.B. Thomas

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
S. Murphy, Uwch-gyfreithiwr
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Y Siambr, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin - 10.00 am - 10.30 am

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB
Ni chafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant personol.

3. COFNODION - 17EG MAWRTH 2017
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 17
Mawrth 2017, gan eu bod yn gywir.

4, ADOLYGU'R POLISI CORFFORAETHOL YNGHYLCH DATGELU CAMARFER
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried adroddiad ynghylch yr adolygiad blynyddol o'r Polisi
Corfforaethol ynghylch Datgelu Camarfer, gyda golwg ar gynnwys gwybodaeth
berthnasol am hynny yn adroddiad blynyddol y Cadeirydd i'r Cyngor. Nodwyd bod
y Cyngor wedi parhau i gymryd camau i gynyddu ymwybyddiaeth staff ynghylch y
polisi a sicrhau bod rheolwyr wedi cael eu hyfforddi'n llawn i adnabod cwynion
datgelu camarfer a rhoi sylw iddynt yn briodol. Roedd y Polisi Corfforaethol
ynghylch Datgelu Camarfer wedi cael ei ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu newidiadau
sefydliadol ac adborth o'r sesiwn briffio aelodau etholedig a gynhaliwyd yn
gynharach yn y flwyddyn.

PENDERFYNWYD derbyn yr adroddiad a chymeradwyo'r polisi diwygiedig.

5. COFLYFR COD YMDDYGIAD
Bu'r Pwyligor yn ystyried rhifyn diweddaraf Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau
Cyhoeddus Cymru o'r 'Coflyfr C6d Ymddygiad' a oedd yn cynnwys crynodebau o'r
13 ymchwiliad o dan y Céd a oedd yn ymwneud ag aelodau o'r Cyngor Sir a
Chynghorau Cymuned, a oedd wedi dod i ben yn ystod y chwarter blaenorol.

PENDERFYNWYD nodi'r adroddiad ond ceisio eglurhad pellach ynghylch y 5
achos a gyfeiriwyd at y Pwyllgor Safonau yn 2016/17 a chanfyddiad Panel
Dyfarnu Cymru.

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
> Your counciLdoitonline Tudalen 11
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q 222 ”y
Ol'l)[y CO\“\O



6. CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD G. HOWELLS

Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i'r cais gan y Cynghorydd Gerald Howells, a oedd
yn aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Llansteffan a Llanybri, ac a oedd yn gofyn am
ganiatau gollyngiad yn unol & darpariaethau Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau
(Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) i siarad a phleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor
Cymuned Llansteffan a Llanybri mewn perthynas & materion yn ymwneud ag
Ysgol Gynradd Llansteffan, Eglwys y Plwyf, Llansteffan a Chwmni Buddiannau
Cymunedol Llongau Fferi Bae Caerfyrddin.

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedi'i wneud oherwydd bod gan y Cynghorydd
Howells fuddiant personol yn y materion hyn yn rhinwedd paragraff 10(2)(ix)(aa)
or Cod Ymddygiad mewn perthynas &'r ysgol, paragraff 10(2)(ix)(ee) mewn
perthynas ag Eglwys y Plwyf a pharagraff 10(2)(ix)(bb) mewn perthynas & Chwmni
Buddiannau Cymunedol Llongau Fferi Bae Caerfyrddin i'r graddau:

(1) Bod yr ysgol yn gorff sy'n arfer swyddogaethau cyhoeddus a'i fod, fel
Cadeirydd y Llywodraethwyr, yn dal swydd reoli gyffredinol. Ni chafodd y
Cynghorydd Howells ei benodi i'w swydd bresennol fel llywodraethwr ysgol
gan ei Gyngor Cymuned;

(2) Dylid ystyried yr eglwys yn gymdeithas breifat y mae ef, fel Warden yr
Eglwys, yn aelod ohoni;

3) Mae'n Gyfarwyddwr y Cwmni.

Hefyd yr oedd buddiannau y Cynghorydd Howells yn rhagfarnol gan y byddai'n
rhesymol i aelod o'r cyhoedd oedd yn gwybod y ffeithiau perthnasol ystyried bod y
buddiannau mor arwyddocaol fel y byddent yn debygol o ddylanwadu ar farn y
Cynghorydd ynghylch budd y cyhoedd.

Gan hynny, roedd y Cynghorydd Howells wedi gofyn am ollyngiad o dan reoliad 2
(d) a (f) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) 2001.

Roedd y Cynghorydd Howells eisoes wedi cael gollyngiad i siarad, ond nid i
bleidleisio mewn perthynas & materion (1) a (2) uchod ym mis Mehefin 2016 ac
roedd y gollyngiad hwnnw wedi dod i ben ym mis Mai 2017.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL

6.1 ganiatau gollyngiad o dan Reoliadau 2(d) a (f) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau
Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) 2001 i'r Cynghorydd Gerald
Howells SIARAD A CHYFLWYNO SYLWADAU YSGRIFENEDIG OND NID
PLEIDLEISIO, yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Llansteffan a
Llanybri mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth ynghylch Ysgol Gynradd
Llansteffan, Eglwys y Plwyf, Llansteffan, a Chwmni Buddiannau
Cymunedol Llongau Fferi Bae Caerfyrddin, a bod y gollyngiad yn ddilys
tan ddiwedd ei gyfnod gwasanaethu presennol;

6.2 dweud wrth y Cynghorydd Howells am roi gwybod i'r Swyddog Monitro
ynghylch unrhyw newid perthnasol o ran ei Gyfarwyddiaeth o Gwmni

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
c f”/rrtﬁ"' thr www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
armartnensnire . .
Tudalen 12 ¢ YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Buddiannau Cymunedol Llongau Fferi Bae Caerfyrddin.

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD I. R. LLEWELYN

Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor ei fod, yn y cyfarfod ar 9 Medi 2016 (gweler cofnod 9), wedi
caniatau gollyngiad it Cynghorydd I.R. Llewellyn, a oedd yn aelod o Gyngor
Cymuned Llandybie, tan ddiwedd y cyfnod etholiadol sy'n dod i ben ym mis Mai
2017, i siarad ond nid i bleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd y Cyngor Cymuned mewn
perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth ynghylch trosglwyddo asedau'r Cyngor Sir i'r
Cyngor Cymuned.

Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Pwyllgor, yn dilyn yr uchod, fod cais wedi'i gyflwyno gan y
Cynghorydd Llewellyn yn ceisio gollyngiad i siarad a phleidleisio yng
nghyfarfodydd y Cyngor Cymuned mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth
ynghylch trosglwyddo asedau'r Cyngor Sir i'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth it cais gan y Cynghorydd Llewellyn, a oedd yn
aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, ac a oedd yn gofyn am ganiatau gollyngiad
yn unol a darpariaethau Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatdu Gollyngiadau)
(Cymru) i siarad a phleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Llandybie
mewn perthynas a'r bwriad i drosglwyddo Asedau'r Cyngor Sir it Cyngor
Cymuned.

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedi'i wneud oherwydd bod gan y Cynghorydd
Llewellyn fuddiant personol yn y mater yn rhinwedd paragraff 10(2)(ii)) o'r Cod
Ymddygiad gan fod y mater yn ymwneud &'i gyflogwr, neu'n debygol o effeithio ar
ei gyflogwr, sef Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin.

Hefyd yr oedd buddiant y Cynghorydd Llewellyn yn rhagfarnol gan y byddai'n
rhesymol i aelod o'r cyhoedd oedd yn gwybod vy ffeithiau perthnasol ystyried bod y
buddiant mor arwyddocaol fel ei fod yn debygol o ddylanwadu ar farn y
cynghorydd ynghylch budd y cyhoedd.

Gan hynny, roedd y Cynghorydd Llewellyn wedi gofyn am ollyngiad o dan reoliad
2 (d) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) ar y salil
na fyddai ei gyfranogiad mewn unrhyw drafodaeth yng nghyfarfodydd y Cyngor
Cymuned yn niweidio hyder y cyhoedd.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ganiatdu gollyngiad dan Reoliad 2(d) o
Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatdu Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) i'r
Cynghorydd I.R. Llewellyn SIARAD OND NID | BLEIDLEISIO yng
nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Llandybie mewn perthynas ag unrhyw
drafodaeth ynghylch trosglwyddo asedau'r Cyngor Sir i Gyngor Cymuned
Llandybie, a bod y Gollyngiad yn ddilys tan ddiwedd ei gyfnod gwasanaethu
presennol.

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD COUNCILLOR W.R. A. DAVIES
Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor ei fod, yn y cyfarfod ar 9 Medi 2016 (gweler cofnod 10), wedi
caniatau gollyngiad i'r Cynghorydd W.R.A. Davies, a oedd yn aelod o Gyngor
Cymuned Llandybie, tan fis Mai 2017, siarad ond nid i bleidleisio yng
nghyfarfodydd y Cyngor Cymuned mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth
ynghylch trosglwyddo cyfleusterau tennis o'r Cyngor Sir i'r Cyngor Cymuned.

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
> Your counciLdoitonline Tudalen 13
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q 222 ”y
Ol'l)[y CO\“\O



Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Pwyllgor, yn dilyn yr uchod, fod cais wedi'i gyflwyno gan y
Cynghorydd Davies yn ceisio gollyngiad i siarad ond nid i bleidleisio yng
nghyfarfodydd y Cyngor Cymuned mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth
ynghylch trosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor Sir i'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i'r cais gan y Cynghorydd W.R.A Davies, a oedd
yn aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, ac a oedd yn gofyn am ganiatau
gollyngiad yn unol & darpariaethau Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau
Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) i siarad a phleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned
Llandybie mewn perthynas a'r bwriad i drosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor
Siri'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedi'i wneud oherwydd bod gan y Cynghorydd
Davies fuddiant personol yn y mater yn rhinwedd paragraff 10(2)(a)(ix)(ee) o'r Céd
Ymddygiad gan ei fod yn Ysgrifennydd ac yn Drysorydd Clwb Tennis Llandybie.

Hefyd yr oedd buddiant y Cynghorydd Davies yn rhagfarnol gan y byddai'n
rhesymol i aelod o'r cyhoedd oedd yn gwybod vy ffeithiau perthnasol ystyried bod y
buddiant mor arwyddocaol fel ei fod yn debygol o ddylanwadu ar farn y
cynghorydd ynghylch budd y cyhoedd.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ganiatau gollyngiad o dan Reoliadau
2(d)(f) a (h) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatdu Gollyngiadau)
(Cymru) i'r Cynghorydd W.R.A Davies SIARAD OND NID | BLEIDLEISIO yng
nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Llandybie mewn perthynas ag unrhyw
drafodaeth ynghylch trosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor Sir i
Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, a bod y Gollyngiad yn ddilys tan ddiwedd y
cyfnod etholiadol presennol.

9. CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD E. W. NICHOLAS
Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor ei fod, yn y cyfarfod ar 9 Medi 2016 (gweler cofnod 11), wedi
caniatau gollyngiad, tan fis Mai 2017, i'r Cynghorydd E.W. Nicholas, a oedd yn
aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, siarad ond nid i bleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd
y Cyngor Cymuned mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth ynghylch trosglwyddo
cyfleusterau tennis o'r Cyngor Sir i'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Pwyllgor, yn dilyn yr uchod, fod cais wedi'i gyflwyno gan vy
Cynghorydd Nicholas yn ceisio gollyngiad i siarad ond nid i bleidleisio yng
nghyfarfodydd y Cyngor Cymuned mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth
ynghylch trosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor Sir i'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i'r cais gan y Cynghorydd E.W. Nicholas, a oedd
yn aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, ac a oedd yn gofyn am ganiatau
gollyngiad yn unol & darpariaethau Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau
Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) i siarad a phleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned
Llandybie mewn perthynas a'r bwriad i drosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor
Siri'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedi'i wneud oherwydd bod gan y Cynghorydd
Nicholas fuddiant personol yn y mater yn rhinwedd paragraff 10(2)(a)(ix)(ee) o'r

o € )i EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
c f”/rrtﬁ"' thr www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
armarcnensnire - -
Tudalen 14 ¢ YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



10.

Cbd Ymddygiad gan ei fod yn Gadeirydd Clwb Tennis Llandybie.

Hefyd yr oedd buddiant y Cynghorydd Nicholas yn rhagfarnol gan y byddai'n
rhesymol i aelod o'r cyhoedd oedd yn gwybod y ffeithiau perthnasol ystyried bod y
buddiant mor arwyddocaol fel ei fod yn debygol o ddylanwadu ar farn y
cynghorydd ynghylch budd y cyhoedd.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ganiatau gollyngiad o dan Reoliadau
2(d)(f) a (h) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau)
(Cymru) i'r Cynghorydd E.W. Nicholas SIARAD OND NID | BLEIDLEISIO yng
nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Llandybie mewn perthynas ag unrhyw
drafodaeth ynghylch trosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor Sir i
Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, a bod y Gollyngiad yn ddilys tan ddiwedd y
cyfnod etholiadol presennol.

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD B. REES

Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor ei fod, yn y cyfarfod ar 9 Medi 2016 (gweler cofnod 12), wedi
caniatau gollyngiad, tan fis Mai 2017, i'r Cynghorydd B. Rees, a oedd yn aelod o
Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, siarad ond nid i bleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd y
Cyngor Cymuned mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth ynghylch trosglwyddo
cyfleusterau tennis o'r Cyngor Sir i'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Pwyllgor, yn dilyn yr uchod, fod cais wedi'i gyflwyno gan y
Cynghorydd Rees yn ceisio gollyngiad i siarad ond nid i bleidleisio yng
nghyfarfodydd y Cyngor Cymuned mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth
ynghylch trosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor Sir i'r Cyngor Cymuned.

Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i'r cais gan y Cynghorydd B. Rees, a oedd yn
aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, ac a oedd yn gofyn am ganiatau gollyngiad
yn unol & darpariaethau Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau)
(Cymru) i siarad a phleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Llandybie
mewn perthynas a'r bwriad i drosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor Sir i'r
Cyngor Cymuned.

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedi'i wneud oherwydd bod gan y Cynghorydd
Rees fuddiant personol yn y mater yn rhinwedd paragraff 10(2)(a)(ix)(ee) o'r Céd
Ymddygiad gan ei fod yn Llywydd Clwb Bowlio Llandybie.

Hefyd yr oedd buddiant y Cynghorydd Rees yn rhagfarnol gan y byddai'n rhesymol
i aelod o'r cyhoedd oedd yn gwybod y ffeithiau perthnasol ystyried bod y buddiant
mor arwyddocaol fel ei fod yn debygol o ddylanwadu ar farn y cynghorydd
ynghylch budd y cyhoedd.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ganiatau gollyngiad o dan Reoliadau
2(d)(f) a (h) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau)
(Cymru) i'r Cynghorydd B. Rees SIARAD OND NID | BLEIDLEISIO yng
nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Llandybie mewn perthynas ag unrhyw
drafodaeth ynghylch trosglwyddo cyfleusterau bowlio o'r Cyngor Sir i
Gyngor Cymuned Llandybie, a bod y Gollyngiad yn ddilys tan ddiwedd y

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

G, ==\ .
Uy Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

YOUR counciLdoitonline Tudalen 15



cyfnod etholiadol presennol.

11. CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD PHILIP NIGEL THOMPSON
Rhoddodd y Pwyligor ystyriaeth i gais gan y Cynghorydd Phillip Nigel Thompson o
Gyngor Tref Cydweli am ollyngiad o dan ddarpariaethau Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau
Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) fel y gallai siarad a chyflwyno sylwadau
ysgrifenedig yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Tref Cydweli mewn perthynas a'r canlynol:

1) Ymwneud y Cynghorydd Thompson gyda Chwmni Buddiannau Cymunedol
Ynghyd (y mae'n gyfarwyddwr ohono);

2) Ymwneud y Cynghorydd Thompson gyda Hwb Cymunedol Cydweli yn
rhinwedd ei aelodaeth o'r Pwyllgor Rheoli.

3) Clwb Cinio Cydweli (a oedd yn cael ei gynnal ar y cyd gan y mudiadau
uchod).

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedii wneud ar sail debyg i'r cais a
ganiatawyd yn y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 13 lonawr 2017 [gweler cofnod 5]
oherwydd bod gan y Cynghorydd Thompson fuddiant personol yn y materion yn
rhinwedd y paragraffau canlynol o'r Céd Ymddygiad:-

1) 10(2)(a)(ix)(bb) gan fod y mater yn ymwneud a busnes y mae'n dal swydd reoli
gyffredinol ynddo, neu'n debygol o effeithio ar y busnes hwnnw;

2) 10(2)(a)(ix)(ee) gan fod y mater yn ymwneud a chymdeithas breifat y mae'n
dal swydd reoli gyffredinol ynddi, neu'n debygol o effeithio ar y gymdeithas
honno.

Roedd buddiant y Cynghorydd Thompson hefyd yn rhagfarnol gan y byddai aelod
o'r cyhoedd, o wybod yr holl ffeithiau, yn ystyried yn rhesymol fod y buddiant
hwnnw mor arwyddocaol fel ei fod yn amharu ar farn y Cynghorydd ynghylch budd
y cyhoedd.

Gan hynny, roedd y Cynghorydd Thompson wedi gofyn am ollyngiad o dan
Reoliad 2 (d)(f)(g) a (h) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatdu Gollyngiadau)
(Cymru) 2001.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ganiatau gollyngiad o dan Reoliadau
2(d)(f)(g) a (h) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau)
(Cymru) i'r Cynghorydd Philip Nigel Thompson SIARAD OND NID |
GYFLWYNO SYLWADAU YSGRIFENEDIG yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Tref
Cydweli mewn perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaeth ynghylch Cwmni
Buddiannau Cymunedol Ynghyd, Hwb Cymunedol Cydweli a Chlwb Cinio
Cydweli, a bod y Gollyngiad yn ddilys tan ddiwedd y cyfnod etholiadol
presennol.

12. CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN CYNGHORWYR O GYNGOR CYMUNED GORS-
LAS

Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried y cais oedd wedi'i gyflwyno gan Glerc Cyngor Cymuned

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
c f”/rrtﬁ"' thr www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
armartnensnire . .
Tudalen 16 ¢ YOUR couNciL doitonline
“nty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



13.

Gors-las ar ran y cynghorwyr canlynol, a oedd yn aelodau o Gyngor Cymuned
Gors-las, am ollyngiad o dan ddarpariaethau Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau
(Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) 2001 fel y gallent siarad a phleidleisio yng
nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Gors-las ynghylch eu cysylltiad &'r pedair ysgol
yn yr ardal sef:-

Ysgol Maes y Gwendraeth — Y Cynghorydd A.V. Owen;
Ysgol Cefneithin — Y Cynghorydd S.D. Martin;

Ysgol Dre-fach - Y Cynghorwyr D. Price a N. Lewis;
Ysgol Gors-las — Y Cynghorydd J. Price.

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedi'i gyflwyno am fod y pum cynghorydd yn
aelodau o gyrff llywodraethu yr ysgolion uchod, neu wedi mynegi dymuniad i fod
yn aelodau, ond nad oeddynt wedi'u penodi gan y Cyngor Cymuned, a bod
ganddynt felly fuddiant personol mewn materion ynghylch y cyfryw ysgolion o dan
10(2)(a)(ix)(ee) o'r Cod, neu y byddai ganddynt fuddiant personol. Hefyd yr oedd y
buddiant hwnnw'n rhagfarnol gan y byddai'n rhesymol i aelod o'r cyhoedd oedd yn
gwybod y ffeithiau perthnasol ystyried bod y buddiant mor arwyddocaol fel ei fod
yn debygol o ddylanwadu ar farn y Cynghorwyr ynghylch budd y cyhoedd.

Gan fod y buddiant yn barhaus yr oedd yr ymgeiswyr wedi gofyn, petai'r Pwyllgor
yn bwriadu caniatau'r gollyngiad, it gollyngiad fod am weddill eu cyfnod
gwasanaethu presennol, hynny yw tan yr etholiadau llywodraeth leol ym mis Mai
2022.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ganiatau gollyngiad o dan Reoliad 2(d) o
Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) 2001 i'r
Cynghorwyr A.V. Owen, S.D. Martin, D. Price, N. Lewis a J. Price SIARAD A
PHLEIDLEISIO yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Gors-las ynghylch
unrhyw drafodaethau am eu swyddogaeth fel llywodraethwyr Ysgol Maes y
Gwendraeth, Ysgol Gynradd Cefneithin, Ysgol Gynradd Dre-fach, ac Ysgol
Gynradd Gors-las tan ddiwedd y cyfnod etholiadol presennol.

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN CYNGHORWYR O GYNGOR CYMUNED GORS-
LAS

Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried y cais oedd wedi'i gyflwyno gan Glerc Cyngor Cymuned
Gors-las, ar ran y cynghorwyr canlynol, am ollyngiad o dan ddarpariaethau
Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) 2001 fel y
gallent siarad a phleidleisio yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Gors-las
ynghylch materion oedd yn ymwneud &r 3 pharc hamdden yr oedd y Cyngor
Cymuned yn berchen arnynt ac yn eu cynnal a'u cadw.

Parc Cefneithin — Y Cynghorwyr Simon Martin, Terry Jones, David Mervyn Evans,
Brian Kirby a Darren Price;

Parc Dre-fach — Y Cynghorwyr Wyn Edwards, Clive Green, Anthony Rees, Tina
Jukes a Nia Lewis;

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

G, ==\ .
Uy Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

YOUR counciLdoitonline Tudalen 17



Parc Gors-las — Y Cynghorwyr Aled Owen a Janice Price.

Dywedwyd bod y cais am ollyngiad wedi'i gyflwyno am fod gan y 12 cynghorydd
fuddiant personol yn y materion hyn o dan baragraff 10(2)(ix)(ee) o'r Céd gan eu
bod yn aelodau o Bwyllgorau'r Cymdeithasau Lles lleol oedd yn gysylltiedig a
chynnal y parciau hynny. Nid oedd y Cynghorwyr wedi'u penodi i'w rolau ar y
pwyllgorau hynny gan y Cyngor Cymuned.

Roedd buddiant y Cynghorwyr yn rhagfarnol gan y byddai'n rhesymol i aelod o'r
cyhoedd oedd yn gwybod y ffeithiau perthnasol ystyried bod y buddiant mor
arwyddocaol fel ei fod yn debygol o ddylanwadu ar farn y cynghorwyr ynghylch
budd y cyhoedd. Er enghraifft, pan mae'r Cyngor Cymuned yn penderfynu a
ddylid gwario arian ar y parciau neu beidio, byddai'n rhesymol i aelod o'r cyhoedd
ddod i'r casgliad y byddai'r ffaith bod cynghorydd yn aelod o Bwyligor y
Gymdeithas Les berthnasol yn dylanwadu ar ei farn/barn ynghylch a ddylid
gwario'r arian ar y parc neu ar ryw fater arall nad oes gan y Gymdeithas gysylltiad
ag ef. Nodwyd nad oedd gan y cynghorwyr fuddiant ariannol uniongyrchol yn eu
gwahanol Gymdeithasau Lles.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl

PENDERFYNWYD caniatau gollyngiad tan ddiwedd y cyfnod etholiadol
presennol i'r 12 aelod uchod o Gyngor Cymuned Gors-las SIARAD A
PHLEIDLEISIO yng nghyfarfodydd Cyngor Cymuned Gors-las mewn
perthynas ag unrhyw drafodaethau ynghylch y tri pharc hamdden y mae'r
Cyngor Cymuned yn berchen arnynt ac yn eu cynnal a'u cadw o dan Reoliad
2(a) o Reoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru) 2001.

CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD
o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
c f”/grrtﬁ"' thr www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
armarchensnire - -
Tudalen 18 o e YOUR couNciL doitonline
“nty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Eitem Rhif 5

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU
15FED MEDI 2017

ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS
CYMRU 2016/2017

Yr Argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Ystyried yr adroddiad

Rhesymau:
Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad hwn yn rhan o faes gorchwyl y Pwyllgor.

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth
Y Prif Weithredwr

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: | Swyddi:

Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r | Rhifau ffon:
) Gyfraith
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 01267 224018
Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau .
Robert Edgecombe Cyfreithiol Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 19



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES ANNUAL REPORT
2016/2017

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) has published his annual report and
accounts for 2016/2017. A copy of the report is attached.

The key points from the report are as follows;

1. A 13% increase in maladministration enquiries and complaints across Wales

2. A 14% reduction in code of conduct complaints across Wales

3. A 19% increase in the number of code complaints investigated

4. A 38% increase in the number of code investigations which uncovered evidence of a
breach of the code

Of the case where evidence of a breach was uncovered, six cases were referred either to the
relevant local authority standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales, the same
figure as in the previous year.

The bulk of code complaints related to the promotion of equality and respect (37%) and
declaration of interests (23%)

Looking specifically at Carmarthenshire County Council a total of 47 maladministration
complaints were concluded during the year of which 40 were either out of jurisdiction,
premature or closed after initial consideration. A further 5 were resolved voluntarily, one
upheld and one not upheld.

The Ombudsman also concluded 1 code complaint against a County Councillor, which was
closed after initial consideration

The Ombudsman also dealt with code complaints against Town and Community Councillors
from Cwmamman Town Council (1), Kidwelly Town Council (1), Llanelli Rural Council (6),
Llanelli Town Council (1) and Llangennech Community Council (2). None of these cases
involved any disciplinary action being taken against the Councillors concerned

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 20



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signhed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“ty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 21



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signhed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 22



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Legal file DPSC-154 | Legal Services, County Hall
- - .
onor Sir Gar EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cowt® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 23



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

2016/17

Innovation
Improvement
<N\ Influence

- Z

Tudalen 25




Tudalen 26



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Annual Report & Accounts

of

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
for the year ended
31 March 2017

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales
under paragraphs 14,16 and 17 of Schedule 1
of the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005

Tudalen 27



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Tudalen 28



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Contents

(=T (o]0 ¢ =T Tol TN U] o To] o A 1
OMbUdSMaNn’s REVIEW Of the YEAT.....iiiiiiiti ettt sttt et et s st 2
Y Yo R YR [ TR g = L oY S Lo T 8
The COMPIAINTS SEIVICE wuviiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e re e e et e e e e bt e e e e abeeeeesnbaeeeessteeeesaseeeeennseneesnnsens 12
OVErall CaseWOrk STAtiSTICS.cuuerrerieeteert ettt sttt e b et sae e st e e b e sreesree s 14
(01T o) N To £ PP TOUUTPPTRTOPSRIO 24
Annual SUStaINAaDIlity REPOIT cooieiiiiiieee ettt e e e e e e e et e e e e e s e e ansraeeeeeeeeennrnaeees 27
F N YTV I Lo TV E= L) 4V 2 U] oo o T 29
KEY FINANCIAI DATA tvveiieiiiieieiiiiie et ee ettt e e ettt e e e rte e e e st e e e et e e e sabteeeesnsteeeesnsaeeeensssaeeeansaeeesansseeeesnssns 35

JiYolwlo V191 1o 1111 4V 2 (=T Lo o FR TR 37
(@fe]gele] = (=N CTo )V T g aF-Ta Lol aY=] ool o 38
Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities. ... 42
ANNUAl GOVErNaNCe STAateMENT 2016/ 17 c.uueeeeeeee ettt e et e e e e e e e ee e e e e e e sas e eeereeesesesaeeeees 43
REMUNEIATION REPOIM . ciiiiiiiieiitiitrtitritttttetetereterere e ettt 54
National Assembly for Wales Accountability and Audit REPOIt......ueeeecciieeeeciiee e 58
Reconciliation of Net Resource to Net Cash ReqUIr€MENT ...cuiici it e e 59

The Certificate and Report of the Auditor General for Wales to the National Assembly for Wales..60

Financial StatemMeNTS........oocuiiiriire et e 63
Statement of Comprehensive Net EXPenditure.. ..ot e e e narree e e 64
Statement of FINANCial POSITION ..c...iiiiiiieieesee e sttt 65
StAteMENT OF CaSh FIOWS c.eeeiiiiieeee ettt sttt st s st e e e nnee s 66
Statement of Changes in TaxXPayers” EQUILY wuvee ittt s ettt e e e e eenrere e e e e e e e annraeeeea e s 67
Notes to the FINaNCial STatemMENTS ....uii ittt e s e e sar e sne e e saneas 68
PENSIONS DISCIOSUIES .eeenieiiiieeteeieeeiee ettt ettt ettt st st st s e e bt e bt e sbe e sae e st e e bt e b e e b e e sbeesanesanesaneeane 82

ANNEXES ..eeiiiiiiiiiriiiiitie ittt ar e s s s e s e e e s e s e s e s e e e s e baneeesena 93
F N QYoo A U o] [ ol = o e 1Y 2SR 94
Complaints closed — Statistical Breakdown by outcomes by public body ......ccccceeeciieeiiiiieeiiiiieeens 94
Annex B: Code of Conduct Complaints closed — Statistical Breakdown by outcomes by local
F= T8N o] Y2 ESPRR 105
Annex C: Complaints ADOUL PSOW SEIVICE ....uuuiiiiieeeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeciitteeeeeeeeeessstereeseessessnssessessasssnsnnns 109

Tudalen 29



Tudalen 30



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Performance
Report

Tudalen 31



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Ombudsman’s Review of the Year

It is with great pleasure that | present the first combined annual report and accounts for the
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) for the year ended 31 March 2017, which was
my second full year in office. In accordance with paragraph 18 of Schedule 1 to the Act, |
have personal responsibility for the overall organisation, management and staffing of the
office and for its procedures in relation to financial and other matters.

Progress in Innovation, Improvement and Influence: A Review of 2016/17

| am delighted to be able to report substantial progress in the activities of the office over the
past year, with specific reference to our three year strategic themes of innovation,
improvement and influence, which have led to substantial increases in outcomes for
complainants and, | hope, positive impacts on public services.

In terms of /nnovation the office made further progress on compliance, ensuring that
recommendations for improvement are implemented and that we ensure that the learning
from complaints is acted upon. We also continued to make progress with changes emerging
from our paperless project.

This year | established Sounding Boards for the first time, holding meetings with voluntary
sector representatives and the health sector, providing a “safe space” where bodies in
jurisdiction, or key representative bodies, can challenge me about what we do and how we
doit.

One area of particular improvement was the improvement on timescales — with a move

towards complainant centred timescales and | am pleased that the Complaints Advice Team
succeeded in ensuring that targets are met from when we receive complaints, rather than

Tudalen 32 -



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

when we have gathered sufficient information in order to investigate. The establishment of
the Code Advisory Group has meant the proactive oversight of code of conduct complaints,
and a seven per cent reduction in cases taking longer than six months. | was delighted that
the introduction of the Public Interest Test has reduced the number of low-level complaints
being considered by my office and that in the very rare occasions where we do refer more
serious matters to the Adjudication Panel for Wales, it has found breaches of the code.

A new Quality Assurance Framework was developed with staff so that as well as coping with
ever increasing quantities of work, the qualitative aspects of what we do are also supported.
There have also been a range of good practice seminars for staff and a Staff Risk Workshop to

help support a new approach to Risk Management. We also appointed ICRS in order to
undertake independent review of complaints about our services and also undertook a review
of our information security.

The improvement function has started well. All Improvement Officers have developed specific
action plans for the relevant bodies in jurisdiction this has led to a number of specific
improvements in their complaint handling cultures:

Ceredigion County Council accounted for 28 per cent of upheld local government closed
complaints in 2014/15; in 2016/17 this figure was 17 per cent.

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board saw a substantial reduction of more than
25 per cent of their complaints received.

There was a small reduction in overall complaints closed against Aneurin Bevan University
Health Board, which included a 14 per cent reduction in upheld complaints.

Whilst both Hywel Dda and Cwm Taf University Health Boards saw a significant increase in
their complaint volumes, | am pleased to see that there was no corresponding increase in
upheld complaints for Hywel Dda. In fact, there was a 50 per cent reduction. However, Cwm
Taf saw a slight increase in upheld reports.

Unfortunately complaint volumes, upheld complaints, and public interest reports all
increased for Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board in 2016/17.

Given the variance in Health Board performance in complaint handling my office will be
organising a special seminar for health complaints and best practice.

: Tudalen 33



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

| was delighted that my first thematic report on Out of Hours services led to a peer review by
the Welsh Government to be implemented throughout 2017. | produced a further thematic
report Ending Groundhog Day, Lessons from Poor Complaint Handling in March 2017.

In 2016/17 there was a further increase in the use of Voluntary Settlement, an increase of
some 26% per cent on the previous year. However, whilst this can lead to speedier resolution
for complainants and cheaper processes for public services, it is important that Early
Resolution is not seen as some form of easy escape for bodies in my jurisdiction. In May 2016
| issued a Section 22 report against Hywel Dda University Health Board when it failed to
comply with an Early Resolution agreement. | expect the same level of compliance to an Early
Resolution as with a recommendation emanating from an investigation.

| published six public interest reports in the course of the year, three of which were in
relation to Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, a number of health reports also related
to Out of Hours services.

In order to meet the needs of the people of Wales, my office can only function effectively
through getting the best out of the talented people in its employ. During 2016/17 further
developments were made to a new performance review and development planning system
with further investment in training including HR support, Management Training and
Coaching. We conducted a Staff Survey which led to an action plan which is being
implemented. We have also looked at the structure of the organisation with further changes
in relation to policy, communications, data, HR, information and ICT to ensure that we are fit
for the future. In terms of staffing costs of particular note was the confirmation by the
Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Pension Fund that the long standing pension deficit has been
eradicated with the office intending to return £292,000 of the cash allocated in the 2017/18
Estimates. No further deficit payments are required.

In terms of our influence and collaboration with other bodies inside and outside Wales
2016/17 was a busy year. We implemented joint Internal Audit arrangements with the Older
People and the Children’s Commissioners and also implemented payroll arrangements for the
Future Generations Commissioner. | was also delighted to participate in Wales Audit Office
events on complaints in both North and South Wales. Memoranda of Understanding were
signed with a number of Commissioners and Healthcare Inspectorate Wales.

| also met with NHS Chief Executives, Medical Directors and the NHS Confederation ensuring
robust but constructive engagement and discussion.

During the course of the year | had positive appearances at the Equality, Local Government

and Communities Committee and the Finance Committee of the National Assembly for Wales
(NAW).

Tudalen 34 ‘



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

| was delighted to be elected to both the European and World Boards of the International
Ombudsman Institute (I0l) and to continue as vice Chair of the Ombudsman Association
(OA). PSOW staff have also played a key part in broader networks, with Chris Vinestock, the
Chief Operating Officer, contributing to work on Service Standards across the sector, Katrin
Shaw, Assistant Director of Investigations, chairing the Ombudsman Association Legal
Interest Group and Marilyn Morgan providing PA services on a part time basis to the OA.
One Investigation Manager, Claire Beynon, provided direct training to the new Northern
Ireland Public Service Ombudsman and Jenny Strinati and Susan Hudson collaborated with
other jurisdictions on Equality and Human Rights issues.

In October 2016 the |0l and OA held a seminar at Aberystwyth University which looked at the
differing jurisdictions emerging in Scotland, Ireland and Northern Ireland in the context of
draft PSOW legislation and the event was addressed by Rafael Ribo, Catalan Ombudsman and
President of the European 101, as well as Simon Thomas AM Chair of the NAW Finance
Committee.

During 2016/17 we submitted a Regulatory Impact Assessment to the Finance Committee
and | am very hopeful that the legislation will now be taken forward in 2017/18.

Finally, 2016/17 was a year of not just positive activity, but of positive outcomes. Despite the
challenge of increasing workloads the number of complainants who received a positive

outcome from my office, either through voluntary settlement or an upheld complaint,
increased by 16 per cent!

Ay

Nick Bennett
Ombudsman

5 Tudalen 35



SNAPSHOT OF THE YEAR 2016/17

April

Published our new
three-year strategic plan
‘Innovation, Influence and
Improvement’

Our annual report
highlighted a 4% rise in
Welsh NHS complaints

Issued the Annual Letters
to Health Boards and
County Councils

Tudalen 36

May

Issued the first ever special
report against a Health
Board under Section 22

of the PSOW Act

S0 09 090000 P 00PN 0BBeORSORERNBRIIRLOEIEBSIOROERIRNSIREBOTS

August

Exhibited at the National
Eisteddfod in Abergavenny

Issued updated Code
of Conduct Guidance
for county and town/
community councillors

4 Ed

A

A A
AREA,

June

Held our first meeting

of the Service User
Sounding Board comprising
representatives from
voluntary and advocacy
groups to feedback on
accessibility and of our
service and processes

Chaired the Academi
Wales summer school

Participated in Wales Audit
Office complaints seminars

Took steps to improve
transparency and openness
by publishing our first open
data spreadsheet — a list
of all complaints closed by
the office during 201516




October

Held a joint seminar with
The WISERD-Centre for
Welsh Politics and Society,
Aberystwyth University, the
Ombudsman Association
and the International
Ombudsman Institute to
discuss the Ombudsman

in a decade of public
policy change

Elected as a Director of
International Ombudsman
Institute

[ ]
L]
.
L]
.
.
L]
L]
L]
[ ]
L]
.
L]
.
.
.
.

|
J

Held awareness session on
the role of the Ombudsman
for Assembly Members

SNAPSHOT OF THE YEAR 2016/17

November

Held our first Health Sector
Sounding Board meeting

Issued three public interest
reports against Health

Boards
@

|

February

Launched the pilot of a
tool to help investigators
consider human rights in
Ombudsman casework

/

December

Welsh Government
committed to conducting
a peer review of out of
hours care following a
recommendation in our
thematic report last year

Issued a public interest report
against Bridgend County
Borough Council for not
monitoring a looked-after
child’s savings while he was

in care, eventually resulting

in him receiving the full
amount back

Raised awareness of our
work at the first Wales
Council for Voluntary
Action’s annual conference

Published the second
thematic report in 12
months - ‘Ending Groundhog
Day: Lessons from Poor
Complaint Handling’

which looked at failings

in investigations by public
bodies in Wales

Tudalen 37



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Who we are, what we do

Role of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

As Ombudsman, | have two specific roles. The first is to consider complaints about public
services providers in Wales; the second role is to consider complaints that members of local
authorities have broken the Code of Conduct. | am independent of all government bodies
and the service that | provide is free of charge.

Complaints about public service providers

Under the PSOW Act 2005, | consider complaints about bodies which, generally, are those
that provide public services where responsibility for their provision has been devolved to
Wales. The types of bodies | can look into include:

e J|ocal government (both county and community councils)

e the National Health Service (including GPs and dentists)

e registered social landlords (housing associations) and

e the Welsh Government, together with its sponsored bodies.

| am also able to consider complaints about privately arranged or funded social care and
palliative care services.

When considering complaints, | look to see whether people have been treated unfairly or
inconsiderately, or have received a bad service through some fault on the part of the service
provider. Attention will also be given to whether the service provider has acted in
accordance with the law and its own policies. If a complaint is upheld | will recommend
appropriate redress. The main approach taken when recommending redress is, where
possible, to put the complainant (or the person who has suffered the injustice) back in the
position they would have been in if the problem had not occurred. Furthermore, if from the
investigation | see evidence of a systemic weakness, then recommendations will be made
with the aim of reducing the likelihood of others being similarly affected in future.

Code of Conduct Complaints

Under the provisions of Part lll of the Local Government Act 2000 and also relevant Orders
made by the National Assembly for Wales under that Act, | consider complaints that

Tudalen 38 ¢



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

members of local authorities have breached their authority’s Code of Conduct. | can consider
complaints about the behaviour of members of:

e county and county borough councils
e community councils

e fire authorities

e national park authorities and

e police and crime panels.

All these authorities have a code of conduct which sets out in detail how members must
follow recognised principles of behaviour in public life.

If a county councillor wishes to make a complaint about another county councillor within
their own authority, then | expect them to first of all make their complaint to that authority’s
Monitoring Officer, as it may be possible to resolve the matter locally without my
involvement.

Management Team

The Management Team has continued to support and advise me in relation to strategic
direction as well as the operational, day to day, running of the office.

Shared Services and Collaboration

My Finance, ICT and HR staff, who enable the delivery of our objectives, already work
collaboratively when appropriate, sharing professional knowledge through a network
comprising Welsh Government sponsored bodies plus Commissioners and they will continue
to do so.

We continue to look to identify opportunities to work towards any pooled arrangement for
sharing knowledge, skills and experience to achieve cost savings.

Improvement Officers

Last year | introduced into the roles of a number of investigation staff in my office, the
additional role of ‘improvement officer’. Whilst the main element of their role remains the
investigation of complaints, their improvement role will include stakeholder engagement
with certain bodies in jurisdiction as well as subject leads for areas which continue to affect
quality public services.

o Tudalen 39



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

| am pleased to say that | do not consider Cardiff & Vale University Health Board a priority for
improvement engagement with my office any longer and so it no longer has an improvement
officer linked to it. However, an improvement officer has been assigned to one new body for
the coming year.

So for 2017/18 those organisations assigned an Improvement Officer are:

e Abertawe Bro Morganwg University Health Board
e Aneurin Bevan University Health Board

e Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board

e Ceredigion County Council

e Cwm Taf University Health Board

e Hywel Dda University Health Board

e Powys County Council

In engaging with these bodies we hope to see ongoing improvements in complaints handling,
learning and putting things right, along with the governance arrangements necessary for
continuous improvement. We will regularly review our data, and the insights we gain from
these arrangements, to identify areas forimprovements. | will in due course consider whether
it would be beneficial to extend this approach to other bodies.

Subject leads are in place for:

e health

e housing

e |ocal government planning services

e social services

e school appeals

e the code of conduct for local authority members
e our service provision on the Welsh language, and
e recommendations and compliance

Subject leads are specifically tasked with identifying trends from casework across the office,

leading on thematic reports, and monitoring legislative and other developments affecting the
subject areas.

Tudalen 40 10



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

11

Tudalen 41



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

The Complaints Service

THE YEAR IN SUMMARY

6,804 !

ENQUIRIES and
COMPLAINTS
UP 13% on 2015/16

> 4512 = 520

Enquiries Complaints
up 21%

.
L N N R RN
-
.
-

236

Public Body Code of Conduct
Complaints Complaints
uP 3% DOWN 14%

Top 5 subjects Top 5 subjects
38% Health 37% Promation of equality & respect
13% Housing 23% Disclosure & registration
9% Social Services of interests
8% Planning 18% Integrity
7% Complaints Handling 14% Objectivity & propriety
4% Accountability & openness

Complaints Caseload 2016/17
2,704 B (Including 412 cases brought forward from 2015/16)

Tudalen 42 ©



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Complaints Caseload 2016/17
2,704 (Including 412 cases brought forward from 2015./16)

CLOSED

2,362

COMPLAINTS
UP 2% on 2015/16

— Public Body — Codeof Conduct
— Complaints — — Complaints
= = DOWN 6%

[EET RN RER

44 detailed 44 investigated

consideration/ ‘ 5.0
investigation | °\
UP 4% J

2 Evidence of Breach
‘UP 38%

f these: Of these:
55% Health 45% Promotion of equality & respect
10% Complaint Handling 32% Disclosure & registration of interests
% Housing % Integrity
% Social Services 9% Objectivity and propriety
Planning 5% Accountability and Openness

9
[#]
7

- Tudalen 43



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Overall Casework Statistics

The number of enquiries and complaints (public body complaints, and complaints about the
conduct of members of local authorities) totalled 6804 during 2016/17 which is a 13%
increase on the position for 2015/16. Over the past six years, overall casework has increased
by 75%.

Total Enquiries and Complaints received by year

7,000
6,000 _ 276
5,000 291

4,000 412

3,000
2,000

1,000

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

B Enquiries ® Public Body Complaints Code of Conduct Complaints

Enquiries

The office dealt with 4,512 enquiries during 2016/17 compared with 3,731 the previous year.
This is a 21% increase. Despite this increase we have continued to maintain a fast and
efficient service at the frontline.

We set ourselves the target of answering our main line reception calls within 30 seconds in

95% of cases. The Team performed impressively in this regard, answering 98% of calls within
this timescale.

Tudalen 44 &



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

An enquiry is a contact made by a potential complainant asking about the service provided,
which does not, result in a formal complaint being made to me at that time. At this point in
our service we will advise people how to make a complaint to me or, where the matter is
outside my jurisdiction, direct the enquirer to the appropriate organisation able to help
them. Where appropriate, the Complaints Advice Team will also seek to resolve a problem at
enquiry stage without taking the matter forward to the stage of a formal complaint.

Public Body Complaints
During 2016/17 we received 2,056 complaints about public sector providers —a 3% increase

on the previous financial year. This brings public body complaints to a similar level as 2014/15
when my office received 2,065 complaints.

Sectoral breakdown of complaints received

County councils have always generated the most complaints to this office due to the wide
range of services they provide. However, for the second year running there has been a
decrease in the number of complaints — down from 906 during 2015/16 to 881 in 2016/17.
Once again there has been an increase in complaints about NHS bodies. These include
complaints about Local Health Boards, NHS trusts, GPs and dentists. There was a 8% increase
in complaints about health bodies compared with 2015/16 (863 compared with 798)
Complaints about NHS Bodies have increased by 8% from 798 in 2015/16 to 863 in 2016/17.
A large proportion of that increase is due to a rise in complaints received about Betsi

Cadwaladr University Health Board of 23%.

The chart on page 16 shows the distribution of the complaints received by sector.

1 Tudalen 45



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Complaints received by public body sector

1000
906
900 | 881 863
800
700 u2016/17 52015/16
600
500
400
300
200
100
3 1 3 0 1 1
0
o 3 Q
& &
s &«
Ooé\ e Q‘?‘ (’0
s°© &* 5
N R\
& <
\3(\ S
9 Q
\© S
S &
N g
e% ?}v
&
N
$’b
Complaints received about public bodies by COMPLAINTS ABOUT PUBLIC BODIES BY SUBJECT
subject

As consistent with previous years, health was
the major part of our office caseload, up from @ 38%
36% last year to 38% this year. This was
followed by housing (13%) and planning and
building control (8%). Social Services
remained at a similar proportion as the
previous financial year at 9%.

T 4@%’ 1.3%

SOCIAL SERVICES %‘? 9%

PLANNING . o
ANDBUILDING | BE I
CONTROL . 8/°

»
e el 77

Tudalen 46 10



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Complaints received about public bodies by subject

M Agriculture and Fisheries

M Benefits and Taxation

0% 2%

B Community Facilities.

Recreation and Leisure
B Complaints Handling

B Education

M Environment and

Environmental Health
M Health

1% H Housing

i Independent care

H Planning and Building

Control
B Roads and Transport

W Social Services

 Various Other

Outcomes of complaints considered

We closed 2,114 complaints about public service providers during the past year compared
with 2,050 in 2015/16 (an increase of 3%). A summary of the outcomes is set out in the table
below and detailed breakdowns of the outcomes by public service provider can be found at
Annex A.

| am pleased that staff have managed to achieve this level of case closures during the year,
together with the fact that the number of cases on hand at the end of 2016/17 stood at 345,
compared with 412 at the end of 2015/16 (which is a reduction of 13%). This is well within
what | consider to be a reasonable caseload for the office to have open at any one time.

v Tudalen 47



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Complaint about a Public Body 2016/17 2015/16
Closed after initial consideration 1570 1488
Complaint withdrawn 0 41
Complaint settled voluntarily 287 227
Investigation discontinued 16 19
Investigation: complaint not upheld 66 105
Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part 168 163
Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part — public 6 7
interest report

Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part — public 1 0
interest report (S22)

Total Outcomes — Complaints 2114 2050

Decision times
Time taken to tell the complainant if | will take up their complaint

We set ourselves a target to tell complainants whether or not | will take up their complaint.
This year we introduced new key performance indicators. Previously there was a blanket four
week target for all complaints, regardless of complexity. This has been changed to ensure the
focus is on measuring against the service user’s experience rather than the previous internal
focus.

The new decision times are as follows:

e Decision on whether complaint within jurisdiction/premature - within 3 weeks.

e Decision on whether to investigate, following detailed assessment - within 6 weeks.

e \Where decision to seek early resolution without need to investigate, resolution
achieved - within 9 weeks.

e Date sufficient information received (DSIR) from complainant to investigation start
date — within six weeks

Percentage
2016/17

Decision on whether complaint within 95%
jurisdiction/premature — within three weeks
Decision on whether or not to investigate, following 92%
detailed assessment - within six weeks.
Where decision to seek early resolution without 95%
need to investigate, resolution achieved — within
nine weeks
DSIR to Investigation start date — within six weeks 80%

Tudalen 48 1



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Investigation Decision Times

In 2016/17 we completed 98% of investigations within 12 months, against the 100% target
we set ourselves. There were seven investigations that went over 12 months. These cases
were complex and required further investigatory work, or where there were significant
challenges to draft findings by the complainant or public body. The chart below gives further

details on investigation timescales.

45%
40%
35%
30%

25%

19% 19%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

42%

<3 months 03 to 06 months 06 to 09 months 09 to 12 months 12 to 18 months

m2016/17 m2015/16

Code of Conduct Complaints

The number of code of conduct complaints
decreased by 14% compared with 2015/16
(236 in 2016/17 against 274). This is
encouraging considering historically, code
of conduct complaints increase in the period
before local elections.

19

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS RECEIVED

COMMUNITY COUNCIL

FIRE AUTHORITY

O Eah O

NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

2 4

POLICE & CRIME PANELS

TOTAL

236 274

Tudalen 49



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Nature of Code of Conduct complaints received

The majority of complaints received during 2016/17 related to matters of ‘promotion of
equality and respect” accounting for 37% of the complaints made to me. (this was 41% in
2015/16). Disclosure and registration of interests (23%) and Integrity (18%) were the next
largest areas of complaint which is consistent with the previous year.

1%

B Accountability and
openness

M Disclosure and
registration of interests

M Duty to uphold the law

M Integrity

B Objectivity and
propriety

W Promotion of equality
and respect

Summary of Code of Conduct complaint outcomes

Of the 248 Code of Conduct complaints closed in 2016/17, the majority (184) were closed
under the category ‘Closed after initial consideration.’

This includes decisions such as

e there was no ‘prima facie’ evidence of a breach of the Code
e the alleged breach was insufficiently serious to warrant an investigation (and unlikely
to attract a sanction)

With regard to code of conduct closed cases, a greater number were fully investigated this
year (34) compared to 2015/16 (27). Six cases were referred either to local authority’s
standards committee or to the Adjudication Panel for Wales in 2016/17, the same number as
the previous year. In these circumstances it is for these bodies to consider the evidence
found, together with any defence put forward by the member concerned. It is then for them
to determine whether a breach has occurred and, if so, what penalty, if any, should be
imposed.

20

Tudalen 50



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

A breakdown of the outcomes is below:

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS RECEIVED

TOTAL OUTCOMES ~ CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

CLOSED AFTER INITIAL CONSIDERATION
COMPLAINT WITHDRAWN

20 15

INVESTIGATION DISCONTINUED

10 10

INVESTIGATION COMPLETED: NO EVIDENCE OF BREACH

2 X mn

INVESTIGATION COMPLETED: NO ACTION NECESSARY

6 (% 10

INVESTIGATION COMPLE TED: REFER TO STANDARDS COMMITTEE

INVESTIGATION COMPLETED: REFER TO ADJUDICATION PANEL

1 3

A detailed breakdown of the outcome of Code of Conduct complaints investigated, by
authority, during 2016/17 is set out in the Annex.

21

Tudalen 51



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Decision times
Time taken to tell the complainant if | will take up their complaint

In respect of Code of Conduct complaints, 82% of complainants were informed within four
weeks of whether | would take up their complaint (from the date that sufficient information is
received). This is considerably lower than during 2015/16 where 91% were informed within
four weeks.

However, this is partially explained by the fact that a greater number of complaints this year
reached investigation. | consider that it is fairer for us to take into consideration what a
member has to say before taking a decision and this process can take some time. This is
because the commencement of a formal investigation against a member is a stressful and
serious matter for the member being complained about.

Further details on these decision timescales are shown below.

Code of Conduct time taken to tell the complainant if | will take up their complaint

30% 28%
26% 26%
25%

22%22%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%
Within 1 Within 2 Within 3 Within 4 Within 5 Within 6 Over 6
Week Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks

m2016/17 m2015/16

22

Tudalen 52



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Decision times for concluding Code of Conduct investigations

Comparing performance against 2015/16, a greater percentage of investigations were closed
within three months (34% compared to 22% in 2015/16.)

60%

49%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%
<3 months 03 to 06 months 06 to 09 months 09 to 12 months Within 18 months

m2016/17 m2015/16

- Tudalen 53



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Cases of Note

During 2016/17, | produced seven public interest reports, including one special report (see
below).

All but one of the investigations were health related and worryingly, three of the cases were
against the same hospital — Ysbyty Glan Clwyd run by Betsi Cadwaladr University Health
Board.

The six health cases included:

e A patient with a history of chronic renal failure who waited 12 hours to see a
consultant, and died a few hours later.

e A cancer patient who was left waiting 132 days to receive his first treatment.

e A patient at a South Wales hospital that died following a complete lack of medical staff

involvement in his care over a weekend.

| am pleased that in all health cases, apologies were made to the families affected by
shortcomings and recommendations were agreed to ensure the same mistakes are not
repeated, although this will only ever provide some comfort to the families affected.

Another high profile investigation surrounded the monitoring of a looked-after child’s savings
accounts by Bridgend County Borough Council while he was in their care. While public
interest reports from my office are anonymised, in this case, the complainant wished to speak
to the media publicly.

24

Tudalen 54



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Rob Johnson, 18, complained to my office that the Council had not managed his savings
properly and in accordance with its policy. He said that some of his savings were wrongly used
to pay for trips for which he should have received a special allowance.

My investigation found that the Council had failed to keep adequate records or retain

Mr Johnson’s saving books at the end of his fostering placement and it was unclear why his
savings were as low as they were. These failings, amongst others, amounted to
maladministration and my office calculated a figure for appropriate recompense for his
savings.

Initially Bridgend Council refused to pay the amount but at a later date did make the £3,310
payment in full.

Mr Johnson said he was “over the moon” with the outcome, adding:

“It just shows that making a complaint does make a difference.”
All our public interest reports are publicly accessible and can be found here.
| am pleased to say in all of the code of conduct cases my office has referred to either local
Standards Committees or the Adjudication Panel for Wales, the member has been found to
have breached the code when the matter has been heard. This vindicates my decisions to
investigate the complaints and refer them.
Thematic Reports
March 2017 saw the publication of the second thematic report in 12 months. ‘Ending
Groundhog Day: Lessons from Poor Complaint Handling’ comprises 18 cases from public
services across Wales where the service user had been let down by inadequate investigations

and a failure to take ownership of complaints.

Failings highlighted include the inappropriate involvement in the investigation of staff
complained about, as well as delayed and inaccurate responses.

My report calls for an end to the fear and blame culture that exists in some public bodies, and
a move towards seeing complaints as learning tools. | also identified improved data collection

as a means of identifying patterns of poor complaint handling and tackling bad practice.

If the new Ombudsman legislation is passed this year, it will allow the gathering and reporting
of consistent complaint data across Welsh public services.

Special Report

Last year, a special report, under Section 22 of the Act, was issued against Hywel Dda
University Health Board — the first time for a Health Board.

. Tudalen 55


http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/en/Investigations/Public%20Interest%20Reports.aspx

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Under the provisions of the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005, pursuant to
section 3, the Ombudsman is able to take any action he considers appropriate to resolve a
complaint as an alternative to investigating it. This can include agreeing with a relevant body
that it will take certain actions within a stipulated time. Where the Ombudsman is not
satisfied that the relevant body has carried out the actions it explicitly agreed to undertake
within the time specified he may issue a special report under s22(6) of the Act.

26

Tudalen 56



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Annual Sustainability Report

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales and his staff aim to reduce the impact of the office
on the environment and operate in a sustainable and responsible manner.

Our Building

We have one office in Pencoed, near Bridgend. We originally took up the lease for the ground
floor in 2005 and have, since then, expanded to occupy part of the first and second floors to
accommodate 58 staff and visitors in a largely open plan office space.

Electricity is the only energy supply used and this provides lighting and heating/cooling as well
as powering normal office equipment. The building is leased, which limits our ability to make
changes to the energy efficiency of the building. Consequently our efforts focus on reducing
material usage and waste.

Building Statistics

: Electricity usage
Building Constructed o. of fotal Usable2 Heating (Annual Av.
Floors Floor Area (ft?) Type
kWh)
1 Ffordd yr Hen 5004 3 16,460 Air Hahdl|ng 102,577
Gae Units

Accessibility
The offices have good transport links. The railway station at Pencoed (less than one mile

away) together with bus services to/from the site, provide public transport options for staff
and visitors. Our offices are also easily accessed by car from the M4 motorway.

Progress

Staff are encouraged to use public transport where suitable, for business meetings and
commuting. Showers and bicycle stands are provided at our offices.

Local suppliers are used where possible to help reduce carbon emissions.

In April 2016 the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales took its first steps to becoming a
paperless office. A year on substantial progress has been made. So far:

27

Tudalen 57



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

e Qur electronic case records are now the definitive case record, even where paper files

exist

e Enquiries and initial assessment stages of our work are conducted using electronic
documents only (emails, submissions via the internet and scanned documents)

e |etterhead details have been incorporated into electronic documents so that we do
not need to print onto letterhead paper.

e Where possible we email rather than send correspondence by post.

e Staff have been provided with enhanced software to make it easier to work with

electronic documents

e Bodies within the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction are asked for contact to be made
electronically where possible.

Following these changes throughout 2017/18 the PSOW should expect to see a reduction in

the amount of paper used and paper waste produced.

Waste

We recycle all waste paper confidentially and recycle general waste such as plastic, cardboard
and tins along with batteries and toner cartridges. We are continuing to remind staff to
minimise waste, particularly that sent to landfill.

We produce little food waste, but used coffee grounds and tea bags are offered to staff for

use in compost.

Current Waste Figures

Per week (average)

Per year (average)

(including food waste)

Confidential Waste 600 litres 31200 litres
Mixed Recycling 300 litres 15600 litres
SIESTEL TS 1100 litres 57200 litres

Total waste per year

104,000 litres

We will be working to reduce waste in 2017/18.

Tudalen 58

28




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Annual Equality Report

Under the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations
2011 laid down by the National Assembly for Wales, the Ombudsman is required to produce
an annual report in respect of equality matters. | do so here as part of my overall Annual
Report and Accounts for 2016/17.

Accessibility

As part of our complaint process, we do our very best to identify as early as possible any
individual requirements that may need to be met so that a service user can fully access our
services and, in particular, we ask people to tell us their preferred method of communication
with us.

We continue to develop strong links with third sector organisations which support our
service-users, using their expertise to advise on how we can make our services more
accessible.

Where we can we make reasonable adjustments to help people make and present their
complaint to us. Well established examples are: providing correspondence in Easy Read, a
dedicated pool of Welsh language speakers to deal with enquiries from the public in Welsh,
and the use of Language Line for interpretation where a complainant is not comfortable with
making their complaint in English or Welsh, obtaining expertise to assist us to understand the
particular requirements of complainants with certain conditions, such as Asperger’s
syndrome, and visiting complainants at their homes.

We produce key documents in alternative formats, such as CD/tape and Braille, and translate
these into the eight key ethnic minority languages used in Wales. Our website has continually
been upgraded, and now features an enhanced BrowseAloud service. Additionally, the
GoogleTranslate service has been embedded meaning that the PSOW website content pages
are automatically translated into any one of over 100 languages on selection, and the BSL
video and SignVideo service.

The Complaints Advice Team also continues to provide information on advocacy and advice

organisations to those people who may need assistance in making their complaint to me. This
information is also readily available on our website.

Equality Data Gathering / Monitoring — Service Users
We continued with our equality monitoring in respect of service users, which informs our

annual outreach strategy. The outcome of the monitoring during 2016/17 in respect of the
protected characteristic groups (as defined in the Equality Act) is set out below.

- Tudalen 59



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

In view of the nature of the work of this office, we would expect the composition of people
who complain to this office to, at the very least, mirror the national demographic position; in
fact, we would expect the proportion of complainants from groups who could be considered
to be at a disadvantage or vulnerable to exceed the national picture. In respect of each of the
guestions we asked, those who completed the form were given the opportunity to respond
‘Prefer not to say’. Nevertheless, from the results below, the PSOW is relatively satisfied that
in making comparisons with official data available (e.g. the Census 2011) the composition of
our service users meets or exceeds national demographics in the way we would expect.

It is particularly good to see that of those who responded, 5% identified themselves as having
a minority ethnic background, which is slightly higher than the demographic picture in Wales.

Age

Under 25 3%
25-34 12%
35-44 20%
45-54 23%
55-64 20%
65-74 11%
75 or over 5%
Prefer not to say / No response 6%
Disability

Yes 25%
No 65%
Prefer not to say/No response 10%

Health problem or disability limiting day-to-
day activities?

Yes, limited a lot 25%
Yes, limited a little 12%
No 51%
Prefer not to say/No response 12%
Gender reassignment

Yes 1%
No 61%
Prefer not to say/No response 38%
Religion or belief

No religion 38%
Christian (all denominations) 49%
Other religions 6%
Prefer not to say/No response 7%
Married or same-sex civil partnership

Yes 49%
No 40%
Prefer not to say/No response 11%

30

Tudalen 60



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Race/Ethnicity

White 88%
Other ethnic background 5%
Prefer not to say/No response 6.7%
Sex

Male 48%
Female 46%
Prefer not to say/ No response 6%
Sexual orientation

Heterosexual or straight 83%
Gay or Lesbhian 2%
Bisexual 1%
Other 0.5%
Prefer not to say/No response 13.5%

Customer Satisfaction

We have continued with our satisfaction survey practice in relation to customer satisfaction
for our first contact service. The table below gives details for 2016/17.

% of respondents answering either ‘strongly
agree’ or ‘agree’

It was easy to find out how to contact the Public 93%
Services Ombudsman for Wales

The service | have received has been helpful and | 88%
sensitive

Staff were able to understand my query / 90%
complaint

| was given a clear explanation of what would 91%

happen to my query / complaint

Complaints about the PSOW service can be found in Annex C.

Outreach

For 2016/17 we focused on children and young people in our outreach work. This included
liaising with colleagues at Children in Wales and the Children’s Commissioner for Wales to
produce a ‘how to complain’ leaflet aimed at children, as well as committing to exhibiting at

the Urdd Eisteddfod for the first time.

In order to learn from our colleagues in the third sector, we established a Sounding Board
comprising members of voluntary and advocacy organisations which support our service-
users. We wanted to listen to their feedback on our processes and service. We have held two
meetings of the board so far which have been a great success. As a result we established a
similar board for the health sector and are currently developing the membership for a third,

local government Sounding Board.

Tudalen 61




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

We also actively engaged with a range of third sector bodies including the British Deaf
Association, Stonewall, Care Forum Wales and various housing associations, as well as hosting
a stand at the Welsh Council for Voluntary Action’s annual conference.

Staff Equality Data Gathering/Monitoring

Our staff are asked annually to complete and return a monitoring form seeking information
in respect of each of the protected characteristics That disclosure is, of course, on a voluntary
basis. Most recent responses areset out below.

Age

The composition of staff ages is as follows:
25t034:21%
35to044:33%
45 to 54: 23%
55to 64:12%
Prefer not to say 12%

Gender

63 % of staff stated they were Female; 31% Male; 6% prefer not to say.
When asked if the gender staff identify with was the same as described at birth,
90% said yes, 2% said no, and 8% prefer not to say.

Disability

87% of staff said there were not disabled, 2% of staff said that they were a
disabled person (11% preferred not to say).However, when asked if their day-to-
day activities were limited because of a health problem or disability which had
lasted, or was expected to last, at least 12 months, 0% said that they were
limited a lot, 8% said they were limited a little, 81% said their day to day activities
were not limited (12% preferred not to say)

Nationality

In describing their nationality, 52 % said they were Welsh; 25% said British, 12 %
said they were English, 6% said ‘Other’ (6% preferred not to say)

Ethnic group

The ethnicity of staff is:

88% White (Welsh, English, Scottish, Northern Irish, British);
2% White/Irish

2% Black (African, Caribbean, or Black British/Caribbean

2% Asian or Asian British/Bangladeshi

(6% preferred not to say)

Language

When asked about the main language of their household, 69% of staff said this
was English; 16% said Welsh, and 4% said ‘Other’ (10% preferred not to say)

Tudalen 62

32




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Religion or Responses to the question asking staff about their religion were as follows:
Belief No religion: 43%;

Christian 36%;

Muslim 2%;

Other:2%

(17% preferred not to say)

Marriage/Civil 53% of staff stated they were married; 2% were in a civil partnership; 20% were
Partnership single; 4% replied Other (21% preferred not to say)

Sexual Responding on this, 81% said that they were Heterosexual or Straight, 2% said
Orientation Gay or Leshian (17% preferred not to say)

Total percentages may not add up to 100% due to rounding’
Staff Training

The majority of staff training is based upon job roles or applicable for all staff to attend, and
as such there are no equality considerations to report. All individually requested training by
staff has been approved, and as such there is no need to report on equality data differences
between approved and non-approved training requests.

Pay and Gender — data as at 31 March 2017

Under the specific duties we are required to set an equality objective for gender and pay; if
we do not do so, we must explain why. | currently do not have any specific objective in this
regard because females are very well represented at the higher pay scales within my office.
The position is kept under continual review and the equality objectives will be revised if
necessary. The table below shows the current position.

Pay (FTE) Male* Female*
Up to £20,000 0 4
£20,001 to £30,000 2 13
£30,001 to £40,000 2 5
£40,001 to £50,000 7 16
£50,001 to £60,000 4 3
£60,001 + 1 1
Subtotal 16 42
Total 58
*Headcount

In relation to the working patterns of the above, all staff work on a full time basis with
permanent contracts, with the exception of the following:

8 members of staff work part time (6 female, 2 male).

> Tudalen 63




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Recruitment

During the past year we have had 1 members of staff leave and 3 new employees were
recruited. Due to the low numbers involved, the equality data for the individuals appointed
has been reported as part of the all staff information above; it is not considered appropriate
to report separate equality information relating to these individuals due to the risk of
identification.

Two new members of staff were recruited via the ‘Jobcentre Universal Job Match’ scheme,
and consequently, apart from their data being included in the above figures, we do not have
any further equality data relating to other members of the Jobcentre scheme who were not
presented to the PSOW for selection.

Disciplinary / Grievance

Due to the small numbers of staff working in the office, and the small number of instances of
disciplinary / grievance, it is not considered appropriate to report on equality data for this
category due to the risk of identification of staff involved. | remain satisfied that there are no
identifiable issues in this area that would cause me concern.

Procurement

Our procurement policy now refers to the relevant equality requirements that we expect our
suppliers to have in place.

34

Tudalen 64



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Key Financial Data

Resource Funding: £4,090k Total Assets: £395k
Resource Expenditure: £4,047k Total Liabilities: £749k
Cash to be Repaid: £34k Net Liabilities: £354k

Resource Expenditure £000s (pages 72-73)

PSOW’s funding comes from the Welsh
Consolidated Fund (WCF). Each vyear the

estimated costs of running the Office have to be st
M Sta

submitted to the Finance Committee of the
National Assembly for Wales for consideration. ® Property

M Professional
fees

T

When agreed, funds are drawn down monthly
with any surpluses returned to the WCF during

the following Financial Year.
m Office

Resource expenditure was £4,047k compared to M Other

funding of £4,090k. The under-spend was mostly
attributable to changes in provisions and working

W Depreciation

= Comms

capital. Capitel

A cash under spend of £34k will be returned to
the WCF in 2017/18 as well as £5k income in
excess of budget allocation.

Assets and Liabilities £000s (pages 75-78, plus Pensions Disclosures pages 82-91)

Non-current assets consist of plant and
equipment £140k, intangibles such as software

197
158
£18k and pension fund surplus of £40k. J I 40
[ |

Current assets consist of receivables £163k and
cash £34k.

Fixed Current Pension

Liabilities are accounted for by payables (£205k) 205
and provisions for pensions and dilapidations
(£544K).

There is a net liability of (£354k).

544

> Tudalen 65



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Expenditure by Aims and Objectives (page 74)

Aim 1: To provide a complaints service that is of

the highest quality, proportionate and effective. 1%

Aim 2: To use the knowledge and insight
obtained from the complaints we consider to
improve complaint handling by public services
providers and to have an impact on improving

public service delivery and informing public B Complaints
policy. M Improve
Aim 3: To continue to evolve and grow as an  Evolve
office, specifically planning for implementation m Support

of the Ombudsman’s new powers should the
National Assembly for Wales create a new
Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act.

Aim 4: To be accountable for the service we
provide and the public money we spend.

Workload compared to Unit Cost
Trend (page 39)

8,000 £1,400
Over the period 2010/11 to 2017/18 workload
: : ) 7,000 £1,200
increased by over 140% whilst the unit cost
reduced by 60%.

6,000 £1,000
Enquiries +300%
Complaints: 5000 M £800

/

Code of Conduct -15%
Public Body +44%
4,000 - £600
3,000 / £400
decreased from £3.7m to £3.6m when adjusted
for inflation — a reduction of 3%. 2,000 _ £200

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

Over the same period resource expenditure

Workload === Unit Cost

Nick Bennett
Accounting Officer 12 July 2017

Tudalen 66



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Accountability

M

Tudalen 67



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Corporate Governance Report

Ombudsman’s Report

Background

Under the Government of Wales Act 2006 the office is financed through the Welsh
Consolidated Fund (WCF). Any unspent cash balances have to be repaid into the WCF no
later than four weeks after a certified copy of the accounts has been laid before the National
Assembly for Wales. This creates a further control in that there is a need to effectively
manage the budget on both a cash and a resource basis. The salary of the office holder of the
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales, and the related costs, are a direct charge on the WCF
and are administered through the National Assembly for Wales.

As at 31 March 2017, the Office comprised 58 staff based in Pencoed, Bridgend including the
Ombudsman, Chief Operating Officer, Assistant Director/Legal Adviser as well as investigation
and support staff.

The National Assembly for Wales provided cash of £4.3 million for the funding of the Office
although £34k of this is due to be returned to the WCF being the unused cash balance at the
year end. The sum of £34k is within the accepted year-end balance criteria of 3% funding. The
Office has achieved a level of spending in line with changes in the overall level of the Welsh
block which is especially noteworthy considering the upward demand for the services of the
Office.

Great strides have been made over recent years in improving efficiency in the way we
consider complaints. This has been essential in view of the ever-increasing caseload. The
table below shows that over the past seven years, the Office has seen an increase of over
140% in all contacts (that is, in enquiries, public body complaints and complaints about the
conduct of members of local authorities) whilst unit costs have reduced by 60% when
adjusted for CPl inflation. The past year has seen yet another increase in enquiries and
complaints of 13%. Despite this, we have still managed to exceed the majority of our
performance targets. We continued with our information technology upgrade programme
with a view to getting new technology to take some of the strain of the administrative tasks
associated with complaint handling.

38

Tudalen 68



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Workload compared to Unit Cost

8,000 £1,400
7,000 £1,200
6,000 £1,000

5,000 £800

4,000 £600

3,000 £400

2,000 £200

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

Workload | 2,829 3,883 4,987 5,392 5,766 5,999 6,804

=== Unit Cost | £1,302 £873 £736 £647 £622 £613 £526

> Tudalen 69



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Remuneration

Details of the pay and related costs of the Ombudsman and the Office are shown in the
Remuneration Report on page 54.

Pension Liabilities

The pension obligations to present and past employees are discharged through:
(a) the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS);
(b) the Local Government Pension Scheme administered through the Cardiff and
Vale of Glamorgan Pension Scheme (the Fund); and
(c) the pensions paid directly to former Commissioners or their dependants.

Further details are given in the Pensions Disclosures at page 82.
Corporate Governance

The office holder of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales is a Corporation Sole. In
addition, upon taking up my role as Ombudsman, | was appointed by the Treasury as the
Accounting Officer for the public funds with which the National Assembly entrusts me to
undertake my functions. The Advisory Panel, established during 2011/12, has continued to
meet on a regular basis over the past year. A review of its effectiveness conducted during
2015/16 concluded that the Panel added the additional scrutiny and support sought by the
Ombudsman. Further details are set out in the Annual Governance Statement.

Register of Interests

A register of interests is maintained for the Ombudsman, directors and members of the
Advisory Panel and Audit and Risk Assurance Committee.

Accounts Direction

Under the Accounts Direction issued by HM Treasury dated 21 December 2006, | was
required to prepare accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 in compliance with
the accounting principles and disclosure requirements of the edition of the Government
Financial Reporting Manual (the FReM) issued by HM Treasury which was in force for
2016/17.

40

Tudalen 70



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

The accounts have been prepared so as to:

(a) give a true and fair view of the state of affairs at 31 March 2017 and of the net
resource outturn, resources applied to objectives, recognised gains and losses
and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and

(b) provide disclosure of any material expenditure or income that has not been
applied for the purposes intended by the National Assembly for Wales or

material transactions that have not conformed to the authorities that govern
them.

Auditors

The Auditor General for Wales is the External Auditor of the accounts of the PSOW as laid
down in paragraph 17 of Schedule 1 to the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005. The
cost of the audit for 2016/17 was £20k compared with £20k in 2015/16.

So far as | am aware | have taken all the steps necessary to make the auditors aware of any
relevant audit information.

Nick Bennett
Accounting Officer 12 July 2017

41

Tudalen 71



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Statement of Accounting Officer’s
Responsibilities

Under the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005 as Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales, | am required to prepare for each financial year resource accounts detailing the
resources acquired, held or disposed of during the year and the use of resources by the Office
during the year in the form of and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The
accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the PSOW and its net resource outturn, resources applied to objectives, changes in
tax payer’s equity and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, as the Accounting Officer | am required to comply with the
requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to:

° observe the Accounts Direction issued by HM Treasury including the relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies
on a consistent basis;

° make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

° state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Government
Financial Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any
material departures in the financial statements; and

° prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

My relevant responsibilities as Accounting Officer include responsibility for the propriety and
regularity of the public finances for the PSOW, keeping proper records and safeguarding the
Office’s assets as set out in the Accounting Officer’'s memorandum issued by HM Treasury
that is published in “Managing Welsh Public Money”, and are in accordance with the Public
Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005.

42

Tudalen 72



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

Status of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

As laid down in Schedule 1 paragraph 2 of the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005
(the Act), the Ombudsman is a Corporation Sole holding office under Her Majesty and
discharges his function on behalf of the Crown. Schedule 1 paragraph 18 states that the
Ombudsman is the Accounting Officer for the Office of the Ombudsman.

Scope of Responsibility

In undertaking the role of Accounting Officer | ensure that the Office operates effectively and
to a high standard of probity. In addition, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system
of internal control that supports the achievement of the PSOW’s policies, aims and objectives
whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which | am personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in “Managing Welsh Public Money”.

| am independent of the National Assembly for Wales but am accountable to its Public
Accounts Committee for the use of resources made available to support my statutory
functions. In determining the level of resources available to the Office the PSOW’s budget
proposals are considered by the Finance Committee of the National Assembly for Wales in
accordance with the process laid down in the Act. My annual report is considered by the
Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee. For the first time | amproducing a
combined Annual Report and Accounts for consideration by both Committees.

| am required to include this statement with my annual report and accounts to explain how
the governance of my Office works and to ensure it meets the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code. To enable me to satisfy these requirements | have established appropriate
structures, systems and procedures that are comprehensive and provide me with evidence
that the governance arrangements are working as intended across the whole organisation
and its activities. Such arrangements include my Governance Framework, a comprehensive
internal control environment, effective internal and external audit scope and robust financial
management, risk planning and monitoring procedures.

- Tudalen 73



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Strategic Planning and Performance Monitoring

In considering the Strategic Plan for the next three years, 2016/17 to 2018/19, | have
established the following:

Vision: A public service culture that values complaints and learns from them to improve public
service delivery, and a

Mission: by considering complaints, to put things right for service users and contribute to
improved public service delivery and standards in public life.

Whilst individual teams within the Office are charged with implementing the actions
identified, the Management Team and the Advisory Panel monitor progress made against
targets and the outcomes achieved via quarterly reports. | was very pleased that all key
activities for 2016/17 had been delivered by the end of the financial year.

System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of my policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the Office of
the PSOW for the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of these
accounts, and accords with HM Treasury guidance. No significant areas of internal control
weaknesses have been identified from audit work and steps to improve controls further are
implemented promptly and monitored by the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee.

Corporate Governance arrangements
Governance arrangements include an Advisory Panel of external advisers supplemented by an

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee which is a sub-committee of the Panel. The respective
responsibilities are:

44

Tudalen 74



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Advisory Panel
(a) Role of the Panel

The Advisory Panel is a non-statutory forum whose main role is to provide support and advice
to the Ombudsman in providing leadership and good governance of the office of the PSOW.
The Advisory Panel also brings an external perspective to assist in the development of policy
and practice.

The Advisory Panel provides specific advice and support to the Ombudsman on:

e vision, values and purposes

e strategic direction and planning

e accountability to citizens for the public funds it receives and
e internal control and risk management arrangements

The Advisory Panel is an advisory only body to the Ombudsman, and does not make decisions
in its own right.

The Panel also assists the Ombudsman in establishing:

e governance arrangements, including Terms of Reference of any sub-committees
e the PSOW’s strategic direction, aims and objectives and targets

e key business policies

e key employment strategies and policies

and scrutinising and assuring:

e the Three Year Strategic Plan and the Annual Business Plan

e high level budget allocation

e the budget Estimates submission to the Finance Committee of the National Assembly
for Wales

e resource accounts (delegated to the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee); and

e capital investment/contracts (over £250k) (delegated to the Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee).

It also monitors and reviews:

e risk and internal control (delegated to the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee)
e operational performance and delivery
e financial performance

” Tudalen 75



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

o effectiveness of employment strategies and policies

e diversity and equal opportunities, particularly in relation to the Equality Act 2010
e external communications strategies and stakeholder relations and

e health and safety and business continuity.

Four meetings were held in July, September and December 2016 and March 2017.

(b) Membership

Membership comprises:

e the Ombudsman
e up to six external members (who offer specific skills and experience sought by the
Ombudsman and one of whom may be from another ombudsman office).

The Policy and Communications Manager acted as Secretary to the Panel; other Management
Team members as decided by the Ombudsman may be in attendance at the Panel’s meetings
but are not formally members of the PSOW Advisory Panel.

Attendance during 2016/17 was as follows:

Membership:

Nick Bennett — Ombudsman and Chair
Margaret Griffiths

Jonathan Morgan

William Richardson

Sharon Warnes

Jan Williams

John Williams

Al W]l A~ AP W W

46

Tudalen 76



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
(a) Terms of Reference

The Advisory Panel is responsible for agreeing the Terms of Reference of the Audit and Risk
Assurance Committee. The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee supports the Ombudsman by
reviewing the comprehensiveness and reliability of assurances on governance, risk
management, the control environment and the integrity of financial statements and the
annual report.

(b) Membership

The independence of the Committee continues to be enhanced. It is chaired by William
Richardson who, as the former Deputy Chief Executive at the office of the Parliamentary and
Health Service Ombudsman, brings considerable experience of operating governance,
financial and administrative systems within the context of an ombudsman scheme. Jonathan
Morgan, who served as an Assembly Member for 12 years, and is a former Chair of the
National Assembly Public Accounts Committee, became the newest member of both the
Advisory Panel and the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee in March 2016. The Ombudsman
is no longer a Member of the Committee, although he does attend and contribute to the
meetings.

(c) Training

Members of the Committee are invited to assess their training needs annually. During the
past year, to supplement the previous year’s induction programme for Advisory Panel and
Audit and Risk Assurance Committee members, additional training in relation to the work of
the Ombudsman’s office has taken place. This has taken the form of a presentation/
discussion at the end of each Advisory Panel meeting. Arrangements were also made for
Sharon Warnes and Jonathan Morgan to attend CIPFA’s Effective Audit Committee course
during 2016/17. Unfortunately, CIPFA cancelled the scheduled course. This will be re-booked
when the course is next run by CIPFA.

v Tudalen 77



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

(d) Meetings

The Committee sets for itself an annual work programme. There were four meetings of the
Committee during the year. At each meeting the Committee received a number of standing
agenda items. One of these covered Risk Management and included details of new risks and
any changes to the existing Risk Register (e.g. movement in the level of risk). When the annual
Internal Audit Plan is considered the full risk register is made available to the Committee to
ensure that the plan being proposed reflects the priorities within the register. At other
meetings, as a minimum, the Committee is presented with high and medium risks as a
method of ensuring that they are kept aware of key risks. The key risks monitored during the
year were the Office’s reputation and in the current economic climate the appropriate level
of resources to enable the Ombudsman to meet his statutory obligations. The overall level of
risk facing the Office has remained relatively low and generally static. Attendance was as
follows:

Membership:

William Richardson (Chair)

Jonathan Morgan

Sharon Warnes

R RS I ST I

John Williams

Other standing reports submitted to the Committee related to declarations of any fraud or
losses, including any data losses, identified.

During the year the Committee also received reports on any appropriate matters that fell
within its Terms of Reference. They included: the 9 and 12 month accounts, internal audit
plans, updates on the business continuity plan, and relevant financial and corporate
governance matters issued by HM Treasury.

At each meeting, the Committee received for information purposes a copy of the latest
Budget Monitoring report considered by the Management Team. This is intended to provide
the Committee with an assurance that there is a regular scrutiny of the financial position
within the Office.

The Committee provided advice to the Ombudsman to ensure that the 2016/17 Annual
Governance Statement included appropriate information and complied with best practice.

48

Tudalen 78



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

(e) Internal and External Audit

The Committee received regular reports from both the internal and external auditors. The
work of Deloitte as Internal Auditors during the year was planned on the basis of their overall
needs assessment and carried out through their third annual programme. Their reports
highlighted the satisfactory internal control framework within the organisation and made
recommendations for improvement where necessary. Their Finance Systems Internal Audit
Annual Report for 2016/17 stated the following overall assessments:

Budgetary Control SUBSTANTIAL assurance
General Ledger SUBSTANTIAL assurance
Fixed Assets MODERATE assurance

The rolling audit programme covering the other aspects of the Office’s work and controls also
noted the satisfactory internal control framework within the Office and made
recommendations for improvement where necessary. The overall assessments were as
follows:

Corporate Governance SUBSTANTIAL assurance
Complaints Handling SUBSTANTIAL assurance

The internal auditors’ Annual Report for 2016/17 stated: ‘Based on the work we have
undertaken during the year we are able to conclude that the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales (PSOW) has a basically sound system of internal control, which should provide
substantial assurance regarding the achievement of the PSOW’s objectives’. These findings
provide assurance that the arrangements in place are reducing the Office’s exposure to risk.
The Committee noted the thoroughness of the audit work, practicality of recommendations
and the open and positive response of management to the recommendations made.

The role of external audit is undertaken by the Wales Audit Office (WAQ). The Committee
considered the Annual Accounts that included the Governance Statement of the Office for
2015/16 together with the External Audit of Financial Statements Report and Management
Letter. The audit conclusions for the 2015/16 financial year were reviewed at the September
2016 meeting of the Committee.

An unqualified opinion was given on the 2015/16 Accounts on 21 July 2016 with the two

recommendations accepted in full by management. These will be implemented in the
2016/17 annual accounts.

" Tudalen 79



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Both Internal and External Auditors have the right, if considered appropriate, to raise any
matter through an open access policy to the Chair and through that right to bring any matter
to the attention of the Committee. The Committee by reviewing the programmes of both the
External and the Internal Auditors ensured that they were co-operating effectively with each
other. The quality of the audit work and that of the Committee has been evaluated during the
year through consideration of the audit reports and recommendations and dialogue at
meetings between Committee Members and the Auditors.

To ensure that appropriate matters can be raised in confidence the Chair of the Committee
holds an annual meeting with representatives of the External and Internal Auditors. Such a
meeting was held on 15 March 2017.

(f) Monitoring processes

At each meeting during 2016/17 the Committee received a report on progress made on
implementation of External and Internal Audit recommendations. The Committee members
were satisfied that all the recommendations made had been implemented or will be
implemented by the first quarter of 2017/18.

(g) Annual Review and Assessment

This annual review is undertaken to ensure that the work of the Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee continues to comply with the Good Practice Principles set out in the HM Treasury
Audit Committee Handbook. To assist the Committee in determining that it was complying
with good practice each member was invited to complete the National Audit Office’s ‘The
Audit Committee self assessment checklist.’

Comments received from Committee members were taken into account in preparing the
Annual Report for 2016/17.

The report concluded that it had received comprehensive assurances and information that
was reliable and sufficient to enable it to carry out its responsibilities. Those assurances
demonstrated a satisfactory overall internal control environment, financial reporting, and the
management of risk and of the quality of both the Internal and External Audit work
undertaken.

The Committee was therefore able to provide assurances to effectively support me as the
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales to comply with my Accounting Officer responsibilities,
in particular, in providing evidence to assist in the preparation of this Annual Governance
Statement.

50

Tudalen 80



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Reporting of Personal Data Related Incidents

All incidents involving personal data are reported to the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee,
regardless of whether the PSOW is at fault. Where PSOW is at fault, guidance issued by the
Information Commissioner’s Office is considered to establish whether it is necessary to report
the incident to that office. During 2016/17, there was one incident which required reporting
to the Information Commissioner’s Office. This was duly reported to the Information
Commissioner who, after receiving further details of the incident and steps taken to prevent a
similar incident occurring in the future, decided that no further action was necessary.

The Risk and Control Framework

As required by “Managing Welsh Public Money” | am supported by a professionally qualified
Financial Accountant who carries out the responsibilities of a finance director as set out in
that document.

Risk management and the risk register are standing Agenda items for the Audit and Risk
Assurance Committee. This matter was a subject that received special attention during the
year. A workshop on this topic was facilitated by our internal auditors, Deloitte. As aresulta
proposal for a new approach to risk was developed, together with a possible shorter and
more focused report highlighting key risks. This work is ongoing.

| am continuing to enhance the robust internal control arrangements to ensure that the
Office has the capacity to identify, assess and manage risk effectively. In undertaking this
responsibility during the year ended 31 March 2017 | have been supported by a Chief
Operating Officer to whom some of the Ombudsman’s responsibilities have been delegated.
In addition the Management Team which | chair has responsibility for overseeing risk
management. | am satisfied that the systems in place identify potential risks at an early stage
and enable, through active management, the appropriate action to be taken to minimise any
adverse impact on the office. As already stated the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
receives regular reports on the Risk Register of the Office.

o Tudalen 81



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Risk Assurance Framework Arrangements

PSOW Framework
e Strategic objectives from Business Plan
e  Work programme
e Risk management
e Anti-fraud policy
e  Governance framework
e Policies, procedures and code of conduct

Accounting Officer
Governance
Decision making
Financial management

Risk management

Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee
Reviews and monitors
governance, risks and
internal controls. Agrees
annual governance
statement.

Advisory Panel
Provides support and
advice in leadership and
good governance.
Brings an external
perspective.

Management Team
3 year strategic plan
Operational plan
Performance monitoring
Corporate policies
Risk management
Value for money

Central Guidance
HM Treasury
FReM

Managing Welsh Public Money
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

Annual Governance
Statement

PSOW policies, plans
and risk register

Assurance Map Components

1% line of defence
Strategic and operational delivery reporting
KPI reporting
Financial controls/Budget monitoring

2" line of defence
Risk register reviews
Quality assurance
Information security assurance

3" line of defence
Internal audit reports
Financial accountant spot checks
Scrutiny by Finance Committee and PAC

Other Assurances
External audit

Tudalen 82

52




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Budgeting Process

As Accounting Officer, | ensure that | have in place arrangements for tight control of the
public money entrusted to me, as did my predecessor before me. In particular, the
Management Team receives a monthly budget monitoring report setting out details of actual
against budgeted expenditure. Any unexpected expenditure issues that may arise during the
course of the year are considered and actions required to ensure that the office remains
within its budgeted expenditure are agreed. No major issues arose in respect of the PSOW’s
budget for 2016/17.

As far as the process of producing the PSOW's financial estimate for 2017/18 is concerned, a
paper setting out initial budget criteria was considered by the Advisory Panel in July 2016.
Following on from this a draft budget estimate paper was considered at the meeting in
September 2016. That paper set out in full the financial resources that the PSOW had
identified as being necessary to enable the PSOW to carry out his duties. The final Estimates
paper was submitted to the Finance Committee of the National Assembly for Wales. The
Finance Committee considered the paper in October 2016 and | was pleased to be able to
attend the meeting in order to answer Assembly Members’ specific questions on the
submission.

The National Assembly for Wales subsequently approved the financial estimate in full for
2017/18.

Conclusion
| am able to report that there were no significant weaknesses in the Office’s system of
internal controls in 2016/17 which would affect the achievement of the Office’s policies, aims

and objectives and that robust Corporate Governance is in operation with no breaches of the
Corporate Governance Code.

Nick Bennett
Accounting Officer 12 July 2017

> Tudalen 83



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Remuneration Report

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

The Government of Wales Act 2006 provides for my remuneration and associated national
insurance and pension costs to be met from the Welsh Consolidated Fund, rather than being
paid directly. These costs are included, for transparency, in the remuneration report on page
54 and 55.

Remuneration

The following sections provide details of the remuneration and pension interest of the most
senior management of the Office: Nick Bennett - Ombudsman, Chris Vinestock - Chief
Operating Officer and Director of Investigations and Katrin Shaw - Assistant Director of
Investigations and Legal Adviser.

Single Total Figure of Remuneration

Pension benefits
Bonus payments Benefits in Kind

Officials Salary (£'000) (to nearest Total (£'000)

(£'000) (to nearest £100)
£1,000)

2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16
Nick Bennett 140-145 140-145 - - - - 57,000 56,000 200-205 195-200
Chris
90-95 85-90 - - - - 79,000 48,000 170-175 130-135
Vinestock
Katrin Shaw 70-75 65-70 - - - - 74,000 33,000 145-150 95-100
Salary

Salary includes gross salary, overtime and any other allowances to the extent that they are
subject to UK taxation.

Benefits in kind

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any expenditure paid by the PSOW and treated
by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument. There was no such expenditure.

54

Tudalen 84



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Bonuses

No bonus was paid during the year to me or to any staff within my office as no bonus scheme
is in operation.

Pay multiples

The banded remuneration of the highest-paid director in the financial year 2016/17 was
£140-£145,000 (2015/16, £140-£145,000). This was 3.5 times (2015/16, 3.5) the median
remuneration of the workforce, which was £40,623 (2015/16, £40,218). In 2016/17, no
employee received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director (2015/16, none).

Remuneration ranged from £16,000 to £145,000 (2016/17, £14,000-£145,000). Total
remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and benefits-in-
kind. It does not include severance payments, employer pension contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Pay awards
Staff pay is linked to the pay awards made to employees within Local Government in England
and Wales. In line with that procedure a 1% pay increase was awarded to staff in 2016/17

that covered the year April 2016 to March 2017.

Pensions

Pension entitlements for the persons shown above are detailed below:

Accrued
pension
at pension age | Real increase in Employer
as at pension and contribution to
31/03/17 and related lump Real partnership
related lump sum at pension CETV at CETV at Increase pension
sum age 31/03/17 31/03/16 in CETV accounts
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 Nearest £100
Nick Bennett’ 30-35 10-12.5 348 222 21 -
Chris Vinestock 50-55 2.5-5 651 580 44 -
Katrin Shaw 25-30 2.5-5 364 304 44

The real increase in pension includes a transfer in brought by the member during the reporting year.

> Tudalen 85



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Pension Liabilities

The pension obligations to present and past employees are discharged through:
(a) the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS)
(b) the Local Government Pension Scheme administered through the Cardiff and
Vale of Glamorgan Pension Scheme (the Fund) and
(c) the pensions paid directly to former Commissioners or their dependants.

Fuller details are given in the Pensions Disclosures at page 82.

Sickness

During the year, an average of 4.0 days per employee were lost through sickness compared
with 5.6 days in 2015/16. This is the equivalent of 1.5% (2.0% in 2015/16) of total possible
workdays.

In previous years pregnancy and maternity related sickness was excluded from the
reported figures as these absences must, by law, be recorded separately. Whilst still
recorded separately, for consistency with the approach in Office of National Statistics
reports, pregnancy and maternity related sickness has now been included in the figures
above. Figures (above) for 2015/16 have therefore been adjusted from those reported
last year, so that they are shown on the same basis as the figures for 2016/17.

Reporting of Civil Service and other compensation schemes — exit packages

No exit packages were paid in 2016/17 (2015/16 Nil).

56

Tudalen 86



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Advisory Panel and Audit and Risk Assurance Committee

The following non pensionable payments, based on a daily rate, were made to members of
the Advisory Panel and Audit and Risk Assurance Committee:

2016/17 | 2015/16

£ £
William Richardson 2,737 2,737
John Williams 1,711 1,400
Jan Williams - -
Margaret Griffiths 1,269 987
Sharon Warnes 1,711 1,244
Jonathan Morgan 1,244 -

For staff reporting issues see Annual Equality Report on page 29.

Nick Bennett
Accounting Officer 12 July 2017
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

v Tudalen 87



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

National Assembly for Wales Accountability
and Audit Report

In addition to the primary statements prepared under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) requires the
Ombudsman to prepare a statement and supporting notes to show resource outturn against
the Supply Estimate presented to the Assembly, in respect of each request for resource.

Summary of Net Resource Outturn
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Revised

Outturn 2015/16

Estimate

Net total
Sl Income Sl Income outturn Net Total
Expenditure Expenditure compared
to estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 4,065 - 4,065 4,025 - 4,025 40 3,984
Capital 25 - 25 27 - 27 (2) 144
Net Resource 4,090 -1 4,000 4,052 -| 4,052 38 4,128
Net Cash 4,279 | 4279 4,240 | 4,240 39 4,218
Requirement

The £5k income received was in excess of the approved budget and will be returned to the
Welsh Consolidated Fund (WCF) in addition to the £34k bank balance as at 31 March 2017.

The Ombudsman is paid directly from the Welsh Consolidated Fund and not by the Office. In
previous years the Ombudsman’s salary has been accounted for as a Non Staff Administration
Cost in Note 3 and subsequently removed from the Summary of Resource Outturn. The
Ombudsman’s pay costs will not be included in the PSOW accounts from 2016/17 and the
figures for 2015/16 have been adjusted to reflect this change.

For transparency, the Ombudsman’s remuneration will continue to be disclosed in the
Remuneration Report.

58

Tudalen 88



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Reconciliation of Net Resource to Net Cash
Requirement

For the year ended 31 March 2017

2016/17
Revised

estimate

2016/17

Net total
Outturn

Net total outturn
compared to

revised estimate

2015/16
Outturn

£000 £000 £000 £000

Net Revenue 2-4 4,065 4,025 40 3,984
Net Capital 6 25 27 (2) 144
Net Resource 4,090 4,052 38 4,128
Excess income to WCF 4 - (5) 5 -
Movement in provisions 10 (30) (21) (9) 11
Capital charges 6 (80) (82) 2 (83)
Movements in working

capital /9 20 16 4 (88)
Pension funding DT:CT;';:ZS 279 280 (1) 250
Net cash requirement 4,279 4,240 39 4,218

The £5k income received was in excess of the approved budget and will be returned to the
Welsh Consolidated Fund (WCF) in addition to the £34k bank balance as at 31 March 2017.

The figures for 2015/16 have been restated to take into account the revised treatment of the
Ombudsman’s pay costs.

Nick Bennett

Accounting Officer 12 July 2017

> Tudalen 89



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

The Certificate and Report of the Auditor
General for Wales to the National
Assembly for Wales

| certify that | have audited the financial statements of the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales for the year ended 31 March 2017 under paragraph 17 (2) of schedule 1 of the Public
Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act (2005). These comprise the Summary or Net Resource
Outturn, Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity and related
notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
within them. | have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described
in that report as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities, the
Accounting Officer is responsible for preparing the financial statements, in accordance with
the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005 and HM Treasury directions made there
under and for ensuring the regularity of financial transactions.

My responsibility is to audit, certify and report on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). These standards
require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales’
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Public Services Ombudsman
for Wales; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.

In addition, | am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by the National

60

Tudalen 90



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Assembly for Wales and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

In addition | read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and
Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If |
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the
implications for my certificate and report.

Opinion on Financial Statements

In my opinion the financial statements:

° give a true and fair view of the state of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales’
affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its net cash requirement, net resource outturn
and net operating cost, for the year then ended; and

° have been properly prepared in accordance with HM Treasury directions issued
under the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005.

Opinion on Regularity

In my opinion, in all material respects, the expenditure and income in the financial statements
have been applied to the purposes intended by the National Assembly for Wales and the
financial transactions recorded in the financial statements conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion:

° the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with HM Treasury directions made under the Public Services
Ombudsman (Wales) Act (2005); and

° the information in the Annual Report and Accounts is consistent with the financial
statements.

o Tudalen 91



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Matters on which | report by exception

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if, in my
opinion:

° the Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with HM Treasury
guidance;

° proper accounting records have not been kept;

° the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;

° information specified by HM Treasury regarding the remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed; or

° | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Report

| have no observations to make on these financial statements.

Huw Vaughan Thomas Wales Audit Office
Auditor General for Wales 24 Cathedral Road
19 July 2017 Cardiff CF11 9L

62

Tudalen 92



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Financial
Statements

Tudalen 93



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Statement of Comprehensive Net

Expenditure
for the year ended 31 March 2017

2016/17 2015/16
£000 £000

Administration costs

Staff costs 2 2,827 2,498
Other non staff administration costs 3 1,198 1,486
Gross Administration Costs 4,025 3,984
Operating Income 4 (5) -
Net Administration Costs 4,020 3,984
Net Revenue Outturn 4,020 3,984

All activities commenced in the period are continuing.

The notes on pages 68 to 81 and the Pensions Disclosures on pages 82 to 91 form part of
these statements

The figures for 2015/16 have been restated to take into account the revised treatment of the
Ombudsman’s pay costs.

64

Tudalen 94



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2017

Note | 2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 6a 140 146
Intangible assets 6b 18 67
Receivables due after more than one ; . )
year
Pension fund surplus Pensions 40 )
Disclosures
Total non-current assets 198 213
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 7 163 151
Cash and cash equivalents 8 34 36
Total current assets 197 187
Total assets 395 400
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 (172) (173)
Provisions 10 (83) (49)
Total current liabilities (255) (222)
Non-current assets plus net current
sssets 140 178
Trade and other payables due after (33) 38)
one year 9
Provisions 10 (461) (474)
Non-current liabilities (494) (512)
Assets less liabilities before Pensions (354) (334)
Pension fund deficit f’enSionS B (230)
Disclosures
Assets less liabilities (354) (564)
Taxpayers’ Equity:
General Fund (354) (564)

The notes on pages 68 to 81 and the Pensions Disclosures on pages 82 to 91 form part of
these statements. The financial statements were approved by the Accounting Officer and
authorised for issue on 12 July 2017 by:

Nick Bennett
Accounting Officer 12 July 2017

. Tudalen 95



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note | 2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000

Net cash outflow from operating activities 11 (4,215) (4,041)
Net cash flow from investing activities 12 (27) (144)
Financing from National Assembly for Wales 13 4,279 4,254
Net increase (decrease) in cash equivalents before adjustments 37 69
for payments to Welsh Consolidated Fund

Payments of amounts due to the Welsh Consolidated Fund 8,9 (39) (36)
Net increase (decrease) in cash equivalents after adjustments 2) 33
for payments to Welsh Consolidated Fund

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 36 3
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 34 36

The notes on pages 68 to 81 and the Pensions Disclosures on pages 82 to 91 form part of

these statements.

Tudalen 96

66




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2017

General Fund

General Fund

2016/17 2015/16
£000 £000

Balance as at 1 April (564) (808)
Net operating costs (4,020) (3,984)
Funding by National Assembly for Wales 4,279 4,254
Due back to Welsh Consolidated Fund

- Cash (34) (36)
- Income in excess of approved budget (5) i
Actuarial (deficit) surplus (10) 10
Total recognised income and expense for year 210 244
Balance as at 31 March (354) (564)

The notes on pages 68 to 81 and the Pensions Disclosures on pages 82 to 91 form part of

these statements.

The figures for 2015/16 have been restated to take into account the revised treatment of the

Ombudsman’s pay costs.

67

Tudalen 97



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Government
Financial Reporting Manual (the FReM) issued by HM Treasury which is in force for
2016/17. The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted or interpreted for the public sector. Where the
FReM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which has been
judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the PSOW for the
purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular accounting
policies adopted by the PSOW are described below. They have been applied
consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1  Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to
account for any revaluation of fixed assets, where material to their value to the
business, by reference to their current costs.

1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment is capitalised where the purchases are
expected to have a useful life extending over more than one year and the cost
exceeds £1k. Assets costing less than £1k may be capitalised providing they are capital
in nature and are part of a larger scheme that is in total more than £1k. Assets are
shown at cost less an allowance for depreciation. On initial recognition fixed assets are
measured at cost, including such costs as installation, which are directly attributable
to bringing them into working condition for their intended use. In reviewing the costs
of the fixed assets previously acquired and the prices paid for the new acquisitions
during the year there is no material difference between the historic net book value of
the assets and their replacement cost less depreciation.

1.3 Depreciation

Assets are depreciated at rates calculated to write them down to zero or if applicable,
estimated residual value on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life
following an initial charge of a full year’s depreciation in the year of purchase. Assets
in the course of construction are depreciated from the year in which the asset is

68

Tudalen 98



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

brought into use. Except where otherwise noted asset lives are assumed to be the

following:
Plant 10 years or the lease term if shorter
Furniture and other fittings 10 years or in the case of fittings the
lease term
Computers and other equipment 3to 10 years

1.4 Intangible assets

Purchased computer software licences and developed software are capitalised where
expenditure of £1k or more is incurred and the useful life is more than one year.
Intangible assets costing less than £1k may be capitalised providing they are capital in
nature and are part of a larger scheme that is in total more than £1k. Intangible assets
are reviewed annually for impairment and are stated at amortised historic cost.
Software licences are amortised over the shorter of the term of the licence and the
useful economic life of the computer equipment on which they are installed. This
would usually be from 3 to 5 years. Developed software is amortised over the
estimated useful life. In the year of acquisition a full year’s amortisation charge is
made with the balance amortised on a straight line basis over the balance of the
estimated life.

1.5  Value Added Tax
The PSOW is not registered for VAT. Expenditure is therefore disclosed gross of VAT.
1.6 Pensions

The pension obligations to present and past employees are covered by the provisions
of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS), the Local Government Pension
Scheme administered through the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Pension Scheme (the
Fund) and by direct payment to previous Commissioners for Local Administration in
Wales and any surviving beneficiaries. Full details are disclosed in the Pensions
Disclosures at the end of the Financial Statements. The costs of providing these
pensions are charged through the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure with
actuarial gains and losses relating to the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Pension
Scheme being recognised in the year in which they occur.

> Tudalen 99



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

1.7 Early departure costs

Where the PSOW is required to meet the additional cost of benefits beyond the
normal benefits payable by the appropriate pension scheme in respect of employees
who retire early, these costs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure in full when the liability arises.

1.8 Operating Leases

Expenditure on leased property is expensed in the period to which it relates.
Operating lease charges for equipment are spread equally over the life of the lease.

1.9 Staff Costs

In line with IAS 19, short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries and social
security contributions, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, as well as non-monetary
benefits for current employees, are recognised when an employee has rendered
services in exchange for those benefits.

1.10 Provisions
These are sums which are of uncertain timing or amount at the balance sheet date
and represent the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations.

Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted
cash flows are discounted using the recommended HM Treasury discount rate.

1.11 Income

All income is recognised in the statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure in
accordance with IAS 18.

70

Tudalen 100



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

1.12 Impact of Standards Not Yet Effective

Standard Effective Further details
date

IFRS 9 financial 2018/19 IFRS 9 financial instruments will replace IAS 39 and includes a new
instruments principles-based approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. It also introduces a new impairment methodology
for financial assets based on expected losses rather than incurred
losses. This will result in earlier and more timely recognition of
expected credit losses. The accounting requirements for financial
liabilities are almost all carried forward unchanged from IAS 39.

IFRS 15 revenue | 2018/19 IFRS 15 revenue from contracts with customers introduces a
from contracts principles-based five-step model for recognising revenue arising
with customers from contracts with customers. It is based on a core principle

requiring revenue recognition to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration the body expects to be entitled to, in exchange for
those goods or services. It will also require more extensive
disclosures than are currently required.

IFRS 16 leases 2019/20 IFRS 16 will replace the current leases standard IAS 17. The key
change is that it largely removes the distinction between operating
and finance leases for lessees by introducing a single lessee
accounting model that requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. It will lead to all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet as an asset based on a right of use
principle with a corresponding liability for future rentals. This is a
significant change in lessee accounting.

" Tudalen 101



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

2. Staff Costs and Numbers

The aggregate employment costs were as follows:

2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000

Permanent staff:

Salaries 2,130 1,967

Social Security Costs 221 158

Pension costs 448 416

Pension fund movements 28 (56)
Total 2,827 2,485
Temporary staff

Salaries - 10

Social Security costs - 1

Pension costs - 2
Total - 13
Total employment costs 2,827 2,498

The costs of temporary staff include agency staff together with any persons employed on a

non permanent contract.

The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed (including senior

management) during the year was as follows:

2016/17 2015/16

No. No.
Directors 2 2
Investigations 42 40
Corporate services 7 7
Communications and PA 4 4
Total 55 53

The figures for 2015/16 have been restated to take into account the revised treatment of the

Ombudsman’s pay costs.

Tudalen 102

72




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

3. Non Staff Administration Costs
2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000

Rentals under operating leases 261 250

External Audit fee 20 20
Professional Advisers 230 250

Other property costs 174 396
Computer services 177 151

Office costs 113 161

Travel and subsistence 39 34

Training and Recruitment 45 68
Communications 57 73

Sub-total 1,116 1,403
Depreciation 33 33
Amortisation charge 49 50

Loss on disposal - -

Sub-total 82 83
Total Other Administration Costs 1,198 1,486

The figures for 2015/16 have been restated to take into account the revised treatment of the
Ombudsman’s pay costs.

4, Operating Income
2016/17 2015/16 |
£000 £000
Seconded staff (4) -
Interest receivable - -
Other — Future Generations Commissioner (1) -
Total (5) -

” Tudalen 103



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

5. Operating Costs by Strategic Aims

The costs of providing a first class Ombudsman service to Wales are set out below. We have
identified four new strategic aims for delivering our mission and the allocation to each of the
aims has been based on the following:

(a) An estimate of the staff time spent on the objective
(b) Direct allocation of expenditure where applicable
(c) Apportionment of other costs pro rata to the estimate of staff time
2016/17 ‘ 2015/16

£000 % £000 %

Strategic Aim 1:
To provide a complaints service that is of the highest

. . _ 3,097 77.0 | 3,098 77.8
quality, proportionate and effective.

Strategic Aim 2:

To use the knowledge and insight obtained from the
complaints we consider to improve complaint handling by
public services providers and to have an impact in 677 16.8 659 16.5
improving public service delivery and informing public

policy.

Strategic Aim 3:

To continue to evolve and grow as an office, specifically
planning for implementation of the Ombudsman’s new

powers should the National Assembly for Wales create a
new Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act.

59 1.5 56 14

Strategic Aim 4.
To be accountable for the service we provide and the public

187 4.7 171 4.3
money we spend.

Net operating costs 4,020 | 100.0 | 3,984 | 100.0

The allocation for 2015/16 has been restated to take into account the four new strategic aims
as well as the revised treatment of the Ombudsman’s pay costs.

74

Tudalen 104



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

6a Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture and
other fittings

Computers and
other equipment

2016/17 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation at
1 April 2016 156 222 406 784
Additions - 8 19 27
Disposals - (48) (10) (58)
At 31 March 2017 156 182 415 753
Depreciation (156) (183) (299) (638)
At 1 April 2016
Charged in the year - (17) (16) (33)
Disposals - 48 10 58
At 31 March 2017 (156) (152) (305) (613)
Carrying amount as at 31
March 2017 30 110 140
Carrying amount as at 31
March 2016 39 107 146

Computers and
other equipment

Furniture and
other fittings

2015/16 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation at 156 198 297 651
1 April 2015
Additions - 24 109 133
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2016 156 222 406 784
Depreciation (156) (164) (285) (605)
At 1 April 2015
Charged in the year - (19) (14) (33)
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2016 (156) (183) (299) (638)
Carrying amount as at 31 - 39 107 146
March 2016
Carrying amount as at 31 - 34 12 46
March 2015

75

Tudalen 105




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

6b Intangible Assets

Information ‘ Software Total
Technology Licences
2016/17 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2016 502 71 573
Additions - - -
Disposals (174) - (174)
At 31 March 2017 328 71 399
Amortisation as at 1 April 2016 (435) (71) (506)
Amortisation charged in the year (49) - (49)
Disposals 174 - 174
At 31 March 2017 (310) (71) (381)
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 18 - 18
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2016 67 - 67
Information ‘ Software Total
Technology Licences
2015/16 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2015 491 71 562
Additions 11 - 11
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2016 502 71 573
Amortisation as at 1 April 2015 (385) (71) (456)
Amortisation charged in the year (50) - (50)
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2016 (435) (71) (506)
Carrying Value as at 31 March 2016 67 - 67
Carrying Value as at 31 March 2015 106 - 106

In the opinion of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales there is no material difference

between the net book value of assets at current values and at their historic cost. A full

verification of IT assets was completed during the year with numerous items no longer in use

removed from the asset register.

Tudalen 106

76




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

7. Trade and other Receivables

2016/17 2015/16

£000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year

Prepayments 163 151
Trade debtors - -

Amounts falling due after more than one year - -

Prepayments - -

Total 163 151

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Any bank balance held at the year-end has to be returned to the Welsh Consolidated Fund. A
figure of £34k (£36k in 2015/16) has been included within the accounts, being the net balance
at the year end on all the bank accounts operated by the PSOW, irrespective of whether the
individual account is in debit or credit. This balance will have to be repaid to the Welsh
Consolidated Fund in 2017/18 under the Government of Wales Act 2006.

0. Trade Payables and other Current Liabilities

2016/17 2015/16

£000 £000

Amounts falling due in one year
Untaken annual leave 72 51
Deferred rent reduction 5 5
Welsh Consolidated Fund - unspent balances 34 36
Welsh Consolidated Fund - excess income 5 -
Trade payables 22 69
Accruals 34 12

172 173
Amounts falling due in more than one year
Deferred rent reduction 33 38
Total 205 211

77

Tudalen 107




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

10. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges
2016/17 2015/16
Pensions for Dilapidation
Former
. Costs
Commissioners
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 287 236 _ 523 534
Add|.t|(.3na| . 17 - Vi) 59 158
provision required
Discount rate movement 11 ) ) 11 (1)
Provisions utilised in the (49) _ . (49) (168)
year
Balance at 31 March 266 236 42 544 523
Analysis of expected timings of payment of provisions:
2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000
Payable within one year 83 49
Payable within 2 to 5 years 166 165
Payable in more than 5 years 295 309
Balance at 31 March 544 523

Pension provisions are calculated based on the National Life Tables for England and Wales

issued by the Office of National Statistics. Later year pension increases are in line with GDP

deflator information issued by HM Treasury. The discount factor has been amended to 0.24%

for the financial year (1.37% in 2015/16) in line with the guidance issued by the Treasury. Two

surviving spouses of former Commissioners remain as a pension liability.

A full dilapidations assessment was completed in 2015/16 to assess the full liability when the

lease on the building at Bocam Park ends in 2025.

Legal fees have been provided to defend an ongoing legal case.

Tudalen 108

78




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

11. Reconciliation of Operating Cost to Operating Cash Flows

Notes | 2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000
Net operating cost (4,020) (3,984)
Adjust for non cash items 3 92 123
Decrease /(Increase) in trade and other receivables 7 (12) 19
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 9 (6) 102
Payment to meet pension fund deficit DT:CT;'SC;:ZS (290) (290)
Movement in provisions 10 21 (11)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (4,215) (4,041)

The figures for 2015/16 have been restated to take into account the revised treatment of the

Ombudsman’s pay costs.

12. Non Current Asset Expenditure and Financial Investment
2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (27) (133)
Proceeds of disposals of property, plant and equipment - -
Purchases of intangible assets - (11)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (27) (144)
13. Reconciliation of Net Cash Requirement to Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash
2016/17 | 2015/16
£000 £000
Net Cash Requirement:
Operating activities (4,215) (4,041)
Capital Expenditure (27) (144)
(4,242) (4,185)
Financing from National Assembly for Wales 4,279 4,254
Repayment to Welsh Consolidated Fund (39) (36)
Increase /(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2) 33

79

Tudalen 109




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

14. Commitments under Operating Leases

2016/17 2015/16

£000 £000
Total future minimum operating lease payments on
Building:
Payable within one year 183 183
Within two and five years 732 732
More than five years 656 839
1,571 1,754
Other:
Payable within one year 20 24
Within two and five years 32 34
More than five years - -
52 58
Total —all operating leases 1,623 1,812

15. Contingent Liabilities

There is one ongoing legal case for which a provision for unrecoverable legal costs has been
made. The outcome of the case and any potential liability is unknown.

16. Capital Commitments

There were no capital commitments at 31 March 2017 (2015/16 Nil).

17. Related Party Transactions

The PSOW is headed by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales and was established under
the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005. The Ombudsman is independent of
Government and the funding arrangements of the Office are set up to ensure that the
independence of the Office is secured. The PSOW has had a number of material transactions
with the National Assembly for Wales, the Office of the Parliamentary Ombudsman, HM
Revenue and Customs (Tax and National Insurance payments) and the Cabinet Office
(payments in respect of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme).

80

Tudalen 110



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

During the year, no directors, key members of staff or their related parties have undertaken
any material transactions.

18. Events after the Reporting Period

None.

. Tudalen 111



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Pensions Disclosures

Two pension schemes are operated on behalf of current staff — The Principal Civil Service
Pension Scheme (PCSPS) and the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Pension Fund (the Fund).
There also remains an ongoing liability to meet the unfunded pensions of two dependant
relatives of former Local Government Commissioners.

Civil Service Pensions

Pension benefits are provided through the Civil Service pension arrangements. From 1 April
2015 a new pension scheme for civil servants was introduced — the Civil Servants and Others
Pension Scheme or alpha, which provides benefits on a career average basis with a normal
pension age equal to the member’s State Pension Age (or 65 if higher). From that date all
newly appointed civil servants and the majority of those already in service joined alpha. Prior
to that date, civil servants participated in the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS).
The PCSPS has four sections: 3 providing benefits on a final salary basis (classic, premium or
classic plus) with a normal pension age of 60; and one providing benefits on a whole career
basis (nuvos) with a normal pension age of 65.

These statutory arrangements are unfunded with the cost of benefits met by monies voted by
Parliament each year. Pensions payable under classic, premium, classic plus, nuvos and alpha
are increased annually in line with Pensions Increase legislation. Existing members of the
PCSPS who were within 10 years of their normal pension age on 1 April 2012 remained in the
PCSPS after 1 April 2015. Those who were between 10 years and 13 years and 5 months from
their normal pension age on 1 April 2012 will switch into alpha sometime between 1 June
2015 and 1 February 2022. All members who switch to alpha have their PCSPS benefits
‘banked’, with those with earlier benefits in one of the final salary sections of the PCSPS
having those benefits based on their final salary when they leave alpha. (The pension figures
quoted for officials show pension earned in PCSPS or alpha — as appropriate. Where the
official has benefits in both the PCSPS and alpha the figure quoted is the combined value of
their benefits in the two schemes.) Members joining from October 2002 may opt for either
the appropriate defined benefit arrangement or a ‘money purchase’ stakeholder pension with
an employer contribution (partnership pension account).

Employee contributions are salary-related and range between 3% and 8.05% of pensionable
earnings for members of classic (and members of alpha who were members of classic
immediately before joining alpha) and between 4.6% and 8.05% for members of premium,
classic plus, nuvos and all other members of alpha. Benefits in classic accrue at the rate of
1/80th of final pensionable earnings for each year of service. In addition, a lump sum

82

Tudalen 112



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

equivalent to three years initial pension is payable on retirement. For premium, benefits
accrue at the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable earnings for each year of service. Unlike
classic, there is no automatic lump sum. classic plus is essentially a hybrid with benefits for
service before 1 October 2002 calculated broadly as per classic and benefits for service from
October 2002 worked out as in premium. In nuvos a member builds up a pension based on his
pensionable earnings during their period of scheme membership. At the end of the scheme
year (31 March) the member’s earned pension account is credited with 2.3% of their
pensionable earnings in that scheme year and the accrued pension is uprated in line with
Pensions Increase legislation. Benefits in alpha build up in a similar way to nuvos, except that
the accrual rate in 2.32%. In all cases members may opt to give up (commute) pension for a
lump sum up to the limits set by the Finance Act 2004.

The partnership pension account is a stakeholder pension arrangement. The employer makes
a basic contribution of between 8% and 14.75% (depending on the age of the member) into a
stakeholder pension product chosen by the employee from a panel of providers. The
employee does not have to contribute, but where they do make contributions, the employer
will match these up to a limit of 3% of pensionable salary (in addition to the employer’s basic
contribution). Employers also contribute a further 0.5% of pensionable salary to cover the
cost of centrally-provided risk benefit cover (death in service and ill health retirement).

The accrued pension quoted is the pension the member is entitled to receive when they
reach pension age, or immediately on ceasing to be an active member of the scheme if they
are already at or over pension age. Pension age is 60 for members of classic, premium and
classic plus, 65 for members of nuvos, and the higher of 65 or State Pension Age for members
of alpha. (The pension figures quoted for officials show pension earned in PCSPS or alpha —as
appropriate. Where the official has benefits in both the PCSPS and alpha the figure quoted is
the combined value of their benefits in the two schemes, but note that part of that pension
may be payable from different ages.)

Further details about the Civil Service pension arrangements can be found at the website
www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from
the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure
pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a

> Tudalen 113


http://www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk/

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension
figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their
total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies.

The figures include the value of any pension benefit in another scheme or arrangement which
the member has transferred to the Civil Service pension arrangements. They also include any
additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their buying additional
pension benefits at their own cost. CETVs are worked out in accordance with The
Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 and do not
take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime
Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

Real Increase in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including
the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses
common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Compensation for loss of office

No staff left under Voluntary Exit or Voluntary Redundancy terms during the financial year.

84

Tudalen 114



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Cardiff and Vale Pension Fund - Local Government Pension Scheme

The disclosures below relate to the funded liabilities of the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan
Pension Fund (the Fund) which is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (the LGPS).
The funded nature of the LGPS requires the PSOW and its employees who are members of
the scheme to pay contributions into the Fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pension’s liabilities with investment assets.

The PSOW recognises gains and losses in full, immediately through the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure. In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, disclosure of certain information concerning assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure relating to pension schemes is required.

No further contributions are required to be paid to the Fund by the PSOW for future years.
Disclosure under 1AS19 (LGPS funded benefits)

Introduction

The disclosures below relate to the funded liabilities within the Fund which are part of the
LGPS.

Results under IAS 19 (LGPS funded benefits)
Date of the last full actuarial valuation 31 March 2016
Expected employer contributions next year (EM) -

Duration of liabilities 12.8 years

Key assumptions (% per annum)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Discount rate 2.50 3.30 3.20
RPI Inflation 3.10 2.80 2.90
CPI Inflation 2.00 1.70 1.80
Pension increases 2.00 1.70 1.80
Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.00 1.70 1.80
Salary increases 3.00 2.70 2.80

. Tudalen 115



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Mortality assumptions

The mortality assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality experience of members
within the Fund and allow for expected future mortality improvements. Sample life
expectancies at age 65 resulting from these mortality assumptions are shown below:

Assumed life expectancy at age 65 31 March 2017 ’ 31 March 2016

Males

Member aged 65 at accounting date 23.0 23.8

Member aged 45 at accounting date 24.0 25.9

Females

Member aged 65 at accounting date 25.7 26.8

Member aged 45 at accounting date 27.1 29.1
Asset allocation

Value at

31 March 2017

Value at
31 March 2016

Quoted Unquoted Total Total
% % % %

Equities 0.0 0.0 0.0 75.1
Property 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.3
Government bonds 100.0 0.0 100.0 8.1
Corporate bonds 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.2
Cash 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3
Other 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total 100.0 0.0 100.0 100.0

Reconciliation of funded status to Statement of Financial Position

Value at

31 March 2017
£M

Value at
31 March 2016

£M

Fair value of assets 7.00 6.12
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 5.35 5.00
Funded status 1.65 1.12
Unrecognised asset due to limit in paragraph 64 - IFRIC 14 (1.61) (1.35)
Asset/(Liability) recognised on the balance sheet 0.04 (0.23)

Tudalen 116

86




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

The split of the liabilities at the last valuation between the various categories of members is

as follows:
Active Members 6%
Deferred Pensioners 12%
Pensioners 82%

Amounts recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Period ending
31 March 2017

£M

Period ending
31 March 2016

M

Operating cost

Current service cost 0.01 0.03

Past service cost (incl. curtailments) 0.00 0.00

Settlement cost 0.00 0.00
Financing Cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability (asset) 0.00 0.01
Pension expense recognised in profit and loss 0.01 0.04
Re measurements in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on plan assets (in excess)/below that recognised in net (0.59) 0.29

interest

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions 0.88 (0.12)

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in demographic (0.30) 0.00

assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience (0.19) (0.07)

Adjustments in respect of paragraph 64 0.21 (0.11)
[Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (OCl) 0.01 (0.01)
Total amount recognised in profit and loss OCI 0.02 0.03
IAllowance for administration expenses included in current service cost 0.00 0.00
(EM)

87

Tudalen 117



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the accounting period

Period ending 31

Period ending 31

March 2017 March 2016
£M £M
Opening defined benefit obligation 5.00 5.24
Current service cost 0.01 0.03
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 0.16 0.16
Contributions by participants 0.00 0.01
IActuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities — financial assumptions 0.88 (0.12)
IActuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities — demographic assumptions (0.30) 0.00
IActuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities — experience (0.19) (0.07)
Net benefits paid out (0.21) (0.25)
Past service cost (incl. curtailments) 0.00 0.00
Net increase in liabilities from disposals/acquisitions 0.00 0.00
Settlements 0.00 0.00
Closing defined benefit obligation 5.35 5.00

Changes to the fair value of assets during the accounting period

Period ending

31 March 2017

Period ending
31 March 2016

£M £M
Opening fair value of assets 6.12 6.16
Interest income on assets 0.21 0.20
Re measurement gains/(losses) on assets 0.59 (0.29)
Contributions by the employer 0.29 0.29
Contributions by participants 0.00 0.01
Net benefits paid out (0.21) (0.25)
Net increase in assets from the disposals/acquisitions 0.00 0.00
Settlements 0.00 0.00
Closing fair value of assets 7.00 6.12

Actual return on assets

Period ending

31 March 2017
£M

Period ending
31 March 2016
£M

Interest income on assets 0.21 0.20
Re measurement gain/(losses) on assets 0.59 (0.29)
IActual return on assets 0.80 (0.09)

88

Tudalen 118




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Funded Benefits

The following data was provided by the Fund Administering Authority and / or the Employer
and has been used to produce the IAS 19 results in this report. Details of the split of assets
between the various asset classes were also provided by the Fund Administering Authority
and are shown in Section 1. We have also shown some of the intermediate calculations used
in evaluating the figures in this report.

Active Members as at 31 March 2016

Number ‘ Total Pay £(M)
[Total 1 0.05

Pensioner and deferred pensioner members as at 31 March 2016

Type | Number ‘ Total Pension £(M)
Deferred members 5 0.02
Pensioners and dependants 11 0.23

Funded cash-flow data provided

Months Amount Amount

Provided | Provided Used

(EM) (EM)
Employer — Normal contributions 12 0.01
Employer — Additional capital contributions 12 0.00
Employer — Early retirement strain on fund payments 12 0.00
Total contributions by the Employer 0.01
Employee — Normal contributions 12 0.00
Employee — Added years contributions 12 0.00
Total contributions by participants 0.00
Transfers in 12 0.00
Other income 12 0.00
Transfers out 12 0.00
Retirement lump sums 12 0.00
Other outgoings 12 0.00
Death in service lump sums * 12 0.00
Benefits paid (i.e. pension paid) 12 0.21
Net benefits paid out ** 0.21
*  We have calculated the expected death in service lump sums over the year to be (EM) 0.00
**  The 'Net benefits paid out' figure includes an allowance for expenses of (EM) 0.00

” Tudalen 119



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Funded cash-flow data provided — additional contributions

Description | Date paid ‘ Amount (EM)
Deficit payment 20 May 2016 0.28

Annualised pensionable payroll over the accounting period

Type | (EM) *
Period ending 31 March 2017 0.05
Period ending 31 March 2016 0.08

* The annualised pensionable payroll has been derived from the contributions paid over the relevant
accounting period

Fund return

The overall annualised Fund return over the accounting period has been calculated as 18.0%.
This includes any adjustment to reflect the difference between Fund returns and estimated
index returns used over the last accounting period, where appropriate. The overall annualised
Fund return from the 2016 Valuation date without such an adjustment is 18.1% and this
return has been used to roll forward the assets notionally allocated to the Employer at the
2016 Valuation.

Please note the returns used to determine the overall Fund return over the accounting period
are estimated figures as provided by the Administering Authority (net of investment
management expenses), as the final figures were unavailable at the time of producing these
accounting figures. In addition, please note that the asset return from 1 December 2016 to 31
March 2017 for the Employer has been taken as the index return on the published FTSE Index
Linked UK Gilts over 5 years total return index, to reflect the notional low risk investment
strategy which has been put in place with effect from 1 December 2016 in respect of the
Employer.

Note from Fund Manager
PSOW requested to be protected against future market fluctuations. The actuary has

recommended a low risk portfolio invested in FTSE Index Linked Gilts. It is their opinion that
based on this approach it is unlikely that a deficit should emerge in the future.

Tudalen 120



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Pensions for former Ombudsmen

With the agreement of the Secretary of State for Wales in 1991 and subsequent confirmation
by Statutory Instrument 1993 No. 1367, Local Government Commissioners became eligible to
join the Local Government Pension Scheme. However, the pensions of the three previous
Local Government Commissioners remained the responsibility of the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales and are met through the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure. At 31 March 2017 two surviving spouses of former Commissioners continued to
receive a pension.

Pensions are increased annually in line with other pension schemes within the Public Sector.
The basis of calculations of the Annual Pensions Increase has been changed from using the
annual movement based on the Retail Price Index (RPI) to the Consumer Price Index (CPI). The
amount of the uplift applied is normally set out in the Statutory Instrument Pensions Increase
(Review) Order. This year there was no uplift for 2016/17.

The total payments during 2016/17 were £49k (£68k in 2015/16). The liabilities arising out of
the obligation to finance these pensions together with any dependant pensions has been
calculated to be £266k (£287k in 2015/16). The calculation to determine the overall liability
has been carried out internally using life expectancy tables for males and females in Wales
obtained from the website of the Government Actuary’s Department. A discount rate, from
PES (2016) 10, of 0.24% (1.37% in 2015/16) has been applied in accordance with the Treasury
guidance that all pension liabilities should be discounted

. Tudalen 121



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Tudalen 122

92



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Annexes

. Tudalen 123



vZT1 usfepnl

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Annex A: Public Body

Complaints closed — Statistical Breakdown by outcomes by public

body

County/County Borough Councils

‘Other’ cases Other
closed Early S16 Report - Report
after Resolution/ Upheld in Upheld - Other

County/ Out of Initial Voluntary whole or in in whole | Report - Not Total Cases
County Borough Council | Jurisdiction Premature consideration Discontinued | Settlement part orin part Upheld Withdrawn Closed

Blaenau Gwent 3 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 12
Bridgend 18 10 0 4 1 0 0 0 42
Caerphilly 20 14 17 0 4 0 0 0 0 55
Cardiff 31 43 38 1 16 0 3 1 0 133
Carmarthenshire 10 18 12 0 5 0 1 1 0 47
Ceredigion 5 11 15 0 4 0 4 0 0 39
Conwy 11 10 7 0 2 0 2 1 0 33
Denbighshire 3 8 15 0 0 0 0 1 0 27
Flintshire 8 9 11 0 9 0 4 0 0 41
Gwynedd 4 9 15 0 3 0 2 0 0 33
Isle of Anglesey 4 6 14 0 3 0 0 0 0 27
Merthyr Tydfil 3 2 2 0 2 0 1 0 0 10
Monmouthshire 7 2 10 0 1 0 2 0 0 22
Neath Port Talbot 11 11 13 0 3 0 0 0 0 38
Newport 2 6 15 0 7 0 0 0 0 30
Pembrokeshire 3 9 16 0 3 0 1 1 0 33
Powys 4 18 22 0 7 0 2 0 0 53
Rhondda Cynon Taf 9 12 21 0 6 0 0 0 0 48
Swansea 5 23 22 0 4 0 0 0 0 54

94




GZT usfepnl

INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Torfaen 4 13 0 0 0 0 22
Vale of Glamorgan 16 0 9 0 0 0 39
Wrexham 19 12 0 13 0 0 0 0 47
Total 167 261 318 1 110 1 22 5 0 885
Other Local Authority
Out of Premature | ‘Other’ cases Discontinued | Early S16 Report - | Other Report Other Withdrawn | Total
Jurisdiction closed after Resolution/ Upheld - in Upheld - in Report - Cases
initial Voluntary whole or in whole or in Not Upheld Closed

School Appeal Panels consideration Settlement part part

Admission Appeal Panel

Roath Park Primary School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Admission Appeal Panel

St Richard Gwyn Catholic

High School 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Admission Appeals Panel

St Brigid's School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Admissions Appeal Panel

Cardiff High School 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
Admissions Appeal Panel —

Bassaleg School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Admissions Appeal Panel —

Pillgwenlly Primary School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Admissions Appeal Panel —

Rhydypenau Primary School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Admissions Appeal Panel —

The Bishop of Llandaff

Church-in-Wales High School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Admissions Appeal Panel-

Hawarden High School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Admissions Appeals Panel —

Newbridge School 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Admissions Appeals Panel for

St Joseph's Cathedral 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

95




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Primary
School

9T usfepnlL

Appeals Panel —
Bishopston Comprehensive

School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Independent Appeal Panel —
Fitzalan High School 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Independent Appeal Panel —
Garnteg Primary School 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Independent Appeal Panel —
Ysgol Estyn 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Independent School
Admissions Appeals Panel
(Cardiff) 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

TOTAL 0 0 19 1 0 0 0 0 1 21

National Park Authorities

Other
‘Other’ cases Early S16 Report - Report
closed after Resolution/ | Upheld -in Upheld - in Other
Out of initial Voluntary whole orin | wholeorin | Report - Not Total Cases
National Park Authority Jurisdiction Premature | consideration Discontinued Settlement part part Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Brecon Beacon 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pembrokeshire Coast 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Snowdonia National Park
Authority 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Total 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

96



LcT usfepnyL

Fire Authorities

INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Other
‘Other’ cases Early | S16 Report - Report
closed after Resolution/ Upheld - in Upheld - in Other
Out of initial Voluntary | wholeorin | wholeorin | Report - Not Total Cases
Fire & Rescue Jurisdiction | Premature consideration Discontinued Settlement part part Upheld | Withdrawn Closed
Mid and West Wales 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
South Wales 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 3
Police Authorities
Early
‘Other’ cases Resolution Other
closed after / | S16 Report - Report
initial Voluntary Upheld - in Upheld - in Other
Out of consideratio Settlemen | wholeorin | wholeorin | Report - Not Total Cases
Police Authority Jurisdiction Premature Discontinued t part part Upheld | Withdrawn Closed
South Wales Police and Crime
Panel 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Community/Town Councils
‘Other
cases
closed Other
after Early S$16 Report - Report
Initial Resolution/ | Upheld -in Upheld - in Other
Out of considerati Voluntary whole orin | wholeorin | Report- Not Total Cases
Community or Town Council Jurisdiction Premature on Discontinued | Settlement part part Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Aberdyfi Community Council 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Aberporth Community
Council 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Brackla Community Council 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

97




8¢T usfepnlL

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Churchstoke Community

Council 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Clocaenog Community

Council 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Dolgellau Town Council 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Holyhead Town Council 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
Llanbedr Community

Council 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Llandudno Town Council 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Llandwrog Community

Council 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Llanharan Community

Council 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Mawr Community Council 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Neath Town Council 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Penarth Town Council 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Pen-Y-Cae Community

Council 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Porthcawl Town Council 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Prestatyn Town Council 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Radyr and

Morganstown Community

Council 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Seven Sisters Community

Council 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Ynysawdre Community

Council 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2
Total 7 6 13 0 2 0 0 1 0 29

98




6¢T usfepnlL

Registered Social Landlords

INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Other

‘Other’ cases Early S16 Report Report

closed after Resolution/ | - Upheld - Upheld - Other
Housing Association (Registered Out of Initial Voluntary | inwholeor | inwhole | Report- Not Total Cases
Social Landlord) Jurisdiction | Premature | consideration | Discontinued | Settlement in part orin part Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Aelwyd Housing Association 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Bro Myrddin Housing
Association 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Bron Afon Community
Housing Ltd 3 5 0 3 0 20
Cadarn Housing Group Ltd 0 0 0 0 0 1
Cadwyn Housing
Association Ltd 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
Cardiff Community Housing
Association Ltd 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Care and Repair Ynys Mon 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Cartrefi Conwy 3 g 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd 1 g 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 9
Charter Housing Association 0 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Clwyd Alyn Housing
Association Ltd 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Coastal Housing Group Ltd 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
Cymdeithas Tai Cantref 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Derwen Cymru 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Family Housing Association
(Wales) Ltd 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Grwp Cynefin 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Gwalia Cyf 0 2 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 7
Hafod Housing Association 1 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 5
Linc-Cymru Housing
Association 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 4

99




O€T usfepnlL

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Melin Homes Ltd

Merthyr Tydfil Housing
Association Ltd

Merthyr Valleys Homes

13

Mid Wales Housing Association
Ltd

Mill Bay Homes

o

o

o

o

o

Monmouthshire Housing
Association

Newport City Homes

18

Newydd Housing Association

North Wales Housing

NPT Homes

= |0 |0 |W |-

W NN O [N

W [= U1 |0 O

o |O|o|o|Oo

= |0 |0 |w|Oo

o |O|o|o|Oo

o |O|o|o|Oo

o O |0 |Oo o

o O |0 |Oo o

Pembrokeshire Housing
Association Ltd

(@]

o

o

(@]

No

(@]

(@]

o

o

Rhondda Housing Association
Ltd

Taff Housing Association

Tai Calon

Tai Ceredigion Cyf

N (NN =

Trivallis

=[O [0 |0 |O

W [~ B> N O

N[O [N O[O

o |O|o o |Oo

~N = = |O O

o |O|o|o |Oo

O |0 |0 |O |-

O[O |0 |Oo O

O[O |0 |Oo O

13

United Welsh Housing
Association

No

w

(@]

(@]

(@]

[EEN

o

10

Valleys To Coast

Wales and West Housing
Association

Total

25

67

77

29

204

100




TET uarepny

Local Health Boards and NHS Trusts

INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

‘Other’ cases Early S16 Report- | Other Report
closed after Resolution Upheld - in Upheld - in
Out of Initial / Voluntary whole or in whole or in Other Report Total Cases
Local Health Board/NHS Trust Jurisdiction Premature consideration Discontinued | Settlement part part - Not Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 13 22 21 2 18 0 24 7 0 107
Aneurin Bevan 6 18 33 1 11 1 17 8 0 95
Betsi Cadwaladr 20 27 44 5 46 3 42 6 1 194
Cardiff and Vale 11 24 25 1 8 0 15 9 0 93
Cwm Taf 12 15 18 0 9 1 14 2 0 71
Hywel Dda 15 21 23 1 31 0 6 5 0 102
Powys Teaching 3 2 14 0 3 0 1 1 0 24
Public Health Wales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Velindre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Welsh Ambulance Services 4 6 2 2 0 0 2 0 16
Total 80 133 184 12 128 5 119 40 1 702
Community Health Councils
‘Other’ cases Early S16 Report - | Other Report
closed after Resolution Upheld -in Upheld -in
Out of Initial / Voluntary whole orin whole orin Other Report Total Cases

Community Health Councils Jurisdiction Premature consideration | Discontinued | Settlement part part - Not Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Cardiff and Vale of
Glamorgan 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Cwm Taf 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
TOTAL 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3

101




¢cET usfepnL

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Other Health Bodies

‘Other’ cases Early S16 Report- | Other Report
closed after Resolution/ Upheld - in Upheld - in
Out of Initial Voluntary whole or in whole or in Other Report Total Cases
Other Health Jurisdiction Premature consideration Discontinued | Settlement part part - Not Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Dentists 4 5 6 0 4 0 5 3 0 27
GPs 15 38 52 0 11 0 12 15 0 143
Pharmacist 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 3
TOTAL 19 43 60 0 15 0 18 18 0 173
Welsh Government and Welsh Government Sponsored Bodies
‘Other’ cases Early S16 Report- | Other Report
closed after Resolution/ Upheld - in Upheld - in Other Total
Welsh Government and Welsh Out of initial Voluntary whole or in whole or in Report - Not Cases
Government Sponsored Bodies Jurisdiction Premature consideration Discontinued Settlement part part Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Welsh Government
CADW 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CAFCASS Cymru 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
CSSIW 1 1 3 0 0 0 1 0 0
Planning Inspectorate 3 2 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 11
Welsh Government 4 3 10 1 1 19
Welsh Health Specialised
Services Committee 0 0 1 0 1 0 2
Total 20 0 1 0 43
Welsh Government Sponsored
Body
Care Council for Wales 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Natural Resources Wales 3 1 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
Student Finance Wales 2 6 7 0 1 0 0 0 0 16
Total 5 7 17 0 1 0 0 0 0 30

102




cET usfepnL

Independent Care Providers

INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

S16 Other
‘Other’ cases Early Report - Report
closed after Resolution | Upheld- | Upheld-in Other
Out of Initial /Voluntary | inwhole | wholeorin | Report-Not Total Cases

Independent Care Providers Jurisdiction Premature consideration | Discontinued | Settlement | orin part part Upheld Withdrawn Closed
Caldey Grange 1 0 0 0 0
Hallmark Care Home Limited 0 0 0 0 1
NHS Independent Care
Glasfryn Nursing Home 0 0 0
Leonard Cheshire Disability 0 0 0 1
Self Funding Independent Care
Broadway Care Centres 1 0 0 0
Glanenig House Care Home 1 0 0 0
Hafod House Residential Care

Ho

me 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
MiHomecare Limited 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Nazareth House 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Q Care Ltd 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Towy Castle Care Home 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 4 3 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 11

103




vET usfepny

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Other
S16 Other
‘Other’ cases Early Report - Report
closed after Resolution/ Upheld- | Upheld-in Other
Out of Initial Voluntary in whole | wholeorin | Report - Not Total Cases
Other Jurisdiction Premature | consideration | Discontinued | Settlement | orin part part Upheld Withdrawn Closed
National Assembly for
Wales Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
NHS Business Services
Authority 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 1 1 3

104




GET usfepnL

Annex B: Code of Conduct Complaints closed — Statistical

Breakdown by outcomes by local authority

County/County Borough Councils

INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

County/County Borough Council

Closed after
initial
consideration

Discontinued

No evidence of
breach

No action
necessary

Refer to
Standards
Committee

Refer to
Adjudication
Panel

Withdrawn

Total Cases
Closed

Blaenau Gwent

Bridgend

Caerphilly

Cardiff

Carmarthenshire

Ceredigion

Conwy

Denbighshire

Flintshire

Gwynedd

Isle of Anglesey

Merthyr

Monmouthshire

Neath Port Talbot

Newport

Pembrokeshire

N - RN Ol wlw ol kL]l lw]|-

N|R[IN|[O|RrWwd |- VNS -

Powys

=
(o))

N
N

Rhondda Cynon Taf

D

~N

Swansea

=
N

[N
w

Torfaen

w

[N Il (ol lol ol lol (ol Ieol Il ol ol lol (ol ol ol (ol lol ol lol o]

(el ol ol Tl (ol Ieol (ol ol (ol ol Ieoll ol (ol Iloll leol (ol Ieol Il el fe)

105

ol (ol loll lol o}l ol loll ol foll Bl (ol feoll foll i (ol foll [oll fel I fe)

= =N =N I°*H (ol [oh Ll (ol (ol (ol (ol (o} (ol (ol (ol (ol (ol (ol (el fe)

[eoN ol ol ol o) lol ol ol (ol ol ol lol ol ol ol (ol Pl (ol lol le]

(ol ol ol L N ol lol ol ol (ol ol ol lol ol ol ol ol lol (ol lol o]

o




9€T usfepnlL

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Vale of Glamorgan 1
Wrexham 4 4
TOTAL 88 3 106
Community/ Town Councils
Closed after Refer to Refer to
initial No evidence No action Standards Adjudication Total Cases
Community/Town Council consideration Discontinued of breach necessary Committee Panel Withdrawn Closed
Abergele Town Council 0 0 0
Aberporth Community Council 8 0 0 0 8
Abertillery & Llanhilleth
Community Council 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Aberystwyth Town Council 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Amlwch Town Council 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Bangor City Council 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Barry Town Council 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Bedwas, Trethomas & Machen
Community Council 1 0 0 0 1
Bodelwyddan Town Council 0 0 0 0 1
Coity Higher Community
Council 1 0 1
Cornelly Community Council 1
Cwmamman Town Council 0 1
Fishguard & Goodwick Town
Council 1 0 0 0 1
Glynneath Town Council 14 0 0 0 14
Gwaun Cae Gurwen
Community Council 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Kidwelly Town Council 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Laleston Community Council 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Langstone Community Council 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

106




LET usfepnyL

INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Llandrindod Wells Town
Council

Llandudno Town Council

Llandwrog Community Council

Llanelli Rural Council

Llanelli Town Council

Llanelly Community Council

s~ w o

O[Ol | |o |o

O[Ol | |o |o

(@} ol 1 N (ol el (o]

o || |lo|o|o

o | |o|lo|o|o

o | |o|lo|o|o

R ||~ W

Llanfihangel Glyn Myfyr
Community Council

[EEN

[EEN

o

o

Llangefni Town Council

\e}

o

[EEN

o

10

Llangennech Community
Council

Llangynog Community Council

Llantrisant Community Council

Llantwit Major Town Council

== - o

o | |- |O

O | |o |o

= =N [N =]

o oo |o

o |Jo o |o

o oo |o

N = NN

Magor with Undy Community
Council

Manorbier Community Council

Milford Haven Town Council

Mold Town Council

o |Jo|o |o

=N = W

Mumbles Community Council

18

26

Northop Hall Community Council

Ogmore Valley Community Council

Pen-Y-Cae Community Council

Pontyclun Community Council

Pontypridd Town Council

Prestatyn Town Council

Queensferry Community Council

i LN B D i A AN i RSN N ()

(@l IS ol loll ol Ioll ol I (ol (ol (ol o]

O OO ||l ||| | |Oo | |-

Ok |O|O]|lO|O|O|w]|O O | |O

Olojlojlo|o|o|Oo|Oo |Oo |Oo |Oo |Oo

Olojlo|lo|lo|o|Oo|Oo |Oo |Oo |o |Oo

o l|lojlo|jo|o |o|o

oo [N -~

Radyr and Morganstown
Community Council

o

o

w

o

w

Saltney Town Council

107




8E€T usfepnlL

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Sully and Lavernock

Community Council 1 0 0 0 0 1
Trefriw Community Council 1 0 0 0 0 1
Tywyn Town Council 0 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 112 8 7 13 0 0 18 140
National Park Authorities
Closed after Refer to Refer to
initial No evidence No action Standards Adjudication Total Cases

National Park Authorities consideration Discontinued of breach necessary Committee Panel Withdrawn Closed
Brecon Beacons 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

108




INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Annex C: Complaints About PSOW service

Our ‘How to complain about us’ policy can be used when complainants feel that we have:

e treated them unfairly or rudely; or

o failed to explain things clearly; or

e caused unreasonable delays; or

e failed to do what we have said we would; or
o failed to follow our processes correctly.

We aim to provide a first class Ombudsman service for Wales. As part of that commitment we aim to:
e provide an accessible, simple, effective and transparent process for looking into complaints about the service we give;
e respond quickly to complaints about the service we have provided; and,
e if we have got things wrong or given poor service, apologise and learn from our mistakes.

The table below reports on the number of complaints received during 2016/17 and their outcomes, together with a comparison of the position
in 2015/16.

2016/17 2015/16
Complaints brought forward from previous year 0 1
Complaints about us received 62 61
TOTAL COMPLAINTS 62 62
OUTCOMES
Upheld 11 15
Not Upheld 51 47
TOTAL CLOSED DURING YEAR 62 62
Ongoing and carried forward at 31 March 2017 1 0

6ET usfepnL

109



OvT uarepnl

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016/17

The nature of the complaints that were upheld were:

Lack or delay in contacting complainant

Delay in case referral

Adequacy of approach to ensuring those named in complaint s are given a chance

to comment

Telephone system hold message — Welsh language issue 1
Staff process error e.g. misfiling, incorrect letter template used 2
TOTAL -

The following corrective action was undertaken;

an apology was issued to the complainant in each upheld case;

the relevant line manager(s) were made aware of the upheld complaints relevant to their teams for future training and monitoring;
appropriate and relevant staff training was undertaken where necessary;

appropriate action in accordance with PSOW HR policies was undertaken;.

relevant policies / processes reviewed and revised to minimise risk of re-occurrence.

| have also appointed an independent external reviewer of complaints about my service.

This review service is available to those who have complained about my service, but remain dissatisfied having received my response. The
annual report from the ICRS, the independent external reviewer, notes that five complainants asked ICRS to review their complaints about PSOW
during the 2016/17 year and two complaints from 2015/16 were concluded. ICRS have not made any recommendations to me arising from their
work, noting that complaints are generally about the outcomes of complaints about a public service or body, rather than about the service
provided by me and my staff.

110



INNOVATION, IMPROVEMENT, INFLUENCE

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae
Pencoed
CF355LJ

Tel:
Fax:
Email:

Follow us on Twitter:

01656 641150
01656 641199
ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk

@0OmbudsmanWales

Tudalen 141


mailto:ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

15FED MEDI 2017

Eitem Rhif 6

COFLYFR COD YMDDYGIAD

Yr Argymbhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Ystyried yr adroddiad

Rhesymau:

Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad hwn yn rhan o faes gorchwyl y Pwyligor.

Argymbhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad

NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth

Y Prif Weithredwr

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees-Jones

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swyddi:

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r
Gyfraith

Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau
Cyfreithiol

Rhifau fféon:
01267 224018

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk.

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Q, ===\
oy g
Uty Con®®

Carmarthenshire

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 143



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

CODE OF CONDUCT CASEBOOK

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales has now published the latest edition
of his Code of Conduct Casebook, covering the period April to June 2017.

A copy of the Casebook is attached to this report.

Of particular significance in this edition are the two cases which were referred to
the Powys County Council Standards Committee and the one case referred to
the Adjudication Panel for Wales.

Copies of the decisions made in those cases are also attached to this report.

The committee is asked to note the conclusions arrived at in these cases and
the manner in which they were determined.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 144



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“ty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 145



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 146



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-154

Legal Services, County Hall

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(ot
Ol'l](y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 147




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

The Code of Conduct

Casebook

Issue 13 July 2017

Contents

Introduction 1
Case summaries 3
No evidence of breach 3
No action necessary 5
Referred to Standards Committee 7
Referred to Adjudication Panel for Wales 8
More information 9

Introduction

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales considers complaints that members of local authorities in
Wales have broken the Code of Conduct. The Ombudsman investigates such complaints under the
provisions of Part Ill of the Local Government Act 2000 and the relevant Orders made by the National
Assembly for Wales under that Act.

Where the Ombudsman decides that a complaint should be investigated, there are four findings, set
out under section 69 of the Local Government Act 2000, which the Ombudsman can arrive at:

(a) that there is no evidence that there has been a breach of the authority’s code of conduct;
(b) that no action needs to be taken in respect of the matters that were subject to the investigation;

(c) that the matter be referred to the authority’s monitoring officer for consideration by the
standards committee;

(d) that the matter be referred to the President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales for adjudication
by a tribunal (this generally happens in more serious cases).

In the circumstances of (c) and (d) above, the Ombudsman is required to submit the investigation
report to the standards committee or a tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales and it is for them

to consider the evidence found by the Ombudsman, together with any defence put forward by the
member concerned. It is also for them to determine whether a breach has occurred anﬁl;ﬂfd(ar@ﬁtlél_g



The Code of Conduct

Casebook
B0 —

penalty (if any) should be imposed.

The Code of Conduct Casebook contains summaries of reports issued by this office for which the
findings were one of the four set out above. However, in reference to (c) and (d) findings, The Code of
Conduct Casebook only contains the summaries of those cases for which the hearings by the standards
committee or Adjudication Panel for Wales have been concluded and the outcome of the hearing is
known. This edition covers October to December 2016.

Tudalen 150



The Code of Conduct

Casebook
B0 —

Case summaries
No evidence of breach

Powys County Council - Integrity

Case Number 201601829 — Report issued in June 2017

A complaint was received that Councillor B of Powys County Council may have breached the Code

of Conduct for members (relating to bringing their office or authority into disrepute) when, acting as
Portfolio Holder for Education, she did not take sufficient action to address the fact that a High School
(“the School”) was continuing to subsidise home to school transport for out of catchment pupils in
contravention of the Council’s Scheme for Financing Schools (“the Scheme”).

The Ombudsman found that Councillor B had acted in good faith in inviting the School to make a

case for amending the Scheme, with the intention that the Scheme would then either be amended or
enforced. Unfortunately, the School failed to provide the necessary information. Whilst Councillor B
could be criticised for not pursuing the matter, there were mitigating circumstances why she could not
do so personally. Accordingly, the Ombudsman found that there was no evidence that Councillor B had
breached the Code.

Powys County Council - Integrity

Case Number 201602895 - Report issued in June 2017

A complaint was received that Councillor E of Powys County Council may have breached the Code of
Conduct for members (relating to bringing their office or authority into disrepute) when, acting as a
Governor of a High School (“the School”) he did not take sufficient action to address the fact that the
School was continuing to subsidise home to school transport for out of catchment pupils in contravention
of the Council’s Scheme for Financing Schools (“the Scheme”).

The Ombudsman found that Councillor E had been acting in the genuinely held belief that the Council
either knew that the School was not complying with the Scheme, or should have known from information
available to it, and was taking no action. The Ombudsman could understand in those circumstances

why Councillor E reached the view (rightly or wrongly) that the Council was endorsing what the School
was doing. The Ombudsman concluded that Councillor E had acted in good faith on the basis of the
information available to him and there was therefore no evidence that he had breached the Code.

Powys County Council - Integrity

Case Number 201601962 - Report issued in June 2017

A complaint was received that former Councillor A of Powys County Council may have breached the

Code of Conduct for members (relating to bringing their office or authority into disrepute) when, acting
as a Governor of a High School (“the School”) he did not take sufficient action to address the fact that the
School was continuing to subsidise home to school transport for out of catchment pupils in contravention
of the Council’s Scheme for Financing Schools (“the Scheme”).

Tudalen 151



The Code of Conduct

Casebook
B0 —

The Ombudsman found that former Councillor A had been acting in the genuinely held belief that the
Council either knew that the School was not complying with the Scheme, or should have known from
information available to it, and was taking no action. The Ombudsman could understand in those
circumstances why former Councillor A reached the view (rightly or wrongly) that the Council was
endorsing what the School was doing. The Ombudsman concluded that former Councillor A had acted
in good faith on the basis of the information available to him and there was therefore no evidence that
he had breached the Code.

Powys County Council - Report issued in June 2017

Case Number 201601967 - Integrity

A complaint was received that Councillor C of Powys County Council may have breached of the Code
of Conduct for members (relating to bringing their office or authority into disrepute) when, acting

as a Governor of a High School (“the School”) he did not take sufficient action to address the fact
that the School was continuing to subsidise home to school transport for out of catchment pupils in
contravention of the Council’s Scheme for Financing Schools (“the Scheme”).

The Ombudsman found that Councillor C had been acting in the genuinely held belief that the

Council either knew that the School was not complying with the Scheme, or should have known from
information available to it, and was taking no action. The Ombudsman could understand in those
circumstances why Councillor C reached the view (rightly or wrongly) that the Council was endorsing
what the School was doing. The Ombudsman concluded that Councillor C had acted in good faith on
the basis of the information available to him and there was therefore no evidence that he had breached
the Code.

Powys County Council - Integrity

Case Number 201601968 - Report issued in June 2017

A complaint was received that Councillor D of Powys County Council may have breached of the Code
of Conduct for members (relating to bringing their office or authority into disrepute) when, acting

as a Governor of a High School (“the School”) he did not take sufficient action to address the fact
that the School was continuing to subsidise home to school transport for out of catchment pupils in
contravention of the Council’s Scheme for Financing Schools (“the Scheme”).

The Ombudsman found that Councillor D had been acting in the genuinely held belief that the

Council either knew that the School was not complying with the Scheme, or should have known from
information available to it, and was taking no action. The Ombudsman could understand in those
circumstances why Councillor D reached the view (rightly or wrongly) that the Council was endorsing
what the School was doing. The Ombudsman concluded that Councillor D had acted in good faith on
the basis of the information available to him and there was therefore no evidence that he had breached
the Code

Tudalen 152



The Code of Conduct

Casebook
B —s
No action necessary

Bridgend County Borough Council — Promotion of equality and respect

Case Number 201603705 — Report issued in April 2017

The Ombudsman considered a complaint that a member of Bridgend County Borough Council (“the
Councillor”) breached the Code of Conduct for elected members (“the Code”) by manner in which the
Councillor approached a member of the public undertaking her employment duties. The Ombudsman
investigated that the Councillor had brought herself, her office and the Council into disrepute through her
manner.

The Ombudsman found that the Councillor’s actions were in breach of the Code, in relation to the
complaint that the Councillor had brought herself into disrepute through her actions. However since the
Councillor apologised for her actions, the Ombudsman did not consider that the circumstances warranted
any further action. Since the Councillor was acting in a purely personal capacity and there was no
involvement of the Council, the Ombudsman did not consider that the Councillor had brought her office or
the Council into disrepute.

The Ombudsman’s finding was that no action needed to be taken in respect of the matter investigated.

Powys County Council — Disclosure and registration of interests

Case Number 201505874 - Report issued in April 2017

The Ombudsman considered a complaint that a member of Powys County Council (“the Councillor”)
breached the Code of Conduct for elected members (“the Code”) by failing to disclose a personal and
prejudicial interest at various Council meetings, during which a School Modernisation Programme was
discussed and that the Councillor continued to take part in meetings following a decision by the Council’s
Standards Committee not to grant him dispensation to do so.

The Ombudsman found that the Councillor’s actions were in breach of the Code, however as his
involvement at the meetings he attended did not significantly alter the outcome of the Council’s discussion,
it was not in the public interest to pursue the matter further.

The Ombudsman’s finding was that no action needed to be taken in respect of the matter investigated.

Saltney Town Council - Disclosure and registration of interests

Case Number 201606253 - Report issued in May 2017

The Ombudsman considered a complaint that a member of Saltney Town Council (“the Councillor”) had
breached the Code of Conduct for elected members. It was alleged that the Councillor had voted on a
matter in which they had a personal and prejudicial interest without obtaining an appropriate dispensation
from the County Council’s Standards Committee. The member concerned had obtained a dispensation from
the Standards Committee which allowed her to speak about the matter. However, the dispensation did not
allow her to vote.

The Ombudsman considered the minutes from the relevant meeting and found that it was recorded
that the Councillor had voted. He also considered correspondence from the Councillor in chlrépén 153



The Code of Conduct

Casebook

acknowledged that she should not have cast a vote at the meeting. The Councillor had also formally
apologised for this error of judgement in the next Town Council meeting.

The Ombudsman accepted the explanation and apology provided by the Councillor and, whilst recognising
that the intentional disregard of the Standards Committee by the Councillor was concerning, he was of
the view that the Councillor’s actions were of limited consequence and it was not in the public interest to
pursue the matter further.

The Ombudsman’s finding was that no action needed to be taken in respect of the matters investigated.
However, the Councillor was advised that this matter would be taken into account if any future complaints
of a similar nature were received.

Torfaen County Borough Council — Promotion of equality and respect

Case Number 201601551 — Report issued in June 2017

The Ombudsman received a complaint that a member of Torfaen County Borough Council had breached
the Code of Conduct by using inflammatory and disrespectful language on a public social media page.
During the course of the investigation an election took place and the member concerned was not re-
elected. The Ombudsman decided that it was not in the public interest to take further action on the
matters which were investigated.

Tudalen 154



The Code of Conduct

Casebook
B0 —

Referred to Standards Committee

Powys County Council - Integrity

Case Number 201504317 - Report issued in October 2016

Councillor X of Powys County Council referred himself to the Ombudsman on the advice of the Council’s
Monitoring Officer on the basis that he may have breached the members’ Code of Conduct.

Councillor X, who manages a livestock farm, reported that he may have brought his office and

the authority into disrepute when he was prosecuted by Powys County Council under the Cattle
Identification (Wales) Regulations 2007 (for failing to maintain accurate cattle records) and the Animal
By-Products (Wales) Regulations 2014 (for failing to promptly dispose of animal carcasses). Councillor X
pleaded guilty to six charges and received a criminal conviction.

The Ombudsman obtained evidence from Powys County Council and Councillor X was formally
interviewed. The Ombudsman found that there was evidence to suggest that Councillor X may have
breached the Code of Conduct and referred the matter for consideration by the Council’s Standards
Committee.

On 13 March 2017, the Council’'s Standards Committee found that Councillor X had breached the
members’ Code of Conduct. He was suspended from being a Councillor for two weeks and it was
recommended that he undertake additional training on the Council’s Code of Conduct.

The decision of the Standards Committee can be found here.

Powys County Council - Integrity

Case Number 201504433 - Report issued in October 2016

Councillor Y of Powys County Council referred himself to the Ombudsman on the advice of the Council’s
Monitoring Officer on the basis that he may have breached the Code of Conduct.

Councillor Y, who manages a livestock farm, reported that he may have brought his office and

the authority into disrepute when he was prosecuted by Powys County Council under the Cattle
Identification (Wales) Regulations 2007 for failing to maintain accurate cattle records. CouncillorY
pleaded guilty to eight charges and received a criminal conviction.

The Ombudsman obtained evidence from Powys County Council and Councillor Y was formally
interviewed. The Ombudsman found that there was evidence to suggest that Councillor Y may have
breached the Code of Conduct and referred the matter for consideration by the Council’s Standards
Committee.

On 15 March 2017, the Council’s Standards Committee found that Councillor Y had breached the
members’ Code of Conduct. He was suspended from being a Councillor for four weeks and it was

recommended that he undertake additional training on the Council’s Code of Conduct.

The decision of the Standards Committee can be found here.

Tudalen 155


http://powys.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s17369/Standards%20Committee%20Hearing%20Report.pdf
http://powys.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s16938/Standards%20Committee%20Hearing%20Report%202017.pdf

The Code of Conduct

Casebook
B0 —

Referred to Adjudication Panel for Wales

Cardiff Council — Promotion of equality and respect

Case Number 201502858

The Ombudsman received a complaint from the Monitoring Officer of Cardiff Council (“the Council”) on
behalf of a member of Cardiff Council. The Monitoring Officer said that another member of the Council
(“the Councillor”) had brought the Council into disrepute by the manner in which he conducted himself
following a court hearing at Cardiff Civil Justice Centre (“the Court”) on 23 July 2015. The investigation
considered whether the Councillor had breached the Code of Conduct (“the Code”).

The focus of the investigation was on whether an alleged comment made by the Councillor regarding

a Council restructure was directed towards a Council officer in a threatening manner. At interview, the
Councillor accepted that he made the comment, but he said that the comment was directed towards his
constituent whom he was representing at the Court hearing. He accepted that it was overheard by others.

The Ombudsman’s Director of Investigations decided to refer the investigation report to the President
of the Adjudication Panel for Wales (“the Panel”) because the evidence gathered suggested that the
Councillor did not show the Council officer respect and consideration in breach of the Code. He also
considered that if the Panel was satisfied that the Councillor's comment amounted to threatening
behaviour towards the Council officer, his conduct was also suggestive of a breach of the Code.

The Panel decided that the Councillor had not brought either the office of Councillor or the Council into
disrepute, as his conduct was not in a public area of the Court and was witnessed by only a few people.
The Panel decided that the Councillor failed to show respect and consideration to the Council officer and

did use bullying behaviour towards the Council officer.

The Panel concluded that the Councillor had breached the Code of Conduct and should be suspended as a
member of the Council for a period of one month, or, if shorter, the remainder of his term of office.

The decision of the Adjudication Panel for Wales can be found here.

Tudalen 156


http://apw.gov.wales/decision/refs1-decisions/ref-apr16-mar17/cllr-neil-mcevoy-final/?lang=en

The Code of Conduct

Casebook

More information

We value any comments or feedback you may have regarding The Code of Conduct Casebook. We
would also be happy to answer any queries you may have regarding its contents. Any such
correspondence can be emailed to Matthew.Aplin@ombudsman-wales.org.uk or Lucy.John@
ombudsman-wales.org.uk or sent to the following address:

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae

Pencoed

CF355L)

Tel: 0300 790 0203
Fax: 01656 641199

e-mail: ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk (general enquiries)

Follow us on Twitter: @0mbudsmanWales

Further information about the service offered by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales can also
be found at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Tudalen 157


mailto:Matthew.Aplin%40ombudsman-wales.org.uk?subject=
https://twitter.com/OmbudsmanWales

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



PDC / APW

PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU

ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES

DECISION REPORT

TRIBUNAL REFERENCE NUMBER: APW/002/2016-017/CT

REFERENCE IN RELATION TO A POSSIBLE FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE
CODE OF CONDUCT

RESPONDENT: Councillor Neil McEvoy
RELEVANT AUTHORITY: Cardiff Council
1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 A Case Tribunal convened by the President of the Adjudication Panel
for Wales has considered a reference in respect of the above Respondent.

1.2 A hearing was held by the Case Tribunal at 10 am on 2 and 3 March
2017 at the Cardiff and Vale Magistrates Court. The hearing was open to the
public.

1.3 Clir McEvoy attended and was represented by Mr Mendus Edwards,
Counsel.

2. PRELIMINARY DOCUMENTS
2.1 Reference from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

211 In aletter dated 9 November 2016, the Adjudication Panel for Wales
received a referral from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the
Ombudsman”) in relation to allegations made against Clir McEvoy. The
allegations were that Clir McEvoy had breached Cardiff Council's Code of
Conduct by way of his conduct towards a council official following a court
hearing at the Cardiff Civil and Family Justice Centre on 23 July 2015. The
Ombudsman’s Director of Investigations made the reference as the evidence
suggested Clir McEvoy had failed to show respect and consideration to the
official (paragraph 4(b) of the Code of Conduct), had conducted himself in a
bullying manner to the official (paragraph 4(c) of the Code of Conduct), and had
brought his office or the relevant authority into disrepute by such conduct
(paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code of Conduct).

2.1.2  The complaint had been made to the Ombudsman by the Monitoring
Officer of Cardiff Council on behalf of Clir Paul Mitchell. Clir Mitchell also
submitted a complaint form to the Ombudsman. At first, Clir McEvoy’s Counsel
referred to the council officer as the complainant in the formal response to the

Tudalen 159



reference by the Ombudsman,; by the final stages of the proceedings, Clir
Mitchell was described by Mr Mendus Edwards as the complainant. The entity
who brought these proceedings to the Case Tribunal was the Ombudsman,
whose staff attended the hearing and was legally represented.

2.1.3 On 23 July 2015, Clir McEvoy attended the hearing of the second
application to suspend a warrant for possession obtained by Cardiff Council as
the “Mackenzie friend” of his constituent, Ms Amanda Williams. Clir McEvoy
had not attended the previous hearing. The hearing took place in the County
Court at Cardiff (based in the Cardiff Civil and Family Justice Centre) before
District Judge Morgan. The application was dismissed and Ms Williams was
evicted later that day. Mrs Deborah Carter, Finance Team Manager, and Mr
Dale Skinner, Welfare Liaison Officer, attended the hearing on behalf of the
Council. Mrs Carter was the person who addressed the Judge on behalf of the
Council.

2.1.4 Following the hearing, Ms Williams, Clir McEvoy, Mrs Carter and Mr
Skinner exited the courtroom and entered the secure corridor which led to the
usher’s point and the public waiting area. It was accepted by all four persons
that during the period of time they were in the secure corridor, Clir McEvoy said
“| can’t wait until May 2017 when the restructure of the Council happens”. What
was disputed was whether the comment was directed at or meant to be
overheard by Mrs Carter and was a threat against her continued employment
by the Council, or whether it was part of a conversation between Clir McEvoy
and his constituent, overheard by the officers. It was also disputed as to how
the words were uttered — were they spoken with “a degree of spite and anger”,
or merely spoken as part of normal conversation?

2.2 The Councillor’'s Written Response to the Reference

2.2.1 Mr Mendus Edwards on behalf of Clir McEvoy responded to the report
from the Ombudsman’s Director of Investigations. He made a number of
allegations regarding the Ombudsman and his Director of Investigations. It was
alleged that the investigation was motivated by politics and that the complaint
included elements which had previously been dismissed by the Investigating
Officer. Mr Mendus Edwards said the Ombudsman had previously been in
business with a person who was a member of the Labour party (and now an
Assembly Member) and had asked a member of Plaid Cymru to persuade Clir
McEvoy to co-operate with the investigation.

2.2.2 Mr Mendus Edwards alleged that the Director of Investigations was
biased due to his previous employment in the Highways Department of Cardiff
Council and in the Finance Department of South Glamorgan Council. It was
also alleged that Clir Mitchell was obsessed with damaging Clir McEvoy’s
political career and the Labour party felt similarly. Mr Mendus Edwards asked
the Case Tribunal to investigate the Ombudsman and his staff, and to hear from
witnesses about the conspiracy against Clir McEvoy.

2.2.2 Matters commented on by Mr Mendus Edwards referred to by
paragraph numbers of the Ombudsman’s report:

Tudalen 160



a) Paragraph 38 — it was accepted that Clir McEvoy did say the words *I
can’t wait until May 2017 when the restructure of the Council happens”.

b) Paragraph 54 — it was denied that the words were directed at Mrs
Carter; Cllr McEvoy’s position was that the words were addressed to Ms
Williams. He accepted that it was possible that his words were overheard
by Mrs Carter, but they were part of a personal conversation with a
constituent. Clir McEvoy also said the words were a reference to a
political policy of Plaid Cymru, and denied that they were a threat to Mrs
Carter.

2.3 The Ombudsman’s Written Representations

2.3.1 In aletter dated 15 January 2017, Mr Hughes of Counsel made further
representations on behalf of the Ombudsman. He noted the acceptance of the
words said by Clir McEvoy and commented that the proceedings would centre
on whether the words were directed at Mrs Carter, what the words meant, and
what was intended by those words when uttered. He denied that the
proceedings were an abuse of process and noted the lack of any legal or
factual basis for the arguments raised in the response on this subject.

24 Listing Direction

2.4.1  The members of the Case Tribunal considered the above arguments
and on 27 January 2017 issued its listing direction. In summary, the Case
Tribunal determined that a pre-hearing review would not facilitate its final
adjudication. It noted that it had no power to dismiss a reference from the
Ombudsman once made; it pointed out that if a party wished to challenge a
decision made by a public body, it was open to that party to seek a judicial
review from the High Court.

2.4.2 The Case Tribunal went on to note that the reference was about what
happened in a court corridor on 23 July 2015. It was not persuaded that hearing
evidence of an alleged conspiracy against Clir McEvoy and from witnesses who
were not present during the event would assist its adjudication. It decided that it
would only hear from witnesses who were present and would limit its
adjudication to the issues which it was required to determine.

2.5 Applications prior to the hearing

2.5.1 On 8 December 2016, Clir McEvoy asked for an extension of time to
submit his response to the report of the Ombudsman. He said that the future of
the City of Cardiff was at stake. The President of the Adjudication Panel for
Wales refused the application as all that was required was for Clir McEvoy to
set out his position. On 9 December 2016, Clir McEvoy made allegations
against the Ombudsman’s Director of Investigations and made other
observations. The President notified him that these were points best dealt
within his response.

Tudalen 161



2.5.2 On 18 December 2016, Clir McEvoy required the President to
investigate and obtain on his behalf full disclosure of the Ombudsman’s emails
in relation to his case. On 19 December 2016, the President declined on the
basis that it was not her role to investigate the Ombudsman, and pointed out
that the Case Tribunal would consider relevant evidence submitted by the
parties and could request further evidence if it decided that it was required to
fairly determine the proceedings. Clir McEvoy asked the President to reconsider
without success. On 9 January 2017, he again asked the President to order full
disclosure of the Ombudsman’s emails; the President reiterated her previous
decision on 12 January 2017. It was a matter for the Case Tribunal as to what
evidence it wished to consider, but it would consider relevant evidence
submitted by the parties.

2.5.3 On 16 February 2017, eight applications were received from Mr
Mendus Edwards on behalf of Clir McEvoy. They were dealt with on the basis
of the written representations from Mr Mendus Edwards by the Case Tribunal
due to the short period of time until the public hearing was listed to take place,
with the exception of three applications regarding the listing direction which
were dealt with at the outset of the public hearing. The Case Tribunal dismissed
the other five applications which sought a postponement of the public hearing,
alleged the members of the Case Tribunal were biased against Clir McEvoy on
the basis of their gender, sought a permanent stay of the proceedings on the
grounds the proceedings were an abuse of process, applied again for
witnesses to give evidence about the wider political conspiracy against Clir
McEvoy, and for a preliminary hearing to take place. The decision of the Case
Tribunal dated 21 February 2017 set out why these applications were
dismissed.

2.6 Applications dealt with during the public hearing

2.6.1 A number of applications required consideration by the Case Tribunal
during the hearing. Three applications were considered at the outset of the
hearing regarding amendments to the listing direction after Mr Mendus Edwards
confirmed the applications were not withdrawn:

2.6.1.1 Mr Mendus Edwards sought an additional undisputed fact
to be added to the Annex to the listing direction, namely that Mrs Carter (i) is a
Finance Team Manager and (ii) has 25-27 years’ experience and (jii) had
conduct of Court proceedings in serious matters. Mr Hughes on behalf of the
Ombudsman submitted that these appeared to be relevant disputed facts. Mr
Mendus Edwards did not object, and made the point that either way the
relevant facts would need to be determined. The Case Tribunal decided to add
2.5 to the Annex — “Was Mrs Carter as at the 23 July 2015 (i) a Finance Team
manager; (ii) had 25-27 years’ experience, and (i) had conduct of court
proceedings in serious matters?”

26.1.2 Mr Mendus Edwards sought redrafting of relevant
disputed fact 2.3. He thought that “lack of respect and consideration” should be
mentioned and references made to whether or not there had been a breach of
the Code of Conduct. The Case Tribunal observed that it was not its standard

Tudalen 162



practice to include issues for the second stage of its proceedings in the factual
matrix. Mr Hughes concurred. The Case Tribunal proposed that the issue could
be resolved by simply adding a reference to “lack of respect and consideration”
to point 2.3. Neither party objected. Accordingly, the Case Tribunal determined
to amend 2.3 of the Annex — “Were the words used in a manner which could
reasonably be interpreted as bullying and/or harassment and/or showing a lack
of respect and/or consideration?”

2.8.1.3 Mr Mendus Edwards objected to use of the word “loudly”
in paragraph 4.5(iii) of the listing direction. Mr Hughes submitted that how the
words were said was a matter for the Case Tribunal to determine. The Case
Tribunal noted the deletion of the word “loudly” would not prevent it finding facts
about how the words were uttered. Neither party disagreed. The Case Tribunal
deleted the word “loudly” from paragraph 4.5 (jii) of the listing direction.

2.6.2 MrMendus Edwards applied for the late submission of evidence from
Clir McEvoy during his cross examination of Mrs Carter in the morning of 2
March 2017. This evidence consisted of five budget proposals for the years
2013 to 2018 by the Plaid Cymru group for Cardiff Council (drafted by Clir
McEvoy) and the response to a freedom of information request to Cardiff
Council made on 21 December 2016. After an adjournment to enable Mr
Hughes to review the documentation, no objection was made to the inclusion of
the bundle, marked “R1”.

2.6.3 Mr Mendus Edwards, following lunch on 2 March 2017, applied for the
hearing to be moved to a larger room or a video link arranged so those
members of the public not able to enter the hearing could still watch the
proceedings. The Case Tribunal pointed out that it was the guest of Her
Maijesty’s Court and Tribunals Service and therefore it could not require a larger
room to be provided. It did not believe that there was a larger room available
within the building and the President had previously concluded that the Cardiff
Civil and Family Justice Centre was not an appropriate venue given the
circumstances of this case. The Case Tribunal noted that the room was of a
reasonable size and larger than many tribunal rooms. The press had been
afforded priority in order to ensure the proceedings could be reported to the
wider public. The Case Tribunal had of its own volition ordered live tweeting by
accredited journalists to be permitted and had allowed additional members of
the public to be present and standing to hear the opening of the proceedings
and understand the background. Regrettably, the Case Tribunal had by this
point in the proceedings had to issue a number of warnings to the members of
the public in attendance regarding their behaviour during the hearing; additional
security and the police had been summoned as a result. It considered that it
was not required to arrange a video link in the circumstances. The Case
Tribunal did not have its own resources to arrange such a video link, and
concluded it had taken sufficient steps to enable public access without unduly
adjourning the hearing to another date, which in all likelihood would cause an
adjournment of some months’ duration.

2.6.4 Mr Mendus Edwards, following the Case Tribunal’s decision on 3 March
2017 that Clir McEvoy had breached two elements of the Code of Conduct,

Tudalen 163



applied for the proceedings to be permanently stayed on the basis that they
were an abuse of process. He accepted in essence this was the same
application as made on 16 February 2017, but with the difference that the Case
Tribunal had now found facts and that there was an underlying case to be
considered. Mr Mendus Edwards reminded the Case Tribunal of the case of
JSC BTA Bank v Ablyazov [2011] EWHC 1136, a decision of the High Court.
He submitted that despite the existence of an underlying case in these
proceedings, a permanent stay should be put in place due to the political
reasons behind a “manufactured complaint”.

2.6.5 Mr Hughes objected to the application and pointed out that the Case
Tribunal had already considered the conspiracy arguments put to Mrs Carter
and Mr Skinner by Mr Mendus Edwards, and had rejected those arguments. He
submitted the JSC case was a civil case and about one party using the litigation
process to gain a collateral advantage. Mr Hughes said it was akin to the
situation when a party uses insolvency proceedings in order to stop litigation.
He noted this case, which was about public law and the Code of Conduct for
councillors, had been brought by a statutory independent body (the
Ombudsman) to another statutory independent body (the Adjudication Panel for
Wales).

2.6.6 Mr Mendus Edwards responded with an allegation that Wales was a
“one party state”, and both the Ombudsman and the members of the Case
Tribunal were appointed by members of the Labour party. Mr Hughes submitted
if Mr Mendus Edwards was correct, the entire system in Wales was

unworkable. He reminded the Case Tribunal of its findings of fact and its view of
Clir McEvoy'’s evidence.

2.6.7 The Case Tribunal determined not to impose a permanent stay of
proceedings. It noted that JSC case was not binding upon it, though
persuasive, and emanated from a very different set of facts than those in the
current proceedings. It pointed out that in its listing direction and subsequent
decisions it had made it plain that if a party wished to challenge the actions of a
public body, an application for judicial review to the High Court would be
required. As at the date of the hearing, no such application had, to the
Tribunal’'s knowledge, been made.

2.6.8 The Case Tribunal considered that the responses under cross
examination of Mrs Carter and Mr Skinner showed that they had no knowledge
of Clir Mitchell. Mrs Carter had explained she had reported to a more senior
manager, Jane Thomas, about what had happened on 23 July 2015 on her
return to the office, and that manager had taken the matter forward. Mrs Carter
stated that she thought the manager's response was an appropriate means to
deal with the concerns she had reported. There was no evidence that Mrs
Carter or Mr Skinner had any involvement in any conspiracy against Clir
McEvoy. The Ombudsman’s staff had investigated and interviewed a number of
witnesses regarding the events of 23 July 2015. The Tribunal had heard from
all the witnesses to the incident. The Case Tribunal did not accept that there
was a collateral purpose on the part of Mrs Carter, Mr Skinner or the
independent Ombudsman in bringing these proceedings to an independent

Tudalen 164



tribunal designed to consider potential breaches of the Code of Conduct. It had,
as Mr Mendus Edwards accepted, found facts and breaches which constituted
an underlying case which required resolution.

2.6.9 The Case Tribunal also concluded that it was appropriate to consider
Mr Mendus Edwards’ application as a new bias argument, particularly as during
the announcement of the findings of fact Clir McEvoy had asserted that the
panel had been appointed by the Labour party. The Case Tribunal explained
that all the members of the Adjudication Panel for Wales had been selected on
the grounds of merit by the Judicial Appointments Commission. The
Commission had recommended the members for appointment to the First
Minster for Wales, who was a member of the Labour party. The same process
is used for the appointment of members of the judiciary, albeit the identity of the
appointor changes from time to time (in the past, the Lord Chancellor was the
appointor even after the role ceased to be held by a member of the judiciary;
currently the Lord Chief Justice appoints new members of the judiciary). It is
notable that judges appointed by Conservative or Labour Lord Chancellors are
able to hear cases involving those parties. There is no scope in the process to
select members on the basis of their political allegiance; in any event, no
member of the Case Tribunal in this case was a member of any political party.

2.6.10 The Case Tribunal confirmed that it did not have any actual bias
against Clir McEvoy or members of Plaid Cymru. It applied again the test for
apparent bias as outlined in the case of Porfer v Magill [2002] AC 357 and
judged that a fair-minded and informed observer, a person who would have
knowledge of the appointments process, would not conclude that there was a
real possibility the tribunal was biased because the First Minister was a
member of the Labour party.

3. ORAL SUBMISSIONS

3.1, The Case Tribunal considered the contents of the hearing bundle and
R1, and heard oral evidence and submissions as follows:

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales - submissions

3.2 Mr Hughes presented the report of the Ombudsman’s Director for
Investigations into this matter. The background set out was as outlined in
paragraphs 2.1.3 and 2.1.4 above. Mr Hughes alleged that Clir McEvoy had not
been co-operative with the investigation, though he had eventually attended an
interview with the Investigating Officer. He accepted that the witnesses (Tenant,
Cashmore and Williams) who had not directly observed the encounter between
Clir McEvoy and Mrs Carter was not the strongest evidence, but he asserted
that all three of these witnesses agreed that Mrs Carter had been upset
following that encounter. Mr Hughes submitted Clir McEvoy's words were
meant in exactly the way they were interpreted — that if Plaid Cymru controlled
the council from May 2017, there would be restructuring and Mrs Carter may
find her job at risk as a result. He submitted that during his oral evidence Clir
McEvoy stated that only the ruling party had influence and that officers could

Tudalen 165



not be removed easily except through restructuring. Mr Hughes said those were
exactly the circumstances Clir McEvoy described in the words he used.

Clir McEvoy's submissions

3.3 Mr Mendus Edwards on behalf of Clir McEvoy submitted that Mrs
Carter did not complain about his client's behaviour and the Ombudsman was
scraping the bottom of the barrel. He said Clir McEvoy was an experienced
politician who made waves and was the subject of a sustained conspiracy by
members of the Labour party. Mr Mendus Edwards accepted Mr Skinner was
not a deceitful witness, but in essence politics in Wales could be compared to a
number of films, such as On the Waterfront. He disputed that the words were
directed at Mrs Carter, and said that they were not bullying or harassment,
which required repetition. Mr Mendus Edwards said Mrs Carter was not a
“snowflake” and could not be sacked by Clir McEvoy. He also submitted that
the words were a reference to a Plaid Cymru policy and said to reassure Ms
Williams. Mr Mendus Edwards said Jane Thomas, an assistant director, was
behind these proceedings and Mrs Carter had misled the court in 2015 and was
not a credible witness.

Mrs Deborah Carter

3.4 Mrs Carter’s evidence was that following a contentious hearing, she left
the courtroom with Mr Skinner, behind Ms Williams and Clir McEvoy. Mrs
Carter saw Clir McEvoy take a photo of the nameplate on the courtroom door,
while Ms Williams went on ahead. Clir McEvoy then caught up with Ms
Williams. When all the parties were in the straight section of the secure corridor
before reaching the usher's point, Mrs Carter said she asked Ms Williams if she
needed transport to get back to her property, and Clir McEvoy in a tight-lipped
manner said that he was taking his constituent home. Her evidence was that
Clir McEvoy went on to say the eviction should not go ahead that day as it
might be a “flashpoint”.

3.5 Mrs Carter said Clir McEvoy and Ms Williams then continued down the
corridor; the Clir then turned to Mrs Carter and said with a “degree of spite and
anger” that “I can’t wait until May 2017 when the restructure of the Council
happens”. Mrs Carter’s evidence was that she perceived this to be a threat
against her job and was upset. She did not respond and continued with her
duties.

2.6 Mrs Carter then said she reported the taking of the photo to the court
authorities, returned to her office and as her line manager was out, reported
both what happened in the hearing and afterwards to the next senior person
Jane Thomas, an assistant director. She made two factual statements on 23
July 2015 (one handwritten and one typed), and responded to emails asking for
more details about her interpretation of the words on 24 and 27 July 2015. Mrs
Carter confirmed she later gave a witness statement to the Ombudsman, which
included answers to questions his staff had asked her.

Tudalen 166



3.7 Under cross-examination, Mrs Carter confirmed she did not know Clir
Mitchell, and did not know exactly who Clir McEvoy was (former deputy leader
of the Council) when she attended the hearing. She also said councillors
usually raise issues with directors or the chief executive, not with staff of her
level. She agreed her employment was protected due to her length of service
(about 35 years) and the need to follow due process; Mrs Carter did however
make the point that Cardiff Council was member-led and she viewed councillors
as being her employers. She found such comments from an employer
distressing. Mrs Carter did accept once shown the Plaid Cymru group’s shadow
budgets that her role was not of such seniority that it would be affected by that
restructuring process. She also accepted that she was a robust person
undertaking a difficult job and that she had not made a formal complaint — Mrs
Carter said she had reported the incident to a more senior manager, who in her
view had taken the correct action to take the matter further.

3.8 Mrs Carter denied misleading the court during the hearing. She said
she told the District Judge that the arrears were one of the highest in Cardiff
and commented that transcripts were not always perfect. Mrs Carter also
confirmed that there was a beneficial transfer scheme to avoid evictions and on
the two occasions she had needed the scheme, it had worked.

Mr Dale Skinner

3.9 Mr Skinner said following the court hearing, he and Mrs Carter exited
the courtroom behind Clir McEvoy. Ms Williams was in front of the Clir. He saw
Clir McEvoy take a photo of the nameplate on the courtroom door and catch up
with Ms Williams in the corridor. Mr Skinner stated that in the straight section of
the secure corridor leading to the usher’s point, Clir McEvoy said that there may
be a flashpoint at the property if the eviction went ahead. Mrs Carter asked Ms
Williams if she needed transport home. Clir McEvoy responded brusquely that
he would take Ms Williams back to the property. Mr Skinner described Clir
McEvoy as “emotional”.

3.10  Mr Skinner said as everyone moved down the corridor, Clir McEvoy
then directed the words to Mrs Carter “I can’t wait until May 2017 when the
restructure of the Council happens”. He thought that this was a direct threat
against Mrs Carter’s job caused by Clir McEvoy’s frustration, though Mr Skinner
observed the words seemed to have been said in the heat of the moment. He
doubted if Clir McEvoy really could threaten Mrs Carter’s job, but said he would
have been concerned if his employer had said that to him.

3.11  Mr Skinner said Mrs Carter did not respond, but was clearly upset. He
described Mrs Carter as “hard”, and usually able to respond to comments made
to her, but said her voice was quavering as she spoke to people on the phone
about the eviction. Mr Skinner confirmed that he did not know Clir Mitchell and
that councillors generally raised issues with senior staff.

Clir Neil McEvoy

Tudalen 167



3.12  Clir McEvoy confirmed that he had taken a photo of the nameplate of
the courtroom room so he could remember the name of the District Judge
involved in the hearing. He explained that he believed Mrs Carter had lied and
misled the court during the hearing, particularly in relation to two points — a)
whether his constituent had the highest amount of arrears in Cardiff at the time,
and b) whether she had recently been offered a property and could be moved
to a smaller property to avoid homelessness. He believed Mrs Carter reported
his conduct in order to deflect from her lies, and he had chosen not to complain
about her due to the pressure of his other work.

3.13  Clir McEvoy under questioning from the Case Tribunal said after he had
taken the photo, he caught up with Ms Williams, his constituent. He was very
concerned about her, particularly as she told him while he was taking the photo,
she’d had an altercation with a security guard and swore at him. Clir McEvoy
said that there was a brief conversation with the two council officers about
transport and his concern that the eviction site would be a flashpoint for
violence. He agreed that he was tight-lipped as he was frustrated with himself
for letting his constituent down.

3.14 ClIr McEvoy said he then stopped in the corridor and held Ms Williams’
arms to reason with her. He thought this might have been near the usher’s
point, but explained his focus was not on location, but on his constituent. His
evidence was that Ms Williams was threatening to punch Mrs Carter or a
security guard on the basis she would have a bed for the night. Clir McEvoy
said he told her to think about her 17 year old daughter who needed her, which
seemed to calm Ms Williams down. He stated she then appeared to
disassociate herself from the situation and asked about how to stop this
happening to anyone else. Clir McEvoy said he told her Plaid Cymru would not
allow this kind of situation to happen and “I can’t wait until May 2017 when the
restructure of the Council happens”. He was adamant that he was looking at Ms
Williams when he said these words. Clir McEvoy then said he left the building
with Ms Williams without further incident.

3.15 Clir McEvoy also explained that he had drafted the Plaid Cymru group’s
shadow budget proposals, including the one covering July 2015. He said that a
£1m could be saved if the role of assistant director was deleted and senior staff
salaries reduced. He confirmed these proposals did not cover staff at the rank
held by Mrs Carter, though restructuring generally did mean job losses. Clir
McEvoy confirmed that he normally raised issues with directors and the chief
executive, and noted that as his party was not currently controiling Cardiff
Council, he was usually ignored until his election as an assembly member in
2016. He denied that councillors could in reality threaten a council official’s job.
When asked if councillors could ever get people sacked, Clir McEvoy said that
they could only do so through restructures.

Ms Amanda Williams

3.16  Ms Williams in her oral evidence said that the two council officers who
attended the hearing were both women. She denied that any council officers
were in the secure corridor after the hearing and alleged that they stayed

Tudalen 168



behind to chat to the Judge. Ms Williams said Clir McEvoy took a photo of the
door of the courtroom while she had an altercation with a security guard and
swore at him. Her evidence was that Clir McEvoy then tried to calm her down
as she was angry at the council officers. Ms Williams said Clir McEvoy took her
down the stairs and straight out of the building.

3.17  In her witness statement, Ms Williams said Clir McEvoy said “I can't
wait until May 2017 when the restructure of the Council happens” to her; under
cross examination she said he mentioned restructuring to her.

The Case Tribunal's assessment of the witnesses

3.18  The Case Tribunal found Mrs Carter to be a reliable and credible
witness. Having considered the judgment of District Judge Morgan, it was
evident the application to suspend the warrant of possession failed due to the
amount of arrears and the history of non-payment. Nothing was said by the
learned judge in his decision about the two points where Clir McEvoy and Ms
Williams alleged Mrs Carter was lying. That of course does not mean any
possible misleading of the court would not be serious, but does mean Mrs
Carter understood the basis for the judge’s decision to be simply the amount of
arrears. The issue of whether they were the highest or one of the highest
arrears in the city was irrelevant as a matter of law. Mrs Carter’s evidence
under oath was that she did not know Clir Mitchell and was effectively not part
of the conspiracy alleged by Clir McEvoy throughout the course of these
proceedings. The Case Tribunal accepted that evidence and found no evidence
existed that supported the argument Mrs Carter was seeking to “get her
retaliation in first” or was part of any conspiracy.

3.19  Mrs Carter explained clearly why she reported the incident to the
assistant director and was satisfied that action was then taken. The Case
Tribunal found Mrs Carter made a number of concessions in her evidence and
was a honest witness. It noted the failure of Mr Mendus Edwards to put the
account of Clir McEvoy to her — she was not asked whether she heard the
alleged altercation between Ms Williams and the security guard, and she was
not asked whether Clir McEvoy stopped in the corridor and was holding Ms
Williams’ arms. Mrs Carter’s evidence has been consistent since 23 July 2015;
the only additional information has come from questioning by managers and the
statement takers. Even as early as 27 July 2015, Mrs Carter confirmed her
interpretation of the words and how they were delivered.

3.20  Mr Skinner was similarly not asked under cross-examination about Clir
McEvoy's account. His version of the incident has also remained consistent,
and the Case Tribunal noted Mr Skinner’s scepticism about whether Clir
McEvoy could really threaten Mrs Carter’s job. Mr Skinner explained clearly
why he believed Mrs Carter was being threatened, but not him — his evidence
was Clir McEvoy looked at Mrs Carter when he said “I can’t wait until May 2017
when the restructure of the Council happens” and said those words in a manner
which showed it was a threat. Both Mr Skinner and Mrs Carter explained that
councillors were viewed by them as their employers. The Case Tribunal found
Mr Skinner to be a reliable and honest witness.

Tudalen 169



3.21  Clir McEvoy'’s evidence in stark contrast to Mrs Carter and Mr Skinner
was evasive and unclear at critical moments. He was unwilling to answer the
questions which he was asked, as opposed to the questions he wished he'd
been asked. It was not until the Case Tribunal asked questions that Clir
McEvoy tried to explain exactly what happened in the corridor. His formal
response to the Ombudsman’s Director of Investigation’s report did not contain
many of the points made by Clir McEvoy in his oral evidence. The Case
Tribunal found the account given by Clir McEvoy unclear at times. It did not find
his account credible — it did not accept that there was time for the lengthy
conversation alleged by Clir McEvoy to have taken place in the corridor while
people were walking to the usher’s point. His account was not put to the council
officers.

3.22 The Case Tribunal appreciated that for Ms Williams, the most important
part of that day’s event was not what happened in the corridor following the
eviction hearing. It was not able to place a great deal of weight on her account.
Ms Williams' repeated denials that any council officials were in the corridor
when everyone agreed that they were, and her confusion over the gender of
one of the officers, meant her account in the judgement of the Case Tribunal
could not be relied upon in its entirety. She accepted the word “restructure” was
used, but said it was used to her as there was no-one else in the corridor. Ms
Williams did not mention Clir McEvoy holding her arms.

3.23  Fundamentally, this was a case where the panel has to decide whose
evidence to prefer. There were two witnesses asserting the words were
directed to Mrs Carter, and two witnesses who say otherwise. The Case
Tribunal preferred the evidence of Mrs Carter and Mr Skinner for the reasons
given above.

3.24 The Case Tribunal also noted the surrounding evidence from observers
who did not hear what was said. While it could place little weight on those
accounts as their contents conflicted sharply with the accounts of those who
heard the words of Clir McEvoy, the statements of Mr Tenant, Ms Cashmore
and Mr Williams and the reports they made at the time confirmed something
happened in the corridor. The panel concluded those reports confirmed Mrs
Carter was upset, and it was noteworthy Mrs Carter was known to those staff
members before due to her 18-20 years’ experience of attending eviction
hearings. These were people likely to notice an unusual change of attitude by
Mrs Carter, particularly as she and Mr Skinner had to stay and make
statements regarding the photo taken by Clir McEvoy on court premises.

4. FINDINGS OF FACT
4.1 The Case Tribunal found the following undisputed material facts:
411 Atthe relevant time Clir McEvoy was a member of Cardiff Council,

4.1.2 Onthe 8 May 2012 Clir McEvoy signed a declaration to confirm that he
agreed to observe the Code of Conduct of Cardiff Council;

Tudalen 170



4.1.3 On 23 July 2015, Clir McEvoy attended Cardiff Civil and Family Justice
Centre in order to speak on behalf of his constituent Ms Amanda Williams;

4.1.4 Ms Williams’ application to suspend the warrant for possession
obtained by Cardiff Council in the Cardiff County Court was unsuccessful:

4.1.5 Following the hearing, Clir McEvoy was outside the courtroom, where
Ms Williams, Mrs Carter and other persons were present;

4.1.6 Clir McEvoy said “I can’t wait until May 2017 when the restructure of the
Council happens”.

4.2 The Case Tribunal found the following disputed material facts:
4.2.1 The words of Clir McEvoy were directed at Mrs Carter;

4.2.2 Clir McEvoy intended by the use of the words to upset Mrs Carter and
make her feel her job could be at risk if Plaid Cymru controlled Cardiff Council
from May 2017;

4.2.3 The words were using in a manner which could reasonably be
interpreted as bullying, showing a lack of respect and showing a lack of
consideration;

4.2.4 The words were not a political expression:;

4.2.5 Mrs Carter was a finance team manager with 18-20 years’ experience
of attending eviction hearings.

4.3 The Case Tribunal found the following in respect of the disputed facts:

4.3.1 The panel preferred the evidence of Mrs Carter and Mr Skinner and
found that Clir McEvoy turned to look at Mrs Carter when he said “| can’t wait
until May 2017 when the restructure of the Council happens”. Both believed the
comment to be addressed to Mrs Carter alone, and the panel accepts that
evidence. It did not accept that Clir McEvoy uttered the words as part of a
lengthy conversation while he held the arms of Ms Williams.

4.3.2 The panel having found that the words were directed at Mrs Carter
reflected on the evidence that it had heard, particularly that all parties in the
corridor agreed that Clir McEvoy was frustrated and unhappy about the
outcome of the court hearing. The Case Tribunal found Clir McEvoy's intention
when uttering the words was not to reassure Ms Williams. It made little sense
how a policy to cut jobs in two years’ time could reassure a person about to
lose their home that day. The Case Tribunal found Clir McEvoy wanted to show
the power he could hold in the future to Mrs Carter and Ms Williams, and was
annoyed with Mrs Carter. The point that he was making was in the future he
could do something if in power; by his own admission, restructuring meant job
losses. The Case Tribunal judged that Clir McEvoy wanted Mrs Carter to be

Tudalen 171



upset and to sow the seed that her job in the future could be at risk if his party
was in control of the council.

4.3.3 The panel referred to the decision of Mr Justice Hickinbottom sitting in
the High Court in the case of Heesom v Public Service Ombudsman for Wales
[2014] EWHC 1504 (Admin), and in particular paragraph 42:

“Civil servants are, of course, open to criticism, including public criticism; but
they are involved in assisting with and implementing policies, not (like
politicians) making them. As well as in their own private interests in terms of
honour, dignity and reputation, it is in the public interest that they are not
subject to unwarranted comments that disenable them from performing their
public duties and undermine public confidence in the administration. Therefore,
in the public interest, it is a legitimate aim of the State to protect public servants
from unwarranted comments that have, or may have, that adverse effect on
good administration.”

The Case Tribunal also noted the observation in paragraph 85 of the same
judgement that “there is a mutual bond of trust and confidence between
councillors and their officers. Indeed, local government in this country could not
sensibly function without it.” Between councillors and council officers, there is a
quasi-employment relationship.

Mrs Carter was performing her job, one which at times is difficult and
unpleasant. Clir McEvoy objected to the action that the council had taken, and
expressed his frustration to Mrs Carter in a manner perceived as intimidating by
both Mrs Carter and Mr Skinner.

The Case Tribunal considered that the words themselves could mean a number
of things. The key to unlocking their meaning was the tone and context of their
delivery by Clir McEvoy to Mrs Carter. It accepted the evidence of both Mrs
Carter and Mr Skinner that the tone was consistent with a threat; Mrs Carter
described the words as being delivered with “a degree of spite and anger”.

The incident was a one-off event, but one which clearly upset Mrs Carter
according to both her evidence and that of several other independent
witnesses. While bullying often involves repetition, it can occur in a single
incident too by a more powerful individual to a weaker one. Bullying attempts to
undermine the victim, and is detrimental to their confidence and capability. The
guidance from the Ombudsman to councillors, and the case law from the
employment tribunal field, confirms this. The view of the victim must be
considered, but an objective view is also required. Mrs Carter believed she had
been threatened, but strikingly Mr Skinner also perceived Clir McEvoy's words
as a threat to Mrs Carter. The Case Tribunal reached the same conclusion. The
tone used by Clir McEvoy, the directing of the words to Mrs Carter, and the
knowledge that restructuring usually meant job losses combined to make it
clear to Mrs Carter and objective observers that her job in the future may be at
risk if Plaid Cymru controlled the council from May 2017. The words were not a
plain statement of a party’s political policy.

Tudalen 172



The panel noted that there was a significant power differential between Mrs
Carter, who was of a rank considerably more junior than a director, and Clir
McEvoy, a quasi employer of Mrs Carter. Clir McEvoy had channels to
complain about Mrs Carter, but chose not to use them. The incident occurred in
a court corridor and it would have been very difficult for Mrs Carter to defend
herself in the circumstances; indeed she did not do so. In a quasi employer-
employee situation, such words implying a further threat to Mrs Carter’s job
uttered in the manner found was bullying behaviour in the judgment of the Case
Tribunal. Clir McEvoy was more powerful than Mrs Carter and he intended to
affect her confidence and undermine her performance of her duties. It was
axiomatic that bullying behaviour in itself constitutes behaviour that showed a
lack of respect and consideration to Mrs Carter. The panel was however not
persuaded that this conduct was harassment as it was a one-off incident.

4.3.4 The Case Tribunal concluded that the words “I can’t wait until May 2017
when the restructure of the Council happens” was not a political expression.
Given its finding that the words were addressed to Mrs Carter with the intention
to upset her and cause her to fear for her job in the future, the panel could not
accept Clir McEvoy was expressing a political view. No policy argument was
being made to a council officer; there was no public meeting taking place in the
corridor. The words at their highest could be viewed as a reference to a policy
drafted by Clir McEvoy, but were not a political expression in themselves.

4.3.5 The Case Tribunal had no difficulty in finding Mrs Carter was a finance
team manager. Mrs Carter’s evidence was that she had employed by Cardiff
Council or its predecessor authority for 35 years. Of more relevance in the
panel’'s view was her evidence that she had been attending eviction hearings
for 18-20 years, which it accepted.

5. FINDINGS OF WHETHER MATERIAL FACTS DISCLOSE A FAILURE
TO COMPLY WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

51 The Ombudsman’s Submissions

5.1.1 It was contended by Mr Hughes that the Case Tribunal, as set out in
the Heesom case, had to carry out a balancing act between Clir McEvoy's
freedom of expression and unwarranted attacks on council officers. He
suggested Incident 1 in the Heesom case, where a statement in a public
meeting about job losses directed at two senior council officers was found to be
a breach of the relevant Code of Conduct, was similar to this case. Mr Hughes
submitted that in light of the Case Tribunal’s findings of fact, the allegation that
Clir McEvoy had bullied Mrs Carter and failed to show her respect and
consideration was made out. He said whether the office of councillor or Cardiff
Council had been brought into disrepute was a matter for the Case Tribunal.

5.2 The Respondent’s Submissions
5.2.1  Mr Mendus Edwards on behalf of Cllr McEvoy reminded the Case

Tribunal that the incident on 23 July 2015 was temporary, and not followed up

Tudalen 173



by Clir McEvoy. It followed a tense court hearing. Mr Mendus Edwards also
noted the panel had yet to analyse in detail the seniority of Mrs Carter, and it
was time to do so. He said the more senior Mrs Carter was, the more it
mitigated the seriousness of what had happened. He again submitted that
bullying required repetition. Mr Mendus Edwards said the incident was at the
lower end of the scale of seriousness and Cardiff Council brought itself into
disrepute. He accepted the conduct found may constitute a failure to show
respect and consideration, but not bullying.

5.3 Case Tribunal’s Decision

5.3.1 On the basis of the findings of fact, the Case Tribunal found by a
unanimous decision that there was a failure to comply with the Cardiff Council’s
Code of Conduct as follows:

5.3.2 Paragraph 4(b) of the code of conduct states that [You must] show
respect and consideration for others.

5.3.3 The Case Tribunal found that Clir McEvoy failed to show respect or
consideration to Mrs Carter — his conduct was intended to upset her and cause
her to fear for her job in the future. The panel considered Clir McEvoy'’s right to
freedom of expression did not outweigh Mrs Carter’s right not to be subject to
unwarranted comments or the public interest in council officers being able to
carry out their duties. The panel's analysis for convenience’s sake is set out in
paragraph 5.3.7 below but the balancing exercise was carried out separately for
each alleged breach of the Code of Conduct. For both this alleged breach and
the next, the Case Tribunal applied the three stage approach recommended by
Mr Justice Wilkie in the case of Sanders v Kingston (No 1) [2005] EWHC 1145.
The Case Tribunal concluded that it was justified to restrict Clir McEvoy's
freedom of expression.

5.3.4 Paragraph 4(c) of the code of conduct states that [You must] not use
bullying behaviour or harass any person.

5.3.5 The Case Tribunal found that Clir McEvoy did not harass Mrs Carter,
but did use bullying behaviour towards her. It reflected on its earlier findings.
The panel noted Mrs Carter managed a team of 10-12 people and half an
administrative assistant (shared with another team) in an organisation with
thousands of employees. Her role as finance team manager was two rungs
below the rank of assistant director. Mrs Carter was not a junior member of
staff, but was in the view of the Case Tribunal at the most at the level of middle
management. Clir McEvoy in contrast was an elected councillor and Mrs
Carter’s quasi-employer. There was a clear power differential between them.

5.3.6 It was a one-off incident which occurred in the heat of the moment
following a difficult court hearing. Clir McEvoy made no attempt to contact Mrs
Carter following the incident. On the other hand, it occurred in a court corridor
and in front of another council officer and a member of the public. As the
Heesom case reminded the Case Tribunal, Mrs Carter was performing her
duties and Clir McEvoy's words were found to have been an unwarranted

Tudalen 174



comment made while Mrs Carter was carrying out her job. Mrs Carter had a
private interest in not being subjected to such comments by a councillor and the
words were not a political expression which attracted enhanced protection
under Article 10 of the European Convention of Human Rights.

5.3.7 Mrs Carter’s personal robustness is not the test adopted by the senior
courts when weighing a councillor's general right to freedom of expression (for
non-political expressions); the senior courts have made it clear that senior
council officers, such as directors or chief executives, should be robust in their
dealings with councillors and tolerate a level of expression which might
otherwise be unacceptable in order to ensure elected representatives can fully
exercise their Article 10 rights. Mrs Carter was not in such a senior role. She
was a role significantly more junior to Clir McEvoy's, performing her duties. Clir
McEvoy disagreed with the council’s decision and made that clear in the court
hearing, which was entirely appropriate. His conduct outside the court hearing
however was not appropriate and was bullying; the Case Tribunal also thought
its conclusions set out in paragraph 4.3.3 above were of relevance here. The
Case Tribunal found that Mrs Carter’s private interest as a quasi-employee
combined with the public interest to ensure her ability to perform her role was
not undermined outweighed Clir McEvoy's freedom of expression, particularly
given the intent behind his words found by the panel. It was justified to make
the finding that Clir McEvoy had conducted himself in a bullying manner
towards Mrs Carter.

5.3.8  Paragraph 6.1(a) of the code of conduct states that you must not
conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing
your office or authority into disrepute.

5.3.5 The Case Tribunal found that Clir McEvoy had not brought either the
office of councillor or Cardiff Council into disrepute. The incident was a one-off
event in a court corridor, as opposed to a public waiting area, and witnessed by
only a few persons. The words were uttered in the heat of the moment and
following a difficult eviction hearing. While the conduct of Clir McEvoy was far
from ideal, the Case Tribunal concluded that it did not in itself bring either the
office of councillor or Cardiff Council into disrepute.

6. SUBMISSIONS ON ACTION TO BE TAKEN
6.1 The Ombudsman’s submissions

6.1.1  Mr Hughes on behalf of the Ombudsman contended the Case Tribunal
should consider both mitigating and aggravating factors. He pointed out its
earlier finding that the incident occurred in the heat of the moment in a stressful
situation and was a one-off. However, Mr Hughes also submitted that Clir
McEvoy refused to acknowledge the impropriety of his behaviour or that he had
made an error. There was no evidence of any insight, and Mr Hughes said Clir
McEvoy had not fully co-operated with the Ombudsman’s investigation — he had
been difficult to interview. Mr Hughes also highlighted Clir McEvoy’s
unwillingness to deal with the facts of the incident and his preference to blame

Tudalen 175




others and allege a number of conspiracies against him. Mr Hughes thought
disqualification would not be a proportionate sanction in the circumstances.

6.2 The Respondent’s Submissions

6.2.1 Mr Mendus Edwards on behalf of Clir McEvoy contended the Case
Tribunal should bear in mind the sanctions guidance of the Adjudication Panel
for Wales. He submitted disqualification was too severe a sanction in the
circumstances of the case, and it would be more appropriate for no action to be
taken. Mr Mendus Edwards submitted Clir McEvoy had inadvertently failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct, had not caused any harm by his conduct
towards Mrs Carter and there was no risk of repetition as he was an
experienced politician.

6.2.2 Mr Mendus Edwards went on to say if the Case Tribunal felt action was
required, a short period of suspension of perhaps one month would suffice and
ensure Clir McEvoy could stand for election in May 2017. He cautioned the
panel from encouraging future complaints against Clir McEvoy.

6.3 Case Tribunal’s Decision

6.3.1 The Case Tribunal considered all the facts of the case and in particular
the its earlier findings. It was not persuaded no action should be taken — harm
had clearly been caused to Mrs Carter and there was a potential risk of harm by
causing council officers to be concerned for their job security when performing
their public duties. The Case Tribunal did not accept Clir McEvoy had
inadvertently breached the Code of Conduct. It also could not find that there
was no risk of repetition as Clir McEvoy displayed no insight into his behaviour
and its impropriety. There had been two breaches of the Code of Conduct and
action was required.

6.3.2 The Case Tribunal reflected on whether suspension was the
proportionate and appropriate sanction in the circumstances. In mitigation, Clir
McEvoy had a lengthy unblemished record of public service as a councillor. He
undertook constituency duties. The incident was a one-off and occurred in the
heat of the moment following a difficult eviction hearing, attended by Clir
McEvoy in order to support a constituent. The hearing was on a topic which
generates strong emotions.

6.3.3 The Case Tribunal found there were also aggravating features. Clir
McEvoy had not apologised at any time for the distress caused to Mrs Carter,
indeed he refused to accept that she had been distressed. He displayed no
insight and failed to acknowledge his error. Rather than address the facts of
what happened, Clir McEvoy chose to make a series of serious allegations
against others.

6.3.4 The Case Tribunal concluded that although using bullying behaviour is
a serious matter, the misconduct of Clir McEvoy was not of the most severe
end of the spectrum of bullying behaviour or failure to show respect and
consideration. While the election cycle is not relevant to a suspension, the Case

Tudalen 176



Tribunal had no wish to make it harder for Clir McEvoy to stand for election in
May. It also bore in mind that Clir McEvoy’s freedom of expression had been
restricted to the extent prescribed by law and only to the extent necessary in a
democratic society. Councillors’ freedom of expression comes with duties and
responsibilities, which includes not bullying council officers.

6.3.2 The Case Tribunal concluded by unanimous decision that Clir Neil
McEvoy should be suspended from acting as a member of Cardiff Council for a
period of one month or, if shorter, the remainder of his term of office. This
period marks the severity of the misconduct by Clir McEvoy, and is designed to
ensure such behaviour is not repeated. Councillors are required to treat council
officers with respect and consideration, particularly when they are not senior
officials, and not subject them to bullying behaviour.

6.2.3  Cardiff Council and its Standards Committee are notified accordingly.
6.2.4 The Respondent has the right to seek the permission of the High Court

to appeal the above decision. A person considering an appeal is advised to
take independent legal advice about how to appeal.

Signed I Date: 14 March 2017

Claire Sharp
Chairperson of the Case Tribunal

Glenda Jones
Panel Member

Susan Hurds
Panel Member

Tudalen 177




Tudalen 178



IN THE MATTER OF COUNCILLOR ALED WYN DAVIES,
A MEMBER OF POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE HEARING

POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL’S STANDARDS COMMITTEE
13t" MARCH 2017

1. Having considered a Report of the Deputy Monitoring Officer, together with its
enclosures including hearing written and oral submissions from the Ombudsman and
Councillor Aled Davies in respect of the findings of the investigation and any allegation
that Councillor Aled Davies had failed or may have failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct contained in the report of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW)
undertaken under Section 69 of the Local Government Act 2000, the Committee made
a final determination.

2. In accordance with Part lll of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council has adopted
a Code of Conduct for Members, which is contained within the Council’s Constitution,
at Section 18. Councillor Aled Davies has signed an undertaking to abide by this Code
of Conduct. Section 18 of the Constitution also sets out the procedure for dealing with
allegations made against Councillors and referred (by the PSOW) to the Standards
Committee.

3. The purpose of the Ombudsman investigation is to decide whether there has been a
breach of the Code of Conduct and if so to refer back to the Standards Committee for
determination and if deemed necessary, to impose a sanction.

4. The Ombudsman’s investigation report, dated the 315t of October 2016 was considered
at the first meeting of the Standards Committee on the 16" of December 2016, and in
accordance with Section 18.4.5.1 of the Constitution, they determined that; the
Member should be given the opportunity to make representations either orally or in
writing in respect of the findings of the investigation and any allegation that he or she
has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Code of Conduct. (Section
18.4.6.4(b)). Accordingly, a Hearing was arranged on the 13t of March 2017.

5. At the Standards Committee Hearing on the 13t of March 2017, the Standards
Committee heard representations from the Ombudsman’s Investigating Officer, a
witness (called by the Member) and the Member. The Standards Committee
concluded that the Member had breached the County Council’s Code of Conduct for
Members, namely paragraph 6(1)(a) by bringing your office or Authority into disrepute.

6. The Committee concluded that there were no disputed facts (as outlined in the
Ombudsman’s Investigation Report) and that the Member’s conduct amounted to a
breach of the Code of Conduct by virtue of criminal proceedings against the Member in
October 2015 under the Cattle Identification (Wales) Regulations 2007 (failing to
maintain accurate cattle records) and Animal By-Products (Wales) Regulations 2014
(failing to dispose of animal carcasses), for which the Member pleaded guilty and
received a criminal conviction.

7. The Committee were concerned that the Member had continued to deny the facts and
sought to unfairly blame others.

CC-017339-AP/301098 Tudalé$i'179



8. The Committee heard mitigation from the Member and accepted that the Member had
a good Council record, it was the first occasion he had been before the Standards
Committee and the Member had co-operated throughout. The Committee recognised
the Members hard work and dedication to the Council.

9. Accordingly, the Committee found that due to the nature and seriousness of the
criminal conviction that Councillor Aled Davies’s conduct had breached the Code of
Conduct and brought his office and Authority into disrepute. The Committee imposed a
full suspension upon Councillor Aled Davies as a member of Powys County Council for
2 weeks.

10.This suspension begins on the 11t of April 2017 and ceases after the 25" of April
2017.

11.At this stage in the proceedings there is no right of appeal against the decision of the
Standards Committee, as the 21 day appeal period expired on the 10" April 2017.

12.1t was also recommended that Councillor Davies undertake additional training on the
Council’s Code of Conduct.

13.During Councillor Davies’s 2 week suspension he will not be able to take part in any
form of business of the Authority. The Member will not have access to the Council’s
facilities, including emails, buildings and contact with officers, in his role as a member.
Furthermore, the Member is unable to undertake any duties on outside bodies to which
he has been appointed by the Council (including School Governing Bodies).

Helen Rhydderch-Roberts
Chair of the Standards Committee

Dated 11" April 2017

Tutfdléri180™ rage



IN THE MATTER OF COUNCILLOR GWYNFOR THOMAS,
A MEMBER OF POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE HEARING

POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL’S STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" MARCH 2017

1. Having considered a Report of the Deputy Monitoring Officer, together with its
enclosures including hearing submissions from the Ombudsman and Councillor
Gwynfor Thomas not being in attendance in respect of the findings of the investigation
and any allegation that Councillor Gwynfor Thomas had failed or may have failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct contained in the report of the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) undertaken under Section 69 of the Local
Government Act 2000, the Committee made a final determination.

2. The Standards Committee carefully considered whether to proceed in Councillor
Thomas’s absence, and concluded (having heard evidence provided in an email dated
the 10t of March 2017 from the member to the Deputy Monitoring Officer)that they
would proceed with the hearing, pursuant to Rule 18.4.11.2 of the Constitution.

3. In accordance with Part Il of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council has adopted
a Code of Conduct for Members, which is contained within the Councils Constitution, at
Section 18. Councillor Gwynfor Thomas has signed an undertaking to abide by this
Code of Conduct. Section 18 of the Constitution also sets out the procedure for dealing
with allegations made against Councillors and referred (by the PSOW) to the
Standards Committee.

4. The purpose of the Ombudsman investigation is to decide whether there has been a
breach of the Code of Conduct and if so to refer back to the Standards Committee for
determination and if deemed necessary, to impose a sanction.

5. The Ombudsman’s investigation report, dated the 24t of October 2016 was
considered at the first meeting of the Standards Committee on the 16t of December
2016, and in accordance with Section 18.4.5.1 of the Constitution, they determined
that; the Member should be given the opportunity to make representations either orally
or in writing in respect of the findings of the investigation and any allegation that he or
she has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Code of Conduct. (Section
18.4.6.4(b)). Accordingly, a Hearing was arranged on the 15t of March 2017.

6. At the Standards Committee Hearing on the 15" of March 2017, the Standards
Committee heard representations from the Ombudsman’s Investigating Officer. In light
of the Member’'s absence, the Committee were provided with information contained
within various emails provided to the Deputy Monitoring Officer from Councillor
Thomas. The Standards Committee concluded that the Member had breached the
County Council’'s Code of Conduct for Members, namely paragraph 6(1)(a) by bringing
your office or Authority into disrepute.

7. The Committee concluded that there were no disputed facts (as outlined in the
Ombudsman’s Investigation Report) and that the Members conduct amounted to a
breach of the Code of Conduct by virtue of criminal proceedings against the Member in

CC-017339-AP/301098 Tudalé$i'181



October 2015 under the Cattle Identification Wales (Regulations) 2007 (failing to
maintain accurate cattle records) for which the Member pleaded guilty and received a
criminal conviction.

8. Accordingly, the Committee found that, due to the nature and seriousness of the
criminal conviction, Councillor Gwynfor Thomas’s conduct had breached the Code of
Conduct and brought his office and Authority into disrepute. Further, they were
concerned that the serious nature of his conviction warranted a community penalty and
that Councillor Thomas continued to be Chair of Place Scrutiny Committee despite the
investigation of him by the department which he was responsible for scrutinising. The
Committee were also concerned that the Member had continued to deny the facts,
despite this being a self-referral. The Committee imposed a full suspension upon
Councillor Gwynfor Thomas as a member of Powys County Council for 4 weeks.

9. The Committee considered mitigation (provided by the Ombudsman and the Deputy
Monitoring Officer) that there was no dishonesty or deception in his conviction, it was
the first occasion he had been before the Standards Committee and the Member had
co-operated with the Ombudsman.

10.This suspension begins on the 19t of April 2017 and ceases on the 8" May 2017, that
being the end of term of office.

11.At this stage in the proceedings there is no right of appeal against the decision of the
Standards Committee, as the 21 day appeal period expired on the 18" April 2017.

12.1t was also recommended that Councillor Thomas undertake additional training on the
Council’'s Code of Conduct.

13.During Councillor Thomas’s 4 week suspension he will not be able to take part in any
form of business of the Authority. The Member will not have access to the Council’s
facilities, including emails, buildings and contact with officers, in his role as a member.
Furthermore, the Member is unable to undertake any duties on outside bodies to which
he has been appointed by the Council (including School Governing Bodies).

Helen Rhydderch-Roberts
Chair of the Standards Committee

Dated 19 April 2017

e Clicra



Eitem Rhif 7

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU
15FED MEDI 2017

HYFFORDDIANT YNGHYLCH Y COD YMDDYGIAD AR GYFER
CYNGHORWYR SIR

Yr Argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Nodi'r adroddiad

Rhesymau:
Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad hwn yn rhan o faes gorchwyl y Pwyllgor.

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth
Y Prif Weithredwr

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: | Swyddi:

Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r | Rhifau ffon:
) Gyfraith
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 01267 224018
Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau .
Robert Edgecombe Cyfreithiol Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 183



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

CODE OF CONDUCT TRAINING FOR COUNTY COUNCILLORS

Following the local authority elections in May 2017 a training session was held for all
councillors regarding the Members Code of Conduct.

The training was provided by Linda Rees-Jones (Monitoring Officer), Robert Edgecombe
(Deputy Monitoring Officer) and Ann Evans (Senior Solicitor) utilising training materials
developed by the Welsh Local Government Association.

A total of 43 councillors attended the training.

Delegates were provided with copies of the easy use guide which has also been made
available online to all councillors.

The committee is asked to consider what further training (if any) it wishes to offer to County
Councillors on the Code.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 184



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 185



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Legal file DPSC-154 | Legal Services, County Hall
- - .
onor Sir Gar EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cowt® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 186



Eitem Rhif 8

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU
15 FED MEDI 2017

HYFFORDDIANT YNGHYLCH Y COD YMDDYGIAD AR GYFER
CYNGHORWYR TREF A CHYMUNED

Yr Argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Nodi'r adroddiad

Rhesymau:

Mae'r pwyllgor wedi gofyn yn flaenorol am adborth ynghylch sut mae'r
hyfforddiant hwn yn cael ei ddarparu.

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth
Y Prif Weithredwr
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: | Swyddi:

Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r | Rhifau ffon:

_ Gyfraith
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 01267 224018

Rheolwr Dros Dro y

Robert Edgecombe Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 187



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

CODE OF CONDUCT TRAINING FOR TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS

In accordance with previous decisions of the Committee the Deputy Monitoring Officer
arranged and delivered two training sessions on the Members Code of Conduct to Town and
Community Councillors on the 29" June 2017 and 6™ July 2017.

A total of 103 delegates attended, across a wide range of councils and from all parts of the
County.

Feedback forms were provided to all delegates. The feedback given was overwhelmingly
positive with only 3 negative comments being received. These all related to the sound system
and the Q & A session on the 29™ June.

Subsequently a complaint has also been received regarding the absence of any presentation
through the medium of Welsh, although translators were present on both occasions and
delegates were advised at the outset that they were welcome to speak in Welsh if they wished
to.

Copies of the training presentation, easy use guide and dispensation application forms have
since been sent to all town and community councils.

Members are asked to note the report and give consideration to what changes (if any) they
might like to make to any similar training that they decide to provide next year.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 188



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this

report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones

Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance
& Disorder

and

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE

ICT Risk Staffing Physical
Management | Implications Assets
Issues

NONE NONE NONE NONE

CONSULTATIONS

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Head of Administration and Law

1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners

Not applicable

Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

»,

Q, ===\
oy g
Uty Con®®

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 189



= - -
o Sir Gar B EICH CYNGorarleinamdani

A www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

v

(O N
>, f
“nty Con®

Tudalen 190




Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Legal file DPSC-152 | Legal Services, County Hall
& 154

P N
omor Sir Gar B
Carmarthenshire

(ot
Ol'l](y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 191




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

15FED MEDI 2017

Eitem Rhif 9

Papur Gwyn Llywodraeth Cymru ar Ddiwygio Llywodraeth Leol

Yr Argymbhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Nodi'r adroddiad

Rhesymau:

Gallai'r cynigion yn y Papur Gwyn gael effaith sylweddol ar waith y

Pwyllgor

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ambherthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth

Y Prif Weithredwr

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees-Jones

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swyddi:

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r
Gyfraith

Rheolwr Dros Dro y
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol

Rhifau fféon:
01267 224018

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk.

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Q, ===\
oy g
Uty Con®®

Carmarthenshire

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 193



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

Welsh Government White Paper on Reforming Local
Government

1.

2.

In January 2017 the Welsh Government published a White Paper entitled ‘Reforming Local
Government: Resilient and Renewed’. The paper set out proposals for the delivery of a wide
range of Council services on a regional basis, whilst retaining the existing 22 Unitary
Authorities.

Although the main focus of the White Paper is this regionalisation of service delivery, there
are a number of proposals which have the potential to significantly impact upon the Standards
Committee. These are;

The placing of specific statutory duties on Councillors in relation to how they engage
with the public. (‘Prescribed Performance Duties’)

Standards Committees to hear cases of alleged failure by Councillors to perform those
duties

Requiring Standards Committees to advise and train to Councillors in respect of these
duties

The placing of specific statutory duties upon leaders of political groups to promote
good standards of conduct within their group and co-operate with Standards
Committees in the exercise of their functions

Placing a duty on Town and Community Councils to consider and plan for their training
needs.

Possible changes to the Members Code of Conduct to reflect the duty of Councillors to
act in the interests of their region, as well as the local authority of which they are a
member.

A duty on Standards Committees to, as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of
each financial year, submit an annual report to the authority in respect of that year
describing how the committee’s functions have been discharged during that financial
year. This includes a requirement to assess the extent to which leaders of political
groups on the Council have complied with their duty to promote good standards of
conduct and co-operated with the Standards Committee.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 194



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“ty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 195



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signhed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 196



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-153

Legal Services, County Hall

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(ot
Ol'l](y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 197




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Ve

Llywodraeth Cymru

Welsh Government

White Paper

Reforming Local
Government:
Resilient and Renewed

Date of issue: 31 January 2017
Responses by: 23:59 on 11 April 2017



Overview

The White Paper ‘Reforming Local
Government: Resilient and Renewed’ is the

Welsh Government’s statement of intent about

the future of Local Government in Wales.

The proposals in this White Paper set out
arrangements for regional working; describe a
strengthened role for councils and councillors;
provide a framework for any future voluntary
mergers; and sets out the role of community
councils.

How to respond

The closing date for responses is
11 April 2017.

Responses can be submitted via the online
document of consultation questions:
https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/
reforming-local-government-resilient-and-
renewed

To respond to the consultation, please either
complete the online form or request the
accompanying questionnaire and return it
either by email:
RLGProgramme@wales.gsi.gov.uk

or by post to

Reforming Local Government
Welsh Government

Cathays Park

Cardiff

CF10 3NQ

Further information and related
documents

Large print, Braille and alternative language
versions of this document are available on
request.

The consultation document can be accessed
from the Welsh Government website at:
https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/
reforming-local-government-resilient-and-
renewed

Mae'r ddogfen yma hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.

Thlsl.docamert is alé)dﬁﬂable in Welsh.

© Crown copyright 2017 WG30737

Data protection

How the views and information you give us
will be used

Any response you send us will be seen in full by
Welsh Government staff dealing with the issues
which this consultation is about. It may also be
seen by other Welsh Government staff to help
them plan future consultations.

The Welsh Government intends to publish a
summary of the responses to this document.
We may also publish responses in full. Normally,
the name and address (or part of the address)
of the person or organisation who sent the
response are published with the response. This
helps to show that the consultation was carried
out properly. If you do not want your name or
address published, please tell us this in writing
when you send your response. We will then
blank them out.

Names or addresses we blank out might still
get published later, though we do not think
this would happen very often. The Freedom of
Information Act 2000 and the Environmental
Information Regulations 2004 allow the public
to ask to see information held by many public
bodies, including the Welsh Government.

This includes information which has not been
published. However, the law also allows us to
withhold information in some circumstances.
If anyone asks to see information we have
withheld, we will have to decide whether to
release it or not. If someone has asked for their
name and address not to be published, that is
an important fact we would take into account.
However, there might sometimes be important
reasons why we would have to reveal
someone’s name and address, even though
they have asked for them not to be published.
We would get in touch with the person and
ask their views before we finally decided to
reveal the information.


https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/reforming-local-government-resilient-and-renewed
https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/reforming-local-government-resilient-and-renewed
https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/reforming-local-government-resilient-and-renewed
https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/reforming-local-government-resilient-and-renewed
https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/reforming-local-government-resilient-and-renewed
https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/reforming-local-government-resilient-and-renewed

3
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed

Contents Page

FOREWORD ....ootttiiiiiiiiettee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e et ee e et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeenneees 4
1. INTRODUGCTION. .. .cttttititiiiitttieititteeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesesesseeseeseeesseeeeesreeerees 5
2. REGIONAL WORKING .....uuutuiuiiiiuinitiiiinniiniennnsaeesennnnsnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 7
2.1 Rationale for Regional Working ... 7
2.2 Considering Regional WOrking ..........ccueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 7
2.3 Proposed Functions for Regional Working............cccoooeviiii 9
Requiring Regional Working .........cooooeiiiiiiiii e 9
Exploring Regional WOrking..........cooooriiiiiiiii 15
Enabling Greater Regional Working............coooooiiii 17
2.4 SNAING SEIVICES....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt 17
2.5 Governance and Accountability ...........cooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 21
2.6 Regional Footprint(S) ArrangementS .........cooooviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 24
2.7 Preferred APProach...........oooo i 26
2.8 Funding Regional Arrangements ..........ooooeiiiiiiiiiii 28
2.9 Wider Reforms t0 FINANCE .........vvveiiiii e 31
2.10  WOrKFOrCE MALLEIS......ceveeeiiie e e e e et s e e e e e e e e e ettt a e e e e e eeeeeannes 31
2.11 PubliC SErvices BOards...........ccooouuummmiiiiiii e 32
3. VOLUNTARY MERGERS ...t 34
4. A FRAMEWORK FOR LOCAL LEADERSHIP ... 36
4.1 Shared EXPECIAtIONS..........uiiiii e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeenennns 36
4.2 Distributed Leadership ..........ueeiiiiiiiiiiieiiie e 37
4.3 Performance and IMpProvement ............ouuuiiiiiieeiiieeeccs e 38
5. LEADING LOCALITIES ...t 40
5.1 Working in Partnership with People ..............ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 40
5.2 Role of CouNCIllOrS........ooooiii 40
5.3 Listening t0 LOCAIITIES.........cuuuuiiii i 41
5.4 Balancing Local and Regional Leadership..........cccccccvveiiiiieeiiieeiiicceceeeee 42
5.5 Local Government FUNCHIONS .......coooeiiiiiieiceeee e 42
5.6 Leadership from OffiCErS........coiiiii i 43
. COMMUNITY COUNCILS......cotttiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 45
7. ELECTIONS AND VOTING.....uuutuuuuuuiuiunnnniininiiinenieninninnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 47
ANNEX ONE: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft
Bill CONSUITALION ...t eeanees 51
9.  ANNEX TWO: Consultation QUESHIONS............ceeiiuiieiiiieeiiiiee e 57

Tudalen 201



4
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed

FOREWORD

Local government plays a vitally important part in the
lives of every citizen in Wales. Councils provide the
services which educate our children, care for our
elderly, dispose of our waste and light our streets. It
faces some ongoing challenges. There is more to be
done in achieving greater consistency and excellence,
at a time when there will also be less money year on
year for public services.

Reform is essential if Local Authorities are to be financially resilient and able to
maintain and improve the quality of services during this extraordinary period of
austerity. That is why change is a necessity, not a choice. But in setting out new
proposals for reform we are committed to building a collective consensus around the
way ahead.

Since | became Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government in May 2016, |
have been involved in an ongoing dialogue with Local Authorities and their partners
about the change we need in order to create a resilient and renewed local
government. We all recognise that the future requires us to work differently, but more
importantly it requires us to work together, within the sector and with our partners to
deliver high quality, responsive and integrated public services alongside those who
need them.

Our focus will continue to be on supporting people when they need it most and
equipping our public services to respond to the opportunities and the challenges that
the current political, financial and environmental uncertainties present. But
increasingly we need to look towards public services of the future, their role, and the
role of citizens.

This White Paper sets out a new relationship between national and local government.
One where there is a mutual understanding and recognition of respective roles and
interests, and where all partners are given the space to maximise the positive impact
they have through working with citizens on mutually agreed agendas. It sets out a
new approach to reform focused on greater regional working. It sets a framework for
local government to work within, providing a menu of options that local government
can use, based on their local circumstances and strengths. It also highlights those
proposals previously consulted upon which received broad support and which we
intend to take forward within this new legislative proposal.

The Well-being of Future Generations Act with its ways of working and wellbeing
goals will help to bring a shared focus to this work, one where we can all work
together to deliver long term benefits to Wales.

(\/\,’O\AAC (Tre N “éxé\

Professor Mark Drakeford
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Tudalen 202



5
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Introduction

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (‘WFG Act’) sets the
scene for the Wales we want. It clearly sets out the longer term goals public
services in Wales are working towards, and the ways of working that public
services should adopt to achieve them. Within this vision for Wales’ long term
future, Welsh Government will work with others to set out the key priorities for
public services.

1.1.2 We are clear that it is not our role to prescribe in detail how those priorities
should be achieved; that is for those directly engaged in the delivery of
services to determine. Proposals for reform cannot and should not be
developed and delivered by Welsh Government alone. Shared leadership,
political and at officer level, are essential to secure a successful future for
local government in Wales.

1.1.3 Local government touches the lives of each and every individual in Wales; its
residents and its visitors. Local government is there to support individuals,
families and communities when they need help most, empowering them to
remain independent or take back their independence as quickly as possible.
But also to deliver services that everyone uses, for example schools giving
children the best start in life, the safe collection and disposal of waste, and
the roads and pavements we drive and walk on. Every Local Authority excels
in something, most are good at many things, none is good at everything. It is
vital we, collectively, continue to build resilience and support renewal in local
government so local people and communities are supported to thrive.

1.1.4 Following consultation on the White Paper ‘Power to Local People’®, the
previous Welsh Government set out proposals for local government reform in
the ‘Draft Local Government (Wales) Bill' (“the Draft Bill’), in November 2015.
The majority of the proposals in the Draft Bill were well supported and
welcomed by the public service and wider stakeholders as a positive step in
providing greater freedom and flexibility in the development and delivery of
services. However, it was clear that proposals for wide ranging mergers were
not supported and are therefore no longer being pursued.

1.1.5 The drivers for change however remain clear. We need to support Local
Authorities to address the financial challenges faced by public services and
enable the ongoing delivery of better outcomes for local people and the
improvement of communities.

1.1.6  Since the National Assembly for Wales elections in May 2016, the Welsh
Government has been in dialogue with local government and wider partners
about the case for reform and possible approaches we could adopt to build
resilience. The Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government has
met the Leaders and Chief Executives of Local Authorities on several
occasions on a one to one basis, in small groups and in the WLGA Regional
Partnership Boards. Officials have discussed proposals directly with groups
representing key service areas, for example the Directors of Public
Protection, Association of Directors of Education in Wales, Association of
Directors of Social Services, Society of Welsh Treasurers, and Lawyers in
local government. Three workshops took place for Local Authority officers to
discuss the proposals, we were joined by wider public service partners to

! http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/consultation/150203-power-to-local-people-fullv2-en. pdf Tudalen 203


http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/consultation/150203-power-to-local-people-fullv2-en.pdf

6
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Introduction

explore the implications for them. Through the WLGA, we have sought views
from Elected Members through a series of three independently facilitated
workshops.

1.1.7 We are clear that, in line with the ways of working set out in the Future
Generations Act, our approach to reform must continue to be developed in
partnership with those delivering public services. This way of working and the
need for reform to be a shared solution to the challenges we face as a public
service will continue to underpin our approach as we consult on this White
Paper and develop our proposals further in the light of consultation
responses.

1.1.8 Discussions during the summer of 2016 highlighted that there remains a
need and an appetite for reform, supported by greater regional working,
building on the majority of the proposals previously consulted upon. Building
resilience is essential if Local Authorities are to meet the challenges ahead.
We have heard that greater regional working will allow Local Authorities to
undertake service planning, commissioning and delivery at an appropriate
scale.

1.1.9 We want to develop a more equal partnership with citizens. The role of public
services should be to support people to live independent lives and to seek to
de-escalate demand, intervening only when necessary and only for as long
as required. In doing so, the focus inevitably shifts to prevention and a public
service which is able to put more effort into helping people to avoid crisis,
rather than one which is focused on supporting people in crisis. This is about
creating prudent public services for the future.

1.1.10 Working in this way will represent change for public services and citizens
alike. In order to support this work, the Welsh Government has asked the
Effective Services Group? to build on the ‘Prudent Healthcare Principles™® and
develop a set of ‘Prudent Public Service Principles’ that can be used by
organisations across the public service to help recasts the role and
relationship between services and individuals. We are already making hugely
positive impacts on the daily lives of people in Wales. We need to continue
on this journey to deliver the Wales that we all want in the future.

1.1.11 This White Paper sets out some of the new proposals that have emerged in
discussions with Elected Members, officers and the wider public service. The
proposals in this White Paper set out arrangements for regional working;
describe a strengthened role for Councils and Councillors; provide a
framework for any future voluntary mergers; and sets out the role of
Community Councils.

1.1.12 This White Paper also outlines the initial steps for financial reform. Work is
underway to develop comprehensive proposals for the reform of the finance
system in local government. This will be consulted upon in due course.
Annex One sets out a brief summary of these proposals and their current
status. Where there are significant changes to a previous proposal they are
discussed within this White Paper.

2 http://goy. ales/topics/improvingservices/effective-services-group/?lang=en
TUdaIﬁ[ﬁ:/ “Wales/topics/health/nhswales/prudent-healthcare/?lang=en


http://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/effective-services-group/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/health/nhswales/prudent-healthcare/?lang=en

2.
2.1

2.11

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

2.1.5

2.2
221

7
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

REGIONAL WORKING
Rationale for Regional Working

The Well-being of Future Generations Act requires us to take a different
approach to working. It asks the public service to be more holistic in its
decision making, taking a much broader perspective and recognising the
interdependencies that exist and the importance of working together and with
citizens.

There are already many collaborations which plan, commission and deliver
services right across Wales. We want to build on these successes, learn from
what has worked and what hasn’t and consolidate this learning into more
ambitious regional working. We have heard from local government, and the
wider public service, that more could, and should be done together. We want
to build on this.

Discussions with local government Leaders and Chief Executives show there
is enthusiasm for greater regional working, and it is clear that there are a
number of areas where a more systematic approach to regional working
would benefit local people and communities. Regional working is not easy. It
requires commitment and dedication; it must be built on a foundation of trust
and willingness to compromise for the greater good. It requires clarity of
purpose about what the collaboration is trying to achieve, and also clarity
regarding roles and responsibilities, governance, accountability and financing
mechanisms; not just for the organisations delivering services, but for the
people receiving services.

When considering collaborative arrangements we should think carefully
about the benefits, and sometimes disadvantages of regional working.
Regional working should achieve better outcomes for people and
communities in the short term; a greater focus on prevention and
de-escalation to bring about better outcomes over the much longer term,
opportunities to transform and refocus services on a larger scale, or by the
more efficient deployment of scarce or specialist resources. There should be
practical benefits too; economies of scale; removing duplication; reducing
complexity; simplifying activity and ensuring consistency. As well as
workforce resilience, particularly in highly specialised areas or areas with
very small numbers of staff. Regional working has the potential to offer staff
more varied experiences and career opportunities.

Regional working must result in better outcomes, and/ or improve the
resilience of services. That may mean that the cost of delivery might be the
same, but the service is more resilient: or possibly the cost is higher, but the
outcome is considerably improved: or the cost of delivery is reduced and
service outcomes are maintained. It may be that collaborative working can
result in service transformation which would not have been achieved at a
smaller scale.

Considering Regional Working

Discussions with Local Authorities underline that working on a regional basis
should not be undertaken for the sake of it. There needs to be consideration
of the appropriateness for regional working. In response, Welsh Government
has developed a series of ‘tests’ that could help inform these considerations.

Tudalen 205



8

White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

These ‘tests’ are made up of a series of questions about the nature,
challenges and opportunities of regional working. This will then give a clearer
sense of whether the function, service area or activity, or a part of them, is
potentially suited to regional delivery. It may be the case that a given service
area looks positive for regional working on one or two tests but less strong on
others. This is inevitable and emphasises the need for decisions to be
informed by engagement with practitioners, Local Authority Elected Members
and officers, the public and wider partners.

‘TESTS’
Underpinning tests

Will regional working help to improve or maintain outcomes?
Is this an area which should be done locally?

Are there linkages with other service areas?

Are benefits likely?

Tests for regional working

Will it improve the resilience of the service?

For example, a service area with known sustainability challenges such as a
significant reduction in budgets / staffing? Or perhaps an area with episodic but
critical and unavoidable activities?

Will it improve the capacity and capability in the service, particularly at senior
levels?

For example, would regional working resolve issues in an area where it has been
difficult to recruit (at either specialist or senior level)?

Or would regional working allow more strategic use of resources to plan,
commission or deliver the service on a larger footprint?

Will it make a service or activity viable?
For example, is this an area which is not viable at a smaller scale?

Will it offer economies of scale or greater efficiencies?
For example, it is more efficient to deliver regionally and has scope to deliver
savings?

Will this help increase public value?
For example, would regional working offer the opportunity to make it easier to do
the right thing or to increase ambition for what can be achieved?

Is this an area where Local Authority boundaries get in the way of the service a
citizen might want?

Is this a new service or expanded area of responsibility?

For example, where there are no local arrangements in place yet.

Is there good practice that can be expanded on?
Is there effective regional working already in place in one (or more) areas which
make the case for undertaking the service on a regional basis across Wales?

Is this an area where joint working with partners is important and where partners
operate on a different (and larger) regional footprint?

For example, is this an area with significant interaction with other partners and
regional arrangements would make joining up easier and enable more effective
integration of services?

Tudalen 206



9
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

Consultation Question 1:

The Welsh Government believes that it is appropriate to consider ‘tests’ to frame
thinking around regional working. Do you think the ‘tests’ set out are helpful in
guiding thinking? What other tests or considerations might also be used?

2.3 Proposed Functions for Regional Working

2.3.1 The proposals for mandatory and systematic working in this White Paper
offer an opportunity to strengthen, regularise and simplify the existing
arrangements between Local Authorities. Enabling Local Authorities to
delegate decisions to be made at a regional level with strong democratic
governance and oversight, including scrutiny, will strengthen their ability to
operate consistently with other partners. Decision making at regional levels,
should enable specialist and other resources to be deployed effectively to
identity and meet the needs of people in each region including by increasing
the focus on prevention. It will make integrated working more straightforward
and effective for other partners and improve outcomes for people. It should
also provide for greater alignment with the regional delivery of other services.

2.3.2 We have set out a number of areas where we are proposing to require
regional working. There are a number of other areas where we have heard
there are likely to be some opportunities for regional working, but there needs
to be more discussion with practitioners, therefore we have set out a number
of areas where more exploration of regional working would be useful.

Requiring Regional Working
Economic Development

2.3.3 Local Authorities in Wales have a range of powers and functions in relation to
economic development and the economic wellbeing of their areas. They have
considerable discretion as to how they exercise these functions and there is
substantial variation in the extent to which Authorities engage in economic
development and the manner in which they do so. Many Authorities, and
other stakeholders, have commented that the current administrative
geography of Local Authorities does not provide a natural or effective scale
for a coherent approach to economic development, in terms of both the area
across which functions are carried out and the capacity and capability of
individual Authorities to plan and implement economic development in a
strategic way. The scope to develop the conditions which attract business
investment, to skill up and house the workforce and to provide the integrated
transport and infrastructure needed to support growth is inhibited by the lack
of scale and capacity in the current arrangements.

2.3.4 The Welsh Government and local government are already responding to the
insufficiency of the current Local Authority structure by building the broader
regional partnerships designed to nurture economic development which are
emerging from the city deal and city region approaches. Purposeful regional
arrangements around the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, Swansea Bay
City Deal and the North Wales Economic Ambition Board are taking shape.
Ceredigion and Powys are not covered by city deal proposals but are leading
the Growing Mid-Wales partnership. We propose to adopt these
arrangements as a basis for the regional delivery of economic development
functions (including employment and skills development) and to include

Tudalen 207



10
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

economic development in the list of functions to be carried out on a
mandatory and systematic basis.

2.3.5 Welsh Government are seeking views on the functions that might be
exercised on a regional basis to contribute to the economical development of
the region. Comments regarding the functions, either in terms of the broad
nature of functions or by reference to individual statutory functions, are
welcomed. We would also welcome views as to whether the geography of
the proposed regional arrangements for these functions offers the most
effective structure to secure economic prosperity.

Transport

2.3.6 Local Authorities have a number of powers and duties in relation to transport
and it is widely recognised that there are merits in preparing strategic plans
for transport provision on a regional basis, as is currently the case for North
Wales, Mid Wales, South West Wales and South East Wales, taking account
of the pattern of demand and providing for integration of transport
infrastructure and service delivery. Regional transport plans are already
being prepared for the majority of Wales. We are seeking views on whether
other transport functions would be well-suited to regional delivery.

2.3.7 There is already considerable alignment between the economic
development, transport and strategic planning functions of local authorities,
with the city deal and economic growth footprints, referred to in the section
on economic development, providing the clearest basis for future delivery.
We propose to adopt these regions as the footprint for future transport
planning, recognising that regional transport plans are currently being
prepared on a different geographical basis. We are seeking views on the
proposed footprint and whether a different model might be more appropriate
for transport functions, particularly in Mid Wales (Ceredigion and Powys).

Land Use Planning and Building Control
Land Use Planning

2.3.8 We propose that land use planning be undertaken in future on a regional
basis. Between 2009/10 and 2016/17 resources devoted to the planning
function declined by 53%?*, the largest reduction of any Local Authority
service area. At the same time our expectations of the planning system have
increased. The planning system is a key enabling mechanism for a diverse
range of priorities including economic prosperity, affordable housing and
green infrastructure. It is an important facilitator of well-being. The effective
implementation of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act, the
Environment (Wales) Act, Historic Environment (Wales) Act and Planning
(Wales) Act, require resilient planning authorities with access to specialist
skills.

2.3.9 Existing regional working arrangements are limited in this service area, with
the exception of collaborative working on minerals and waste planning. We
believe that the introduction of a systematic approach to regional delivery of
planning services will significantly improve service quality, provide greater
resilience and enhance opportunities for workforce development and
progression.

4Ihtt%:/l senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s500002771/FIN4-01-
TUdal OWLGA%20consultation%20response.pdf


http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s500002771/FIN4-01-16%20P1%20WLGA%20consultation%20response.pdf
http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s500002771/FIN4-01-16%20P1%20WLGA%20consultation%20response.pdf

11
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

2.3.10 Provisions within the Planning (Wales) Act may provide the basis for the
regionalisation of planning services. We have modernised the arrangements
for Joint Planning Boards so they can prepare Local Development Plans
(with the exception of National Parks) and determine planning applications.
We have also introduced the ability to prepare Strategic Development Plans
(SDPs).

2.3.11 We do not believe that SDPs are necessary across the whole of Wales.
Where considered necessary, the preparation of a SDP should be
undertaken on a broader economic development footprint. This would allow
strategic issues to be addressed across the wider area ensuring that
connections are made to regional economic regeneration, transport and
natural resource management opportunities. The Planning (Wales) Act
makes provision for SDPs to be prepared by a single purpose body, a
Strategic Planning Panel. With the emergence of regional governance
arrangements, such as those linked to City Deals, it may be possible to use
these governance arrangements instead. More broadly, this White Paper
proposes new statutory arrangements for the consistent governance of
regional working. These new proposed arrangements could be applied to
planning. We would welcome views on this.

2.3.12 In addition to the preparation of a SDP where this is necessary, we consider
that there could be benefits from other planning services being provided on a
regional basis. We are seeking views on the best approach to identifying an
appropriate footprint for the regional delivery of services. In particular, views
are sought on the functions which need to be undertaken at a sub regional
level, but at a larger scale than individual Authorities. We consider that
functions relating to planning (other than those strategic functions identified
above) fall into this category. Ensuring that planning services are not too
distant from citizens and communities is essential.

2.3.13 The initial scope of the planning functions to be delivered at a sub regional
level is identified below. They have been identified to maintain the link
between LDP preparation and decisions on planning applications. We have
also sought to identify the related specialist advice essential for efficient and
high quality decision making.

e Preparation of LDP

e Setting and collecting Community Infrastructure Levy

e Development Management (processing of planning applications and
enforcement functions)

e Specialist advice on the following services:

Minerals and waste

Built environment conservation services

Green Infrastructure, landscape and ecology

Viability and S106 agreements (planning obligations)

Urban Design

Highways development management

o O O O O O

2.3.14 Democratic accountability is a fundamental principle of the planning system.
We do not wish to undermine this. We believe that there are two options to
maintain accountability under a regional delivery approach. Existing

Tudalen 209



12
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

legislative powers could be used to create Joint Planning Boards (Joint
Planning Board Model) which would be made up of Councillors from each
constituent Authority, with decisions on the LDP and planning applications
being made by the Board. Similarly, regional decision-making by elected
members could also be undertaken through the new ‘Joint Governance
Committee’ proposed in this White Paper. This would ensure that the
arrangements for planning were aligned with the proposed arrangements for
other services. An alternative approach would see responsibility for planning
decisions remaining with existing principal Authority / National Park Authority
with the preparation of the LDP and processing of applications undertaken by
officials at the regional level. In this way the regional service delivery unit
would service a number of planning committees (shared service model).

2.3.15 We would welcome views on the planning activities identified for delivery at
the regional level and whether there are further functions relating to planning
that could be best exercised on a regional basis and any further suggestions
you may have.

Local Authority Building Control

2.3.16 The issues facing local government building control are similar to those faced
by planning departments and include reduced resources, difficulties in
encouraging new entrants and an absence of specialist skills particularly in
smaller authorities. Limited cooperative arrangements exist currently.

2.3.17 The Building Control service currently sit mainly within planning or public
protection departments. The general trend appears to be towards co-location
with the planning function given planning and building control are the main
mechanisms to manage development. For this reason we propose that Local
Authority building control services be delivered regionally on the same
footprint.

Social Services

2.3.18 Social services covers a range of functions some of which are more closely
inter-connected than others, and, at the margins, Local Authorities define
different actions under the term social services. There are essential links to
health and also links to housing, education and the police. These functions
touch upon some of the most vulnerable in our society, and will be important
to everyone at some point in their lives. These are services where there are
recognised challenges to meet and the desire to change the way in which
services operate to meet them, including planning and operating at greater
scale. Consistency in decision making and delivery is increasingly important.

2.3.19 The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act required partnership
arrangements to be made in each Local Health Board area, under the
direction of a Regional Partnership Board. The Partnership Boards have
representation from Health Boards, Local Authorities (elected and officer)
and service users. These Partnerships have been established for defined
functions, focussed particularly on areas where successful integration
between local government and health is essential for the provision of
effective services for citizens. The Social Services and Well-being (Wales)
Act and supporting statutory guidance requires joint planning, commissioning
and the use of pooled budgets between health and local government. The
existing guidance recognises that social service users often are affected by

Tudalen 2Pnneed more than one intervention and partners are expected therefore to



13
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

extend their partnership arrangements beyond the priority areas in order to
improve outcomes for the population as a whole.

2.3.20 The governance arrangements described in this White Paper will need to
support integration with the Local Heath Board and other partnership
working.

Education Improvement

2.3.21 Education improvement encompasses a range of functions carried out by
schools, Local Authorities, and regional consortia in Wales. The roles and
functions of each tier are governed by the National Model for Regional
Working which was agreed in autumn 2013 to accelerate the rate of progress
in improving educational outcomes in schools.

2.3.22 There are currently four regional education consortia operating in Wales,
three as joint committees of the constituent authorities and one (for south
east Wales) as a joint management company serving the constituent
Authorities.

2.3.23 Itis recognised that the position in relation to educational improvement is
complex, both in terms of the different range of improvement services
provided by the existing consortia and the current regional structures. There
are considerable variations in the range of improvement services provided by
the existing consortia and their geography does not align neatly with the
footprints for the delivery of other services.

2.3.24 Where there are existing regional arrangements in place, the proposals in
this is White Paper are intended to build upon them and provide a prompt to
re-examine them. There remains flexibility to scale up activity to larger
geographies by working across two or more regions where appropriate. In
the case of education improvement, Health Board areas might provide a
starting point for this although it is also recognised that certain authorities fall
into different Health Board and consortia areas.

2.3.25 Itis essential that the education sector, especially post-16 education,
responds to the needs of the public sector workforce if local government is to
be able to recruit staff in the future with appropriate Welsh language skills.
The education sector will need information about the current and future
requirements for Welsh language skills more widely so that the sector can
respond to meet demand. This information could be collected and considered
regionally with plans developed across the region to ensure sufficient training
for Welsh language skills are available. This links to local government’s role
as a key employer, not only directly but through their contract and partnership
agreements. Planning in this way could have an essential role in encouraging
young people to maintain and develop their Welsh language skills on leaving
statutory education for use in the workplace.

2.3.26 Views are sought on what approach might offer the best fit for the regional
delivery of education improvement services and on the range and nature of
improvement services which could be most effectively delivered at a regional
level.

Tudalen 211



14
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

Additional Learning Needs

2.3.27 The Welsh Government introduced the Additional Learning Needs and
Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill (‘the ALNET Bill’) on 12 December 2016. This
bill will put in place:

¢ A single statutory framework to support children and young people aged
0 to 25 with additional learning needs (ALN) in schools and further
education, making it easier for them as they move through the system,
replacing the different approaches and legislation for learners with
special educational needs (SEN) up to the age of 16 and learners with
learning difficulties and/or difficulties in post-16 education. It will create a
single plan (the individual development plan) to replace the existing
range of statutory and non-statutory plans for learners, ensuring equity of
rights regardless of the learner’s level of need or the education setting
they attend,;

e An integrated, collaborative process of assessment, planning and
monitoring with a focus on early intervention, including duties on Health
Boards and Local Authorities to collaborate with each other to meet a
child or young person’s ALN to enable them to reach their full potential;
and

e A fair and transparent system for providing information and advice and
for resolving concerns and appeals, with Local Authorities required to
make arrangements for avoiding and resolving disagreements.

2.3.28 Among other functions, the ALNET Bill will transfer responsibility to Local
Authorities for maintaining individual development plans for learners who
require specialist post-16 placements. Overwhelmingly, these will be learners
with whom the Local Authority has been involved throughout their school
based education (and for whom they will have maintained a Statement of
SEN under the current system and will have maintained an individual
development plan under the new system). In many cases, Local Authorities
will also have on-going social care involvement with these young people. The
transfer of this responsibility from Welsh Government to Local Authorities will
improve the transition process by encouraging Local Authorities, Health
Boards and post-16 providers to work together to plan for and secure
support, and to improve local provision relevant to the individual needs of
children and young people with ALN. Funding for these placements will be
transferred from Welsh Government to Local Authorities.

2.3.29 Greater collaborative working on a regional and multi-agency basis will be
vital to deliver improved quality services for learners with ALN going forward.
This process has already begun, through the ALN Innovation Fund launched
in 2016, which focuses on the development of creative, collaborative delivery
models and the growth of relationships between education, social services,
health and further education.

2.3.30 The proposals for local government reform and the development of robust,
accountable regional arrangements on a statutory basis, present significant
opportunities to support more effective implementation of the ALNET Bill and
the wider ALN transformation programme.

2.3.31 Although any legislation on Local government reform is not yet confirmed, we
f‘f“'d aim to ensure the implementation timetable was complementary and
Tudalen 2



15
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

we would encourage early action by Local Authorities to get ahead of the
statutory requirements for ALN coming into force.

2.3.32 Views are sought on what elements of a Local Authority’s ALN functions, as
proposed in Part 2 of the ALNET Bill®, might offer the best fit for effective
regional delivery.

Public Protection

2.3.33 We propose that public protection functions should be undertaken regionally.
This builds on the general direction of travel in this service area but
mandating a requirement to work regionally will provide further impetus to
current joint working. This will also provide for the maximum level of
resilience and a greater scope for workforce development and progression.

2.3.34 Public protection is a broad service area and Local Authorities currently
include different functions under this umbrella. It encompasses primarily:

a. environmental health: including, but not limited to, pollution control,
food safety, food hygiene, health and safety, noise control;

b. trading standards: including, but not limited to, consumer protection,
product safety, rogue trading, animal welfare; and

c. licensing: including, but not limited to the licensing of taxis, street
trading, entertainment, sex establishments.

2.3.35 However, we welcome views on the scope of functions to be included under
the term ‘public protection’. We will analyse responses which will help to
inform proposals. We will also work with the WLGA / Local Authority Public
Protection Cymru Change Programme to identify a list of core functions to be
mandated.

Consultation Question 2:

In this White Paper the Welsh Government has set out a number of areas which it
believes should be required to be delivered on a regional basis. Do you agree that
these areas should be delivered regionally? What practical considerations should we
consider in taking these proposals forward? What other ‘ancillary’ powers would be
required to ensure the effective exercise of the functions exercised regionally?

Exploring Regional Working
Housing

2.3.36 The Local Authority role with regard to housing operates at strategic and
operational levels. At the strategic level, local authorities are, for example,
charged with assessing local housing needs, which informs plans for
investment in housing supply. Those authorities that have retained their own
stock also need to determine the level of investment in maintaining that
stock. They also support initiatives designed to make the best possible use of
existing homes e.g. by bringing empty properties back into use.

2.3.37 The operational level covers a wider range of functions which are often staff
intensive and which will continue to need to be delivered locally. These
include landlord functions, statutory homelessness services, providing
housing-related support and the enforcement of housing law including, for

> http://mww.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/pri-ld10862/pri-ld10862-e. pdf

Tudalen 213


http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/pri-ld10862/pri-ld10862-e.pdf

16
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

example, the Housing, Health and Safety Rating System, Rent Smart Wales,
and the regulation of Mobile Homes sites. Rent Smart Wales is a good
example of a locally delivered service supported by a single national
Information Technology platform hosted by Cardiff on behalf of all authorities.

2.3.38 Good models of regional collaboration already exist and provide a foundation
on which to build stronger delivery structures. For example, the Supporting
People programme operates under six Regional Collaborative Committees.
As Local Authorities and their partners in Public Services Boards and
Regional Partnership Boards begin to implement the wellbeing plans they are
developing, the preventative aspects of this programme need to be aligned
more closely with social services commissioning, which is often targeted at
the same vulnerable groups.

2.3.39 Local Authorities have identified housing supply as a key component of the
economic development strategies emerging under the proposed cross-
authority city deals. If current housing shortages are to be tackled effectively,
these house building interventions need to be aligned with the structures
which support land use planning.

2.3.40 Further consideration will need to be given to how the strategic aspects of
housing delivered on a regional footprint can most effectively interface with
the more staff intensive services such as tackling homelessness, which will
continue to be delivered locally.

Waste

2.3.41 Waste and recycling is a service area with a history of significant joint
working among Local Authorities, for example in relation to food and residual
waste treatment. There is potential to build on this existing activity and
expand regional working to other parts of this service area, for example in
relation to arrangements for waste and recycling collection. In considering the
scope to do this, we recognise the profile of waste collection issues locally
and the different arrangements currently in place, including different service
delivery models and contracts. At the same time, we also recognise there is
real scope for efficiency savings and further reductions in carbon emissions
over time and an opportunity to refocus on providing a more consistent
experience for citizens.

2.3.42 We would welcome views on the potential for greater regional working in this
area and any particular considerations we should have in mind. We are also
interested in the opportunity, over time, to consolidate existing regional waste
activity on a more consistent footprint with other service areas.

Community Safety and Youth Justice

2.3.43 Community Safety Partnerships and Youth Offending Teams are not formally
devolved, although they rely heavily on devolved services, such as health,
education and social services. If other public services are being delivered on
a regional footprint there will be a case for Community Safety Partnerships
and Youth Offending Teams to consider moving to a similar footprint that
matches the services which support their work.

Consultation Question 3:

In this White Paper the Welsh Government has set out a number of areas which it

believes could also be delivered on a regional basis. Do you think that Local
Tudalemnodiled should also be required to work regionally to deliver these functions? Are



17
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

there any other practical considerations we should be aware of?

Consultation Question 4:
Are there any other functions that would benefit from a systematic approach to
regional working?

Consultation Question 5:

Welsh Government believes that, subject to engagement with local government and
other partners, there should be flexibility to enable Welsh Ministers to mandate
additional functions to be undertaken regionally. Do you agree or disagree? Why?

Enabling Greater Regional Working

2.3.44 This is a starting point, not an end point. Local government has told us it is
ambitious in the area of regional working and prepared to do more than the
minimum prescribed by the Welsh Government where there is a strong case
for regional working. We would encourage Local Authorities to show
leadership in this area and identify where they can come together and work
regionally on other services. It will be for local determination to take forward
regional working in additional service areas or functions. We will ensure that
where localities choose to be more ambitious with their regional
arrangements there is sufficient flexibility in the system to enable this.

Consultation Question 6:

The Welsh Government believes that the new arrangements should not prevent
Local Authorities using their existing powers to undertake additional functions
regionally. Do you agree or disagree? Why?

2.4  Sharing Services

2.4.1 The operation of public services relies on underpinning supporting services,
some transactional, some specialist, some externally facing and some less
so. The Welsh Government considers many of the reasons for greater
regional working hold true for these supporting services. The tests set out at
paragraph 2.2.1 are also valid for many of these services. They also have the
potential to yield significant savings which can be redirected into front-line
service delivery. Indirectly, authorities and services which carry high
transaction costs are subsidised by those who carry out these activities more
efficiently. This is not sustainable.

2.4.2 Regional working arrangements will present opportunities for Local
Authorities to build sustainable services. As part of this there will be scope to
share Welsh language capacity to ensure those wishing to receive services
through the medium of Welsh are able to do so. This will be enabled by both
the sharing of staff and professionals delivering services and the sharing of
Welsh language capacity in corporate services. In this way, and in line with
the Welsh Government’s previous commitment, Local Authorities working
together can be a catalyst for ambitious improvements in the standard of
Welsh language services. There is also an opportunity for Local Authorities to
come together to exploit digital technology to open up a wider range of
services to delivery through the medium of Welsh.

2.4.3 Consideration of the implications for the Welsh language must be built into
regional working arrangements as Local Authorities consider their role in the

Tudalen 215



18
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

delivery of A million Welsh speakers by 2050.°

2.4.4 Language, Work and Bilingual Services,’ the Report of the Working Group on
the Welsh Language and Local Government was published in June 2016. A
move towards greater regional working will enable many of the Report’s
recommendations to be taken forward. For example supporting a
collaborative approach on leadership, making Welsh language a firm part of
the regional economic development agenda will be important for the
resilience of communities where Welsh is strong.

2.4.5 Many respondents to our consultation on the draft Welsh language strategy,
A million Welsh Speakers by 2050, emphasised the need to take different
approaches in different areas in terms of growing the numbers of Welsh
speakers and promoting use of the language. At the same time, some
respondents reminded us that as the nature of modern society changes and
the way people live their lives change, we will need to understand how this
has an impact on language use. For example, as people become
increasingly mobile and as communication networks expand, there is a need
for language planning to happen increasingly at a regional, as well as local
level.

2.4.6 The proposed approach to regional arrangements set out in this paper will
mean Local Authorities will need to consider how back office and
administrative services can most effectively support regional working and
create opportunities for the sharing of supporting services. Our aim to
support resilience and renewal in local government includes consideration of
how and when we should expect to develop shared approaches to supporting
or administrative services. We recognise that supporting services would not
necessarily need to mirror any new regional arrangements. Flexibility in our
approach to regional arrangements, discussed in detail in section 2.7, will
allow for consideration of different patterns for regional working. Some
supporting and administrative services could be sensibly undertaken on a
pan-Wales basis. We also see this as an area offering scope to integrate
across public services, for example encompassing health or third sector
systems.

2.4.7 Even where services remain local or are undertaken regionally, there are
likely to be significant operational benefits and cost benefits as a result of
adopting national common standards, for example in relation to cyber
protection and technology delivery. The rapid development and uptake of
cloud based solutions for the provision of key ICT services such as e-mail
and data storage provides further scope for efficiency and cost savings.
Working together to realise these benefits and building any new joint
supporting services on cloud-based technologies is likely to secure greater
economies of scale. Similarly, whatever scale a supporting service was being
undertaken at, there are real opportunities to enable efficiencies by the
adoption of open data standards to allow easy sharing and exploitation of
data resources.

2.4.8 Local government has successfully introduced some shared back office
services, for example, providing back office functions to a range of smaller
organisations, shared legal services in West Wales, and local government
pensions’ services. But other opportunities to share services have been

® htt s;éiiré/uItations.gov.wales/consuItations/welsh-Ianguage-strategy
TUdaﬁﬁ:/ Quales/docs/dsjlg/publications/160614-language-work-bilingual-services-en.pdf


https://consultations.gov.wales/consultations/welsh-language-strategy
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/160614-language-work-bilingual-services-en.pdf

19
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

explored, and not taken forward.

2.4.9 The KPMG report® in June 2015 showed that variation existed in the cost per
transaction for back office functions across different Local Authorities which
could not be explained simply by reference to the nature of the service or the
size of the Local Authority. It illustrated that establishing some form of back
office shared service could secure significant savings above and beyond
those which can be achieved by Authorities reviewing and rationalising their
services to bring them into line with the high performers. It did not, however,
set out a clear proposal for precisely how such extra savings would be
achieved via a shared service arrangement. Nor did it consider other
potential benefits in quality of service, ability to improve, expertise and
resilience.

2.4.10 In discussions with Local Authorities there is general agreement that this is
an area where progress has been inconsistent, and there is likely to be
potential for improvements to efficiency, resilience and quality of some
services. Whilst we broadly categorise what we mean by shared services
later in this paper, the following are some suggestions of activities where
service sharing might be taken forward (nationally or regionally):

e Technology platforms, to offer greater consistency as well as cost savings
e.g. new Planning Portal, Community Care Information Service

e Specialist services where expert knowledge or skills can sometimes be in
high demand and short supply e.g. internal audit; assurance around cyber
threats and management, Welsh language and legal expertise, some
finance functions, asset management.

e Joint or shared transactional services where processes are consistent or
could reasonably be expected to be so e.g. council tax collection and
wider revenue and benefits, payroll, transactional services that use the
same IT systems.

2.4.11 There is also the example of the NHS Wales Shared Service Partnership
(NWSSP) which provides a range of back office administrative services to
NHS Trusts in Wales, resulting in cost reductions and efficiencies by
introducing common processes and sharing good practice. This has taken
time but it has delivered savings (the NWSSP annual report for 2015-16
describes more than £20 million in procurement savings in 2015-2016);
improved services against key performance indicators (direct savings of £2
million have been returned to NHS Wales in 2015-2016, against a target of
£1 million) and has taken on new functions and services by agreement as it
has demonstrated success. At present, the NWSSP cannot provide services
to organisations beyond the NHS but Welsh Government has previously
consulted upon whether it should take a legislative opportunity to widen its
scope to allow it to provide services to Local Authorities and others. There
are also examples of local government led equivalent services.

2.4.12 Shared services can be broadly categorised into the following:

¢ Joint procurement - Examples of which are National Procurement Services
and the electronic procurements system (e-PS)

8 http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/welsh-local-authorities-administrative-cost-

review/?lang=en
Tudalen 217


http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/welsh-local-authorities-administrative-cost-review/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/welsh-local-authorities-administrative-cost-review/?lang=en

20
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

e Shared platforms - Example of which is Public Sector Broadband
Aggregation

e Shared Service delivery - Examples of which are Archives Services and
Regulatory Services

e Shared back office functions - Examples of which are NHS Wales Shared
Service Partnership, Legal services in West Wales and ICT services

2.4.13 We are interested in views about where the greatest value is likely to come
from in pursuing shared supporting services and how we can collectively
make more rapid and deeper progress in this area to continue to secure even
more efficient delivery of services as well as other wider benefits.

2.4.14 There is also an opportunity to look beyond Local Authorities and to develop
solutions which integrate across public service providers. We are interested
in views on where the opportunities lie for doing this. Modern technology
offers opportunities for dispersed working but the employment changes which
might follow greater concentration of shared supporting services would need
to be consistent with our overall policy of supporting employment in those
communities where this provides the greatest impact on local economies.

2.4.15 We recognise that sharing services has been an ongoing journey in Wales
with some successes and some projects which have not delivered as
planned. We are interested in views on the barriers to successful sharing of
services and how these might be overcome. In particular, data sharing has
already been flagged as part of our autumn engagement exercise and we are
interested in the specific challenges it continues to pose and examples of
how this has been overcome.

2.4.16 As part of these considerations, we need to understand how they could be
enablers of regional working more generally.

Consultation Question 7:

The Welsh Government believes that some back office and transactional services
ought to be organised and delivered regionally or nationally. Which services do you
believe could best be organised and delivered in these ways?

Consultation Question 8:

The Welsh Government believes that overcoming data sharing issues is key to taking
forward greater regional working of back office functions. What legislative obstacles
have made progress on sharing services difficult? How have they been or could they
be overcome? What challenges does data sharing pose?

Consultation Question 9:
The Welsh Government believes sharing more back office functions would be helpful.
There are a number of options:

e Enable the NHS Wales Shared Service Partnership for providing services to
local government (and others)

e Establish a similar model to provide back office services to local government
(and others)

e Establish an alternative model to provide back office services to local
government (and others)

Which do you believe would be most appropriate to best support regional working?
TudaAeiy? t other alternative models could work effectively and what steps could the



21
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

Welsh Ministers take to enable or encourage local government-led alternative models
to be implemented?

2.4.17 One specific area, which has interests wider than local government, is the
potential for better management and use of public sector assets through
regional planning and governance. If the public sector is to maximise positive
outcomes for people and communities and deliver value for money, its
property asset resources must be managed with the same scrutiny and
assurance already applied to the management of its financial resources.
Public sector partners have many examples to offer of co-location and co-
investment. Working together through the pan public sector National Assets
Working Group they have also produced and endorsed some useful tools.

2.4.18 A more proactive collaborative asset management approach across the
Welsh public sector offers the potential to integrate services (including estate
management) to improve the customer experience and to create wider
efficiencies. It also offers potential to rationalise the estate and improve the
guality of public service assets by investing more in fewer shared physical
assets. This will allow surplus assets to be included, sometimes in
combination, in land release for new homes and employment-related
development. A Pilot Study in the Cwm Taf PSB area has been exploring the
potential benefits of this approach. The Welsh Government’s Budget for
2017/18 includes £2 million new investment to carry out asset mapping
across Wales.

2.4.19 The Welsh Government is keen to understand how local government and
others, including Welsh Government, can work together better to make the
best use of their collective assets. Barriers to this in the past have included
knowledge of others’ plans and opportunities. To support this work it is
proposed that a ‘Regional Asset Collaboration best practice toolkit’ is
developed.

2.4.20 Such an approach will require appropriate governance arrangements to
ensure that collaborative behaviour is embedded in ongoing decisions related
to service and estate planning. Given the links to the economy the larger
economic footprints may be appropriate in order to successfully engage with
the wider public sector and reap the potential benefits.

Consultation Question 10:

The Welsh Government believes that joint understanding and planning of public
sector assets is essential to maximize their impact and that this requires regional
mapping of estates assets and future intentions. How can this joint governance and
decision making best be achieved? Is the larger economic footprint the right one?

2.5 Governance and Accountability

2.5.1 Our proposals for regional working will require different governance
mechanisms to underpin them. This will ensure that collaborative behaviour
is embedded in decision making, accountability and scrutiny. It will need to
ensure that Elected Members remain at the heart of the decision making and
scrutiny process. It will require flexibility and simplicity to be at the heart of
the overarching governance arrangement.

2.5.2 Aregional governance model will require that decisions which are being
taken are in the best interests of people across the region, rather than within

Tudalen 219



22

White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

2.5.3

2.5.4

2.5.5

2.5.6

2.5.7

individual local areas. The aim is that, overall, service provision improves as
a result of this approach, for example by providing services which no one
Authority could deliver alone or by making more effective use of scarce
expertise. This might mean for example, that to have greatest impact on a
particular issue, the region should allocate more resources to one Local
Authority area than another. This may be controversial locally, but
governance arrangements will need to be robust enough to make and be
accountable for these difficult decisions. To ensure that regional functions
can be undertaken effectively and that the accountability arrangements
match the footprint on which the functions are being exercised, we propose
placing a duty on those exercising the functions and those holding them to
account to consider both the local and regional interest in undertaking their
responsibilities.

Any accountability model at a regional level will need to ensure that there is
clarity for local people, officers, Elected Members and other public service
organisations about where decisions are being made and on the scope of
those decisions. There needs to be clarity over which functions are being
exercised where, and who is exercising them on what basis. There must be a
clear process to delegate functions for regional decision-making within the
framework which Welsh Government will provide. There must also be clear
arrangements and real commitment from those exercising functions
regionally to report back to their Local Authority and be held to account by its
Members.

Citizens and communities will need to be clear about how they are able to
interact with the regional arrangements in order to influence and contribute to
decision making. These new arrangements will further enhance the role of
Elected Members, who will have a crucial part to play in ensuring that the
people they represent can navigate the new system and act as their
advocates.

Welsh Government will provide a clear framework for making arrangements
to hold those making decisions to account. Regional arrangements will need
to be appropriately scrutinised to ensure effective performance and value for
money are being delivered, and that better outcomes are being achieved at a
regional level. There will need to be transparency, especially in those
circumstances where things unfortunately go wrong.

We will provide a framework which allows for choices in how scrutiny is
undertaken. There will be the option of continuing to undertake scrutiny in
each of the constituent Principal Councils within a regional arrangement, or
to establish a standing regional scrutiny committee, or to undertake regional
scrutiny on a task and finish basis or to adopt a mix of these approaches. In
undertaking scrutiny of a regional function, it is proposed that Elected
Members should be under a duty to consider the regional interest as well as
the interests of their particular Local Authority.

We also want Local Authorities to take the opportunity of new regional
arrangements to develop smart scrutiny approaches. This means moving
away from scrutinising the minutiae of day to day operations and focusing on
where the major impacts for citizens are or on matters which are new or
contentious. It also means adopting different approaches including using
digital and other technologies and giving citizens a key role and real voice in

Tudalen 22 Process:



2.5.8

2.5.9

2.5.10

2.5.11

2.5.12

2.5.13

23
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

There are a number of approaches which could underpin the new
overarching arrangements for regional governance. These range from
voluntary joint arrangements, the ‘traditional’ joint committee, through to new
regional entities in which functions are vested and to whom budgets and staff
move, for example a ‘combined authority’. In discussions with local
government over the autumn, we have heard that the most appropriate
model for regional governance is likely to be a strengthened joint committee.
For the purpose of this White Paper this model is being referred to as a ‘Joint
Governance Committee’.

A ‘Joint Governance Committee’ would build on existing and familiar joint
committee arrangements, but would offer additional benefits, such as a
requirement to ‘think’ regionally. The Welsh Government proposes setting out
a common rulebook for the new ‘Joint Governance Committee’ in legislation
to ensure consistency, so there is a robust, common platform from which
everyone is working from. These provisions will provide the framework within
which Local Authorities would be required to delegate authority to the ‘Joint
Governance Committee’. We are proposing that once formed, constituent
Local Authorities would be required to work together on this basis, they would
not be permitted to ‘walk away’ from the obligation to carry out regional
decision making.

We propose that the members of any ‘Joint Governance Committee’ would
be the locally Elected Member with responsibility for the functions being
exercised by that Committee. We envisage that there might be more than
one ‘Joint Governance Committee’ per region, depending on the footprint on
which functions were exercised or, alternatively, that a single ‘Joint
Governance Committee’ might establish a number of Sub-Committees with
responsibility for specific functions and services.

Where a ‘Joint Governance Committee’ is exercising functions in multiple
service areas or which touch on the interests of more than one portfolio
holder, there will be flexibility to either allow one Member to represent the
interests of their Local Authority as a whole or for both to be represented,
providing matching levels of representation are provided by the other Local
Authorities within the ‘Joint Governance Committee’.

Similarly, we intend to develop a common framework to support pooling of
budgets in pursuit of the functions exercised by ‘Joint Governance
Committees’. This framework will be developed in partnership with local
government, in common with the way the rules governing the general local
government settlement are developed together.

Based on our discussions with Local Authorities, it is proposed that the
Welsh Government sets out a framework for ‘Joint Governance Committees’,
this will include:

e membership arrangements — our proposal is that the membership of the
‘Joint Governance Committee’ should be made up of the Elected Member
or Members with responsibility for the function(s) being exercised, with
the proviso that each Local Authority must have equal membership

e delegation of functions — our proposal is that we will prescribe the
functions which must be exercised regionally by the Local Authority. The
delegation process will therefore be about providing clarity and

Tudalen 221



24
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

transparency for Elected Members and the public about to whom the
delegations are made in each Local Authority and the accountability
which has been put in place to hold them to account, there will be no
option to refuse to delegate

e voting arrangements — our proposal is that each Local Authority will
have equal representation and voting power on any ‘Joint Governance
Committee’

e funding flows from Local Authorities to the ‘Joint Governance
Committee’ — our proposal is that we will provide a mandatory framework
for this and develop it in partnership with local government

e scrutiny arrangements — we will provide a range of options for the
approach to scrutiny and ensure that those undertaking scrutiny have a
duty to consider the regional as well as the local interest.

2.5.14 We will work with the WLGA and SOLACE to establish an independent task
and finish group to help us to develop the statutory framework within which
the ‘Joint Governance Committee’ will operate. There is already a range of
existing legislation which enables or requires joint working in respect of the
functions set out above. In light of our aim to create a simplified, flexible and
consistent form of regional governance which has democratic decision
making at its core, we will ask the task and finish group to consider this
legislation and whether it should be used as part of the framework, in
conjunction with it or whether it should be repealed and replaced.

2.5.15 Our vision for these new arrangements is that they will evolve over time and
the level of joint working and the scope of what is undertaken regionally will
be able to grow.

Consultation Question 11:

The Welsh Government believes a strengthened joint committee (a ‘Joint
Governance Committee’) offers an appropriate governance model for regionally
delivered services and intends to set out a framework for local government to use to
deliver this. What should the democratic accountability and scrutiny arrangements be
for such a model? Should each participating Local Authority have equal voting rights
or should they be weighted in some way?

2.6 Regional Footprint(s) Arrangements

2.6.1 The picture of regional arrangements for local government is complex. There
is general alignment of arrangements in some parts of Wales, for example in
North Wales and Gwent, but there is greater diversity of arrangements
elsewhere. These arrangements have evolved in this way for a range of
reasons and one of the key pieces of feedback from the engagement with
Local Authority Leaders and Chief Executives was a real desire to simplify
these arrangements and reduce the demand on the time of Elected Members
and officers in participating in a range of often overlapping or partially
duplicatory collaborative arrangements.

2.6.2 On this basis and reflecting the views expressed on possible approaches to a
rationalised set of footprints, two footprints were highlighted as potentially
appropriate to mandate for the exercise of regional functions in the Cabinet

Tudalen 222



25
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

Secretary for Finance and Local Government’s October Oral Statement®.
These were the ‘economic development’ footprint (that is something based
around the current City Regions and the North Wales Economic Ambition
Board footprint) and the current Local Health Board footprint.

2.6.3 Since then, we have been engaging on the detail of how the proposed new
arrangements for regional working might operate. It has become clear that
there are practical reasons why such a simple approach might not offer the
maximum advantage and that some flexibility would be beneficial. The
challenges are greater in some parts of Wales than others because some
have a greater diversity in existing arrangements. In some cases, simply
mandating the health footprint might involve disaggregating existing, larger
collaborative arrangements (for example, the Education Consortia) or
breaking up functioning shared service delivery (for example, Bridgend,
Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan’s Shared Regulatory Service.) Neither of
these outcomes would be desirable.

2.6.4 Under current arrangements, Bridgend provides social services as part of a
wider partnership with Neath Port Talbot and Swansea. These arrangements
have taken some time to develop and are working well. However, for other
services, Bridgend works in different combinations most notably for education
improvement where it forms part of the Central South Education Consortium.
Bridgend is also part of the Cardiff Capital Region.

2.6.5 The proposals present an opportunity to look again at the position of
Bridgend and whether consistency could be promoted by rationalising the
pattern of regional services in which Bridgend is currently involved.

Consultation Question 12:

The Welsh Government believes that in order to put in place arrangements which
reduce complexity for Authorities and their partners the position for Bridgend needs
to be considered. Although Bridgend is fundamentally concerned in this, other
partners including other Local Authorities and the Local Health Boards also have
valid interests. We are therefore seeking views on how best to address the issues set
out here.

2.6.6 During our autumn engagement a number of Leaders and officers have
pointed to the benefits of flexibility and having the ability to work together at
sub regional level (for example within the North Wales footprint) or to work
together where there is commonality of demographics or of place (for
example across cities in South East Wales).

2.6.7 These considerations are finely balanced and we have identified four
potential approaches to the footprint question:

Option 1: Mandating prescribed footprints for regional working

2.6.8 Welsh Government would require regional working by specifying what
functions had to be exercised on which footprint. This is the original approach
arising from the discussions in the summer based on the ‘economic
development’ footprint and Local Health Board boundaries and would be the
most rigid approach. It would have the advantage of clarity and simplification.

? http://Mmww.assembly.wales/en/bus-
home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3994&language=en&assembly=5&c=Record%200f%20Proceedings
&startDt=04/10/2016&endDt=04/10/2016#427466

Tudalen 223


http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3994&language=en&assembly=5&c=Record%20of%20Proceedings&startDt=04/10/2016&endDt=04/10/2016#427466
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3994&language=en&assembly=5&c=Record%20of%20Proceedings&startDt=04/10/2016&endDt=04/10/2016#427466
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3994&language=en&assembly=5&c=Record%20of%20Proceedings&startDt=04/10/2016&endDt=04/10/2016#427466

26
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

Greater flexibility could be provided by allowing building blocks of footprints
to be combined to support the delivery of specific services across a wider
area. For example, a regional collaboration which spanned two Local Health
Board boundaries.

Option 2: Mandating a framework

2.6.9 This option would offer the greatest flexibility and would see Welsh
Government requiring regional working for specific services, but without
specifying the footprint on which it had to take place, which would be left to
local determination. Welsh Government would provide a framework within
which that local determination would be made. For example, this could
involve specifying a minimum number of Local Authorities that need to be
part of a regional arrangement or requiring the Local Authorities have regard
to certain things, such as Local Health Board boundaries.

Option 3: A framework and a footprint

2.6.10 An alternative approach is where for some functions a footprint would be
prescribed, for example transport planning and strategic land use planning
might be prescribed to take place on an economic development footprint.
However, for other functions, such as public protection, regional working
arrangements would need to comply with the framework for regional working,
for example, a minimum number of Local Authorities working together, and /
or consideration of Local Health Board boundaries.

Option 4: Deliberatively Regional

2.6.11 Another variant on requiring regional working might be one where Welsh
Government would engage in a deliberative process with local government to
determine the appropriate footprint for each service / function and the
footprints would be made mandatory at the conclusion of that process.

2.7 Preferred Approach

2.7.1 Having considered the feedback we have already received on this important
issue and undertaken our own assessment of the options, our preferred
approach is Option 3. We believe that this hybrid approach offers an
appropriate balance between requiring more systematic working and
sufficient flexibility to allow Local Authorities to come together to put in place
arrangements that best suit local circumstances.

2.7.2 There was a broad welcome for mandating an ‘economic development’
footprint. We propose that this footprint should be based on the WLGA
regions, which are broadly coterminous with the existing economic
development areas: Cardiff Capital Region, North Wales Economic Ambition
Board and the Swansea Bay City Region. Our expectation is that the distinct
set of arrangements that are already in place for Growing Mid Wales and the
Swansea Bay City Region would continue under the umbrella of the Central
and South West Wales ‘Joint Governance Committee’ area.

2.7.3 We anticipate, subject to feedback as part of this White Paper consultation,
that this ‘economic development’ footprint would be mandated to undertake
transport planning, certain strategic land use planning functions and
economic development on behalf of their constituent Authorities. We will
provide flexibility in how these arrangements must work to ensure that the
scope of the current City Deal arrangements could be maintained, which
would be a particular consideration in expanding the Swansea Bay City

Tudalen 22¥gion.



27
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

2.7.4 For the other functions identified in section 2.3, the specific footprints to be
adopted will be determined by the constituent Local Authorities, within a
framework which would guide that determination with a view to removing
overlap and promoting simplicity as far as possible.

2.7.5 To facilitate the decision making on how other regional arrangements should
be organised, the overarching 'Joint Governance Committee’ operating at the
‘economic development’ footprint level would have oversight of the
establishment of any sub-regional arrangements and would oversee their
working arrangements. We propose that the overarching ‘Joint Governance
Committee’ is required to put in place and monitor the governance
arrangements for the region and ensure the efficient and effective delivery of
those services and achieving outcomes for the region.

2.7.6 There are some functions where there are already well established regional
arrangements which would mean working across these boundaries, for
example the Western Bay Adoption Services, or where the six North Wales
Authorities work with Powys on Minerals and Waste Joint Planning. We
would not require these working arrangements to be changed, however, we
would expect that the governance of these arrangements was considered by
the respective ‘Joint Governance Committees’ to ensure robust governance
arrangements were in place.

2.7.7 Equally, there may be opportunities for working across regional footprints
where that is the right approach. For example, the Language, Work and
Bilingual Services,'® Report recommends that a linguistic-economic strategy
is developed for the counties of Anglesey, Gwynedd, Ceredigion and
Carmarthenshire. Flexibility in regional working arrangements would allow for
such an approach to be considered.

2.7.8 In considering the current and future needs of local people and communities,
Local Authorities may consider voluntary mergers (discussed in Section 3).
When considering voluntary merger proposals, consideration will need to be
given to the impact on economic development footprints.

2.7.9 Our proposals represent an evolution of existing arrangements but one which
puts them on a clear, consistent basis. Our autumn engagement, and
proposals from the WLGA have indicated that there might be a desire to take
governance arrangements further to improve outcomes in the future. It has
been suggested that Welsh Ministers pursue legislation that would enable the
creation of Combined Authorities in due course where there was a robust
case. We are proposing that such provision could be made alongside
provision for the proposals for ‘Joint Governance Committees’ to be used as
and when they were required by local government to further their objectives.

2.7.10 We propose that a review of these new regional arrangements is undertaken
after the legislation is implemented to track progress in bringing about
change and to consider the effectiveness and efficiency of the new
arrangements.

Consultation Question 13:
The Welsh Government believes that ‘Option 3: A framework and a footprint’ is the
most appropriate model for future regional working.

10 http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/160614-language-work-bilingual-services-en.pdf

Tudalen 225


http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/160614-language-work-bilingual-services-en.pdf

28
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

e What are your thoughts on the proposed mandatory economic development
footprint for ‘Joint Governance Committees’?

e How could a framework approach for sub-regional working in other services
areas operate in practice?

e Is it appropriate for there to be flexibility for regional working to cross economic
development boundaries in exceptional circumstances? Which circumstances
would they be?

e How should the governance arrangements at the mandatory economic
development ‘Joint Governance Committees’ have oversight of sub regional
working?

Consultation Question 14:

The Welsh Government would welcome comments on the appropriateness of
seeking powers to create a Combined Authority. In particular, views on what
minimum expectations there should be in considering the appropriateness of creating
a Combined Authority are welcomed.

2.8 Funding Regional Arrangements

2.8.1 The Welsh Government has protected the funding for local government.
However, the financial outlook for public services continues to challenge us
all. Levels of financial support are unlikely to increase significantly in the
future — difficult financial outlooks are, unfortunately, the new norm. Coupled
with this are continuing cost pressures on all our budgets; increasing demand
for many services; and tough economic challenges. As a consequence, local
government continues to voice concerns about less headroom in budgets to
deliver services and, importantly, to invest in improvement and new
transformative delivery models. We must therefore continue to look at the
funding arrangements to ensure they remain fit for purpose as services
evolve.

2.8.2 Any regional funding arrangement will need to be as simple as is practicable,
offering flexibility to suit different functions, different roles and remits, and
different footprints. The arrangements need to be able to flex to support an
emerging model. Importantly, regional funding arrangements must be
transparent. The flow of finance between public bodies must be
understandable to citizens, to Government, to the regulators and to local
government itself. A range of possible funding models exists including
precepting, levying, grant funding, recharging and pooled budgets. In
discussions with local government, pooled contributions from the constituent
local authorities has emerged as the most practical solution.

2.8.3 Local Authorities and other public bodies already finance a number of
collaborative arrangements. Principal authorities pool resources to support
collaborative working and it is a funding model which is well-established, with
minimal barriers and a high degree of flexibility. The majority of existing Joint
Committees identify a lead Local Authority in relation to finance and this
arrangement appears appropriate within a regional context. We intend to
build on the existing arrangements where these work best, rather than add
complexity by imposing a new and complex funding model.

Tudalen 226



29
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

WALES Proposed ‘Joint Governance Committee’ Areas

FLINTSH
NORTH WALES ECONOMIC
“AMBITION BOARD

DENBIGHSHIRE

GWYNEDD

p

PROPOSED ‘JOINT GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE' AREAS

[ ] North Wales
[ ] Central and South West Wales
[ ] South East Wales

Economic Development Region ~ SWANSEA BAY CITY

GROWING
MIDWALES POWYs

Local Authority Boundary CARDIFF

CEREDIGION

g PEMBROKESHIRE CARMARTHENSHIRE MERTHYR g aeNAU
SWANSEA BAY
CITY;REGION

v 9

NEATH
PORT TALBOT

RHONDDA
CYNON
TAF

BRIDGEND

GLAMORGAN
© Crown copyright 2017
Cartographics ® Welsh Government ® ML/110/16.17

January 2017

OGL

Tudalen 227



30
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

2.8.4 We propose that a mandatory financial framework is developed to ensure the
expenditure of each ‘Joint Governance Committee’ is met through pooled
contributions from the constituent local authorities.

2.8.5 The amounts to be pooled would be determined by local agreement,
providing local government with the flexibility and autonomy to make this
work. A crucial feature of this model is that the constituent authorities agree
the levels and apportionment of funding for the functions to be carried out
regionally. The ability of authorities to reach and adopt such funding
agreements will be fundamental to their success in working together to
deliver functions on a regional basis. It is proposed that the framework also
provides for a default arrangement which would be invoked where local
agreement is not reached. As part of developing such a framework in
partnership with local government, consideration will need to be given to
where the legal authority to spend public money sits within a regional
arrangement. For example, many collaborative arrangements include legal
agreements between Authorities to confirm that when a lead Authority acts, it
is acting on behalf of the others so that the financial liability does not fall to a
single Authority.

2.8.6 In contributing financially to regional expenditure, Local Authorities would
need to take this into account in their annual budget setting process and in
relation to their statutory duty to set a balanced budget. This will require early
discussions on the level of regional expenditure and the local contributions
needed. It would be appropriate for each ‘Joint Governance Committee’ to
produce a Medium Term Financial Plan (and associated medium term
delivery plan), so that Local Authorities can forward plan their finances. We
believe that to offer transparency to the public, any regional arrangements
should be required broadly to balance income and expenditure in-year.
Consideration will be given as to whether a limited reserves facility would be
practicable.

2.8.7 Existing collaborative arrangements (under a Joint Committee) are subject to
formal accounting and audit requirements. We do not see a need to change
these requirements. The Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) has an
important role in securing the best value for public money and driving
efficiencies. The Chief Finance Officer has particular statutory duties and a
fiduciary responsibility to the taxpayer. The Chief Finance Officer (and the
Monitoring Officer) has a role in advising whether particular decisions are
likely to be contrary to the policy framework or budget of the Council. Many
Chief Finance Officers also undertake this role for particular services or
collaborative arrangements. The nature of this role in the context of greater
regional working will be the subject of detailed discussions with local
government in developing the financial and governance frameworks.

Consultation Question 15:

The Welsh Government believes that a mandatory financial framework should be
developed to ensure the expenditure of each ‘Joint Governance Committee’ is met
through pooled contributions from the constituent Local Authorities.

e Should the expenditure of ‘Joint Governance Committees’ be met by
constituent Local Authorities, in proportions to be agreed locally, to ensure the
most flexible approach?

¢ Should the framework provide for a default position if local agreement cannot
Tudalen 2®8eached, and how such a process might be triggered?



31
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

¢ What further considerations might relate to, or need to be included in, a
financial framework?

2.9 Wider Reforms to Finance

2.9.1 The Welsh Government also wishes to explore more wide-ranging reform of
the local government finance system, to meet our aims of improved
sustainability of services and of greater fairness for Wales’ citizens and
businesses. The future role for local government outlined in this White Paper
has a bearing on the wider changes which can be made to the finance
system. A separate statement has been published 31° January 2017 setting
out more detail on the areas intended to be explored. The Welsh
Government will consult on proposals as they are developed.

2.10 Workforce Matters

2.10.1 The most valuable asset of the public service is its workforce. For public
services to thrive in the future we must nurture and develop our staff to
ensure they have the capacity and capability to adapt to the changing needs
of our society and to continue to deliver excellent public services.

2.10.2 Attracting and retaining our best talent is critical to driving the
transformational change to which we aspire, and people need interesting and
varied opportunities if they are to commit to a career in public services. In
order to maximise the opportunities available to individuals, Wales needs to
develop a public service that enables staff to develop flexible careers across
the whole service, sharing experiences and ways of working. This will mean
that public services are better able to work together to support effective
service delivery.

2.10.3 Establishing resilient services is paramount to the future of local government.
Issues of capacity and scale affect many parts of local government and the
wider public sector, specialist skills will need to be shared and technical
expertise utilised collaboratively across organisational and sectorial
boundaries. There are a range of organisations already working
collaboratively to do this.

2.10.4 No single workforce model has been adopted by these organisations. Some
have chosen to leave staff where they are and manage across a number of
different employers. Others have chosen to transfer staff or to create a single
shared staffing structure. Some have chosen to harmonise terms and
conditions, whilst others have retained separate terms and conditions to
manage staff across multiple organisations. Following the single status
agreement, the job evaluation and grading process was individually
undertaken by local government. This has provided consistency within
organisations, however inconsistencies continue to exist across local
government as a whole. Local government has the opportunity to develop
greater standardisation of approach, where appropriate, to workforce matters
to smooth the path to regionalised working, whilst ensuring that the equalities
secured by individual Local Authorities through enacting the single status
agreement, are not lost.

2.10.5 The Public Services Staff Commission will no longer be made a statutory
body and will be brought to a close in March 2018. Until then, it will continue
to provide advice on workforce matters under the strategic direction of the

Tudalen 229



32
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

Workforce Partnership Council. In coming months, the Workforce Partnership
Council will be subject to a wider review, coproduced by social partners
working together. The purpose of this review will be to ensure the Workforce
Partnership Council has clear roles, responsibilities and tripartite structures
and is well placed to drive social partnership working in Wales within the
changing context outlined in this White Paper.

2.10.6 In August 2015 a task and finish group of the Workforce Partnership Council
was established to focus on workforce planning and mobility. The work of this
group is ongoing. There may still be a need for Welsh Government Ministers
to provide statutory guidance on matters such as approaches to recruitment,
retention, workforce planning, performance management.

2.10.7 The proposals around regional working, if accepted, will affect the local
government workforce. Matters around how we can maximise the
opportunities of regional working for the local government workforce, and
mitigate any potentially negative effects, will be brought to the Workforce
Partnership Council.

2.10.8 The previous consultation provided mixed views on the value of Welsh
Government having such a statutory guidance making power. Annex One
sets out a brief summary of previous proposals and their current status We
believe that to support organisations to move to a more consistent and
regional approach to delivering services it may be helpful to have the ability
to issue statutory guidance where there is an identified need. Welsh
Government’s intention would be to only issue guidance on workforce
matters where it will enhance the development of national or regional delivery
of public services.

Consultation Question 16:

The Welsh Government believes that to support organisations to move to a more
consistent and regional approach to delivering services it will be necessary to issue
statutory guidance where there is an identified need. Do you agree or disagree? If
you agree, what types of advice, guidance and support on leadership and workforce
matters might lead to greater local, regional and national consistency?

2.11 Public Services Boards

2.11.1 People’s lives don’t stop at geographical or service boundaries. Public
services need to work together behind the scenes to ensure seamless
services for citizens. Public Services Boards have a unique role in bringing
together the wider public service to improve the economic, social,
environmental and cultural wellbeing of their areas. In other words, to make a
visible difference for citizens. The work that is already underway must
continue at pace in order to support regional working.

2.11.2 The reform of local government, and a requirement for Local Authorities to
work increasingly on a regional basis, will have broader implications for
public service partners and Public Services Boards.

2.11.3 Local Authorities will be asked to come together to exercise functions on a
regional basis. This will mean Public Services Boards, in bringing together
the key public service partners, will have to consider how they work with the
new regional arrangements. They will also need to give consideration as to
whether it would be appropriate to organise themselves to reflect new

ional arrangements.
Tudalen 230 g



33
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Regional Working

2.11.4 There are already extensive powers for Boards to work together on a larger
footprint. The legislation also allows for Public Services Boards to merge,
based on the Local Health Board footprint. It may be appropriate to amend
this legislation allowing for greater flexibility in the merger (and where
necessary de-merger) of Boards to allow them to accommodate different
regional footprints.

Consultation Question 17:

The Welsh Government believes it would be helpful if Public Services Boards could
collaborate or merge across Local Health Board Boundaries. Do you agree or
disagree? Why?

Consultation Question 18:
The Welsh Government believes Public Services Boards should be allowed to de-
merge as well as merge. Do you agree or disagree? Why?

Tudalen 231



34
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Voluntary Mergers

3. VOLUNTARY MERGERS

3.1.1 In considering the current and future needs of local people and communities,
Local Authorities must give serious thought as to how best to organise
themselves to maximise the impact they can have. Despite greater regional
working, it may be that Local Authorities choose to come together in to a
single larger Authority to better deliver for local people.

3.1.2 This will require Local Authorities to develop a robust proposal for structural
change. The Welsh Government will not set out a long list of specific criteria
that a proposal must meet; the rationale and circumstances for voluntary
merger will be different in each case, and Local Authorities must have the
flexibility available to them to bring forward proposals in different
circumstances. But those committed to the merger process will need to be
clear as to the opportunities and benefits, in both the short and medium term.
Therefore, the Welsh Government believes it is reasonable for there to be a
set of minimum expectations that should be met in considering the
appropriateness of voluntary merger.

3.1.3 In developing proposals for merger, account would need to be taken of the
ongoing resilience of the organisations, effective delivery of services and
outcomes for local people, and the proposed future financial position.
Proposals should deliver sufficient benefits to people and communities to
warrant the merger. The case for change should be built together, by the
Local Authorities, and their local stakeholders. As with the previous voluntary
merger prospectus and the Local Government (Wales) Act 2015, we would
require, any proposal to be consulted upon locally. This includes consultation
with local people, staff (and any representative bodies), and other public
service partners. Any final proposal to merge would need to be subject to a
successful resolution by the full Council of all of the merging authorities.

3.1.4 A proposal for voluntary merger will need to be developed in dialogue with
Welsh Government. This will enable Welsh Government, and others, to
provide appropriate support. Discussion and cooperation will be crucial to
ensure a workable timetable and the proposal is fit for purpose in the longer
term.

3.1.5 Once a final merger proposal is put forward, the Welsh Government would
need formally to accept it. Welsh Government would then ask the Local
Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales to undertake an electoral
review of the proposed new authority area and bring forward regulations
enabling merger to happen. Such regulations would require approval from
the National Assembly for Wales. It is possible that more than one merger
proposal could be brought forward at any one time, and that the regulations
required may be different to reflect the different needs of merging bodies.
Such regulations are likely to cover:

e the transfer of staff, assets and liabilities

e details on elections

e the setting up of transition committees and the shadow Local Authority
¢ the implementation of any statutory transactions regime as necessary

Tudalen 232



35
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Voluntary Mergers

3.1.6 It may be helpful to issue guidance on these issues, and as such Welsh
Government intend to take guidance making powers with regards to
voluntary merger.

3.1.7 Welsh Government will need either to seek new powers in order to give effect
to voluntary mergers or to amend the existing legislation allowing for
voluntary mergers which is contained in the Local Government (Wales) Act
2015 (the 2015 Act). The powers in the 2015 Act allowing for voluntary
merger were linked to a strict timetable for the then proposed merger
programme. They cannot now be used for voluntary mergers which would
take effect after 1 April 2018, hence the need for new legislation or to amend
existing legislation.

Consultation Question 19:
The Welsh Government would welcome comments on what minimum expectations
there should be in considering the appropriateness of voluntary merger.

Tudalen 233



36

White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
A Framework for Local Leadership

4. A FRAMEWORK FOR LOCAL LEADERSHIP
4.1 Shared Expectations

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

The goals and ways of working set out in the WFG Act are the vision for the
future within which we all must work. The Welsh Government needs to
ensure it is providing the framework that local government needs to deliver
excellent public services to local people and communities. We are clear that
our ‘ask’ must be different. Welsh Government should set the broad strategic
framework within which local government works to deliver the outcomes that
we are collectively trying to achieve. This is a different relationship; it is one
based on mutual respect and trust. It is an open and ongoing dialogue
around shared problems. It requires maturity on both sides.

In ‘“Taking Wales Forward™* the Welsh Government commits to changing the
relationship between Welsh Government, the WLGA and local government.
To this end the Welsh Government, working with local government, will
refresh the Local Government Partnership Scheme which sets out the
principles that the Welsh Government and local government will use to work
together for the citizens of Wales. We remain committed to reducing
unnecessary burdens on the public sector and business. Welsh Government
are committed to increasing funding flexibilities for Local Authorities and are
working closely with local government to ensure the most appropriate
delivery mechanisms for future funding, this includes looking at transferring
further grants into the Revenue Support Grant. This goes beyond the public
service, for example, the Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure is
considering the range of panels, bodies and groups that are engaged in
providing advice across the business and economy landscape with a view to
simplifying arrangements.

Welsh Government will provide the framework within which local government
can operate best to meet the current and future needs of individuals and
communities. This framework must be flexible, offering a menu of choices to
allow local government to operate in ways that best meets local needs. In
turn, local government must work with local people and communities to
shape a shared future.

The Welsh Government must be clear on what outcomes it expects local
government to deliver. Sometimes this will mean delivering outcomes in a
consistent way, for example setting minimum standards. On other occasions
this could mean creating consistency in governance arrangements to ensure
there is transparency in decision making, so local people can understand
how and where decisions are being made.

As part of developing these new proposals for local government reform we
have sought the views of Leaders, Elected Members, Chief Executives, local
government officers and the wider public service. We are committed to an
ongoing relationship where we are open about the challenges we collectively
face and where we work together, as one public service, to meet those
challenges. Shared leadership will require trust, a willingness to work
together and to compromise, as well as a mutual appreciation of our
respective but distinctive roles in improving outcomes for people in Wales.

™ http://gov.wales/docs/strategies/160920-taking-wales-forward-en.pdf

Tudalen 234



37
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
A Framework for Local Leadership

4.1.6 Part of Welsh Government’s commitment to this will include looking to reduce
performance reporting requirements, including plans, annual reports and
strategies. We will ensure this approach is reflected in the legislative
proposals brought forward in a new Local Government Bill. But we will also
work with colleagues more broadly across Welsh Government to remove
unnecessary burdens put on local government. We will continue to consider
the use of specific grants, seeking to offer as much financial flexibility as
possible for local government to work within.

4.1.7 We remain committed to providing a general power of competence to Local
Authorities and those Community Councils which meet minimum criteria. This
will allow local government to do more, being more innovative and flexible in
their approach. Local Authorities will be able to use this power to work with
others to provide cost-effective services and facilities in new ways to meet
the needs of local communities. A Council could lend or invest money; or set
up a company or co-operative society to trade and engage in commercial
activity. Use of the power is not restricted to the geographical area of the
authority or for the benefit of its residents. It offers Local Authorities a breadth
of opportunity to innovate, and local citizens must be part of this joint
enterprise.

4.2 Distributed Leadership

4.2.1 Everyone has some leadership responsibilities. Faced with a problem to be
solved, the first question any employee of local government should ask
“What contribution can | make to resolving this matter?” A full resolution will
then involve contributions from others, working together. This form of
distributed leadership is the antithesis of an approach which invites
employees always to pass problems higher and higher up hierarchical
management structures.

4.2.2 Effective leadership will be key to enabling and delivering these changes. Not
only is there a corporate responsibility for leadership. There are also
expectations on individuals, Elected Members and officers, to take
responsibility for leading. This goes way beyond any legislation or guidance
that Welsh Government or others may produce. This is an ethos; a
commitment to developing learning organisations, where the needs of local
people and communities are put at the heart of decision making and our
approach is based on a co-productive relationship. We have already set out
the values we expect all public services, including Welsh Government, to
embody through ‘One Welsh Public Service’.'? These values are set within
the context of the Well-being of Future Generations Act and articulate some
of the behaviours we would expect leaders at all levels to display in their daily
working.

4.2.3 To support Local Authorities to build on this we will pursue a requirement for
Leaders to undertake objective setting with Cabinet Members. As a result of
feedback received during the previous consultation this will be amended to a
minimum of twice during an election cycle, although Leaders can choose to
do this more frequently. As previously proposed, we will place a new duty on
leaders of political groups to promote good standards of conduct by their
members and to co-operate with Standards Committees in exercising their
functions. Where appropriate, Standards Committees will hear cases of

12 https://academiwales.gov.wales/pages/one-welsh-public-service

Tudalen 235


https://academiwales.gov.wales/pages/one-welsh-public-service

38
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
A Framework for Local Leadership

alleged failure by members to perform prescribed performance duties, as well
as breaches of the member code of conduct.

Consultation Question 20:

The Welsh Government would welcome comments on any of the proposals set out
previously in the draft Local Government Bill and associated consultation paper,
Annex One refers.

4.3 Performance and Improvement

4.3.1 Part of our plans to give local government the framework to lead includes an
ongoing commitment to changing performance management arrangements.
Welsh Government intends to repeal Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales)

Measure 2009 (“the 2009 Measure”) for all ‘lmprovement Authorities’.™

Fire and Rescue Authorities

4.3.2 The fire and rescue services in Wales have a track record of delivery. They
have reduced fires and fire casualties by over 50% since responsibility was
devolved in 2004. They also have a long history of regional working, having
operated on that basis since 1996. In that sense, they already represent an
example of the broad approach which this White Paper proposes for other
Local Authority services.

4.3.3 However, Fire and Rescue Authority governance and funding arrangements
do not generate sufficient accountability, for instance, Council leaders and
cabinet members are generally not members. There is also no separation
between executive and scrutiny functions, and budgets are set without any
formal external challenge or control.

4.3.4 To correct this, and to ensure that fire and rescue services are properly
integrated with other regionalised services, it is proposed that Fire and
Rescue Authorities will change their governance arrangements so that their
membership will resemble that of Joint Governance Committees, and
budgets would be set on a pooled basis by agreement. This would not
change the role, number or boundaries of Fire and Rescue Authorities, or
their existence as separate organisations empowered to employ staff, spend
money and exercise functions on their own account.

4.3.5 As part of the new Bill it is proposed that the 2009 Local Government
Measure will no longer apply to Fire and Rescue Authorities from the same
date as Local Authorities. They will not be subject to the new improvement
and performance regime set out for Local Authorities. A full consultation will
be undertaken in due course as to the new governance, funding and
performance management arrangements for Fire and Rescue Authorities.

National Park Authorities

4.3.6 The Future Landscapes Wales programme, chaired by Lord Dafydd Elis-
Thomas AM, was established in October 2015 and involves representatives
of the National Parks, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, interest groups
and business. It was initially tasked to explore the Marsden Report on the
Review of Designated Landscapes in Wales and consider the case for
reform.

13 Improvement Authorities are: Local Authorities, the National Parks and the Fire and Rescue
Authorities

Tudalen 236



39
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
A Framework for Local Leadership

4.3.7 The Marsden Report recommended that “The Welsh Government should
reduce the disproportionate regulatory burden on National Park Authorities
that is designed for larger and more complex Local Authorities.” This view is
endorsed by Future Landscapes Wales which is advocating that work should
begin immediately to develop a proportionate approach to planning and
performance reporting which discharges duties under the Well-being of
Future Generations Act and can be adopted as substitutes or supplements to
the other statutory reporting requirements.

4.3.8 As part of the new Bill the 2009 Local Government Measure will no longer
apply to National Park Authorities from the same date as Local Authorities.
They will not be subject to the new improvement and performance regime set
out for Local Authorities. An alternative approach will be developed tailored to
the needs and size of the National Park Authorities, but consistent across all
three.

Consultation Question 21:

The Welsh Government believes that Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2009 should be repealed for all Improvement Authorities’. Do you agree?
Why?

Local Authorities

4.3.9 Following positive feedback, Welsh Government remains committed to
changing the performance framework to one that is guided by the principles
of the WFG Act and informed by good governance principles. Local
Authorities will be required to secure good governance (as set out by the
CIPFA good governance framework)** and in doing so take part in self
assessment and peer review. Local government, working with its partners
and with constructive external challenge, is best placed to understand how to
build and deliver excellence within the sector, for the sector. The provisions
in the Draft Bill allow for flexibility in how Local Authorities approached self
assessment and peer review. We remain committed to local ownership of
performance and giving Local Authorities choice in how they deliver
improvement.

4.3.10 Our expectations of Local Authorities to take greater responsibility for their
improvement journey remains. Welsh Government intends to require
Corporate Governance and Audit Committees to take a greater role in
challenging the performance of their Local Authority area, ensuring Elected
Members are at the heart of driving improvement.

4.3.11 Audit, inspection and regulation bodies also have a role to play in enabling
local government to achieve more for local people. Welsh Government
remains committed to asking these bodies to work together more effectively
and also work more closely with Authorities to support better outcomes for
citizens.

4.3.12 As previously set out, Welsh Government will retain a power of intervention,
and the ability to commission and act upon the findings of independent
governance reviews, where there are concerns. This is in addition to
intervention arrangements under service specific areas.

 http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/international-framework-good-governance-in-

the-public-sector
Tudalen 237


http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/international-framework-good-governance-in-the-public-sector
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/international-framework-good-governance-in-the-public-sector

40

White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Leading Localities

5. LEADING LOCALITIES
5.1  Working in Partnership with People

5.1.1

5.1.2

Local government has a key role in helping communities to define the futures
to which they aspire. This isn’t just about organisations working with each
other when there is crisis; but about how they work together with their
communities to prevent crisis. Co-production with citizens must be at the
heart of this. There are legitimate roles for local communities (whether
through a Community Council and/ or community groups), Local Authorities,
regional bodies, and national Governments in ‘place shaping’.

In shaping the future for communities in Wales there needs to be a golden
thread that links community level aspirations with national goals. The Well-
being Goals set that framework. To make this golden thread a reality requires
close working between Community Councils, Local Authorities, other public
bodies and Public Services Boards, and any regional arrangements. The
challenge will be to all head in the same direction, without unnecessary
duplication. Working in partnership to maximise outcomes for people and
communities; ensuring that organisations are undertaking the most impactful
activity given their skills, expertise, and remit.

5.2 Role of Councillors

521

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.24

Our proposals for local government reform put Councillors at the heart of the
process, leading their local communities. Local Councillors, whether sitting
on Community Councils or Local Authorities, are critical in advocating for
communities and individuals. They are elected to represent their
communities, speaking up for their ambitions and aspirations, but also
holding to account those responsible for decisions around and delivery of
services, ensuring that services meet the needs of local people and
communities.

Councillors must represent their communities, but they should also be
representative of their communities. Our aim is to promote greater diversity
amongst those who stand for election. To strengthen this connection we are
taking steps to increase diversity among those who stand for election and
encourage greater participation in local democracy.

We have been working over the last three years to create a diverse pool of
candidates for the local elections later this year. Since the publication of the
McAllister report “On Balance” in 2014, the Welsh Government has led the
Diversity in Democracy campaign. As well as encouraging political parties to
commit themselves to selecting candidates from under-represented groups in
winnable seats, the campaign has included the recruitment of around 50
mentees, who have shadowed existing Councillors.

We will use evidence from the WLGA'’s exit survey on Councillors standing
down this year, the candidates’ survey of all those standing for election this
year, and the evaluation of our Diversity in Democracy programme to
examine how the profile of Councillors changes in 2017 and give
consideration to what more needs to be done.

> http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/expert-group-report/?lang=en

Tudalen 238


http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/expert-group-report/?lang=en

41
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Leading Localities

5.2.5 We propose to retain the provisions from the Draft Bill which would require
Local Authorities to produce strategies explaining how the public can
understand how decisions are made and how they can participate in the
process. In addition, we intend to make broadcasting of Council meetings —
already widely practised — a statutory requirement and Councils will be
required also to allow Members to attend Council meetings remotely if they
have domestic, business or travel difficulties preventing them getting to the
main meeting place.

5.2.6 New duties for Leaders of political groups to ensure high standards of
conduct amongst their members will add to a package designed to make life
as a Councillor more attractive and to encourage a more diverse range of
people to consider involvement in the future.

5.2.7 Councillors are the voice of their communities. The previous White Paper and
Draft Bill sought views designed to provide clarity as to what local people can
expect from Local Authority Councillors. This included holding regular
surgeries, responding to correspondence in set timescales, publishing
reports on their activities. In the light of the Jo Cox tragedy and other
representations, we intend to modify the need to hold surgeries with a
provision which requires that Councillors must provide opportunities for their
constituents to be in contact with them, there will be a menu of choices that
Councillors will be able to choose from to best suit their local communities.

5.2.8 The Draft Bill included some proposals which we now consider to be too
rigid. Leaders were to be required to hold annual public meetings. All
Councillors were to be required to produce annual reports. Instead we intend
to bring forward proposals that offer Leaders and Councillors a menu of how
they might improve, where necessary, their interaction with the public. The
important point will be that they engage consistently — and make themselves
available to the public — and provide regular information as to how they have
done this.

Consultation Question 22:

The Welsh Government believes there should be minimum expectations on
Councillors for interacting with their local constituents. Do you agree or disagree? If
so, what should these minimum expectations be?

5.3 Listening to Localities

5.3.1 Local people and communities should also have the opportunity to put their
views forward through an open dialogue with their Local Authority. The
previous White Paper and Draft Bill set out proposals requiring Local
Authorities to set out how they intend to support and encourage their local
communities to participate in the democratic process, outlining how local
people would be able to contribute to the development of plans and policies.
We believe this remains critical and we intend this to include how local
people can be part of the regional as well as the local democratic process.

5.3.2 The previous White Paper and Draft Bill proposed a requirement to establish
‘community area committees’ for all Local Authorities as a mechanism for
gathering views on local priorities and objectives to be fed into the decision-
making process. There was strong resistance to requiring such an
arrangement in the previous consultation, particularly around the potential for
these committees to take on functions. Part of the rationale for ‘community

Tudalen 239



42
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Leading Localities

area committees’ was to counterbalance concerns that larger merged Local
Authorities would be further from local communities, therefore such a
provision is no longer necessary. However, Section 18 of the Local
Government Act 2008 already allows Local Authorities to establish area
committees; some Local Authorities are using these and have indicated that
the legislation could be amended so Local Authorities could choose to
establish them or to use existing area committees to be used in more flexible
ways.

Consultation Question 23:

The Welsh Government believes it could be helpful to make some minor changes to
existing area committee legislation to increase their flexibility. What do you believe
these changes should be?

5.4 Balancing Local and Regional Leadership

5.4.1 The requirement for Local Authorities to work on a regional basis will have
implications for the way in which Councillors, the Local Authority and
employees operate. All will need to be clear about how they balance the
responsibilities they have to their local area, with those for the larger region.

5.4.2 Councillors and officers are expected to act with integrity, honesty,
impartiality and objectivity for the best interests of their communities and to
act in the public interest. The proposed regional arrangements will require
them to act in the interests of both their Local Authority and any regional
arrangement. There will be times when decisions made in one setting will
have implications for the other. We will have to be clear about how these
responsibilities interact with each other.

5.4.3 We intend to review the Member'® and employee®’ codes of conduct to
ensure they support effective decision-making at the local and regional level.

Consultation Question 24

The requirement for Local Authorities to work on a regional basis will require
Councillors, the Local Authority and employees to balance the responsibilities they
have to their local area, with those for the larger region. How best could this be
achieved?

55 Local Government Functions

5.5.1 In the previous White Paper and Draft Bill, we proposed to revoke Section 13
of the Local Government Act 2000 and replace it with provisions which would
allow Local Authorities to make their own decisions on the allocations of
functions, subject to statutory guidance and a fall-back power of intervention
by Welsh Ministers. In delivering the new regional model, Local Authorities
may need to delegate functions to the regional arrangement. There could be
significant complications if these functions are delegated in different ways. It
would also affect the representation of the participating authorities if functions
were the responsibility of the executive in some, but the full Council in others.

'® The conduct of members is governed by a set of 10 general principles of conduct (based on the 7
Nolan principles) prescribed in the Conduct of Members (Principles) (Wales) Order 2001 and a code of
conduct prescribed in the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) Order 2008.

" The code of conduct for “qualifying employees” is prescribed in Code of Conduct (Qualifying Local
government Employees) (Wales) Order 2001

Tudalen 240



43
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Leading Localities

5.5.2 During the initial stage of the establishment of regional arrangements, it
would be best if individual Local Authorities had similar provisions for the
responsibility for functions within the Council. In the longer term, it may be
possible to revisit this and see whether a change along the lines previously
considered would be practical and preferable. Therefore Welsh Government
IS not proposing to move from the existing regime at this time.

5.5.3 Inthe meantime, Welsh Government intends to consult with local
government on amendments which are required to the existing regulations in
order to capture new responsibilities which have been placed on Local
Authorities in recent years.

5.5.4 The Localism Act 2011 enabled English authorities to return to the committee
system. Only a handful have done so. The Welsh Government suggests that
Councils in Wales should have the opportunity to choose a non-executive
model if they wish. Any move away from a cabinet system would require
different rules for the appointment of members to any joint regional
governance arrangement. They would have to ensure that it did not provide
an obstacle to them effectively participating in regional arrangements.

Consultation Question 25:

The Welsh Government intends to make a return to a form of the committee system
available to Local Authorities where it best meets local circumstances. How would
this option best work within the context of the proposals for new regional
arrangements?

5.6 Leadership from Officers

5.6.1 The move to a regional model will take time. Leading the workforce during
this period will require strategic vision across all tiers of the organisation.
Evidence has shown that leaders who are not committed fully to a process
fail to maximise the opportunities for change.

5.6.2 Bringing together disparate teams to plan, commission and deliver a single
regionalised service brings immediate challenges but longer term benefits.
Leaders will need to consider how they can for example, harmonise terms
and conditions that will meet the needs of both the workforce and the
organisations.

5.6.3 Collaborative arrangements will have implications for all statutory officers.
There are a number of statutory positions that have been created including:
e Head of Paid Service
e Chief Finance Officer
e Monitoring Officer
e Head of Democratic Service
e Director of Social Services
e Director of Education
e Director of Children’s Services

5.6.4 Delivery of a regional service would be best facilitated if the statutory
responsibilities for that regional service fell to a single individual, for example
education responsibility would fall to a regional education director. The
structure beneath the regional management will be for the Local Authorities

Tudalen 241



44
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Leading Localities

and regional management to discuss and agree. It is envisaged that the
organisational structures beneath the regional management team will adapt
over time. We will examine the existing legislation in respect of statutory
officers to ensure it contains appropriate provisions, so that, over-time, clarity
can continue to be provided as to how a regional model would work in terms
of statutory officers responsibilities.

Consultation Question 26:

The Welsh Government believes it may be appropriate to limit future designation of
relevant statutory Senior Officer posts to a regional level where the functions are
being delivered regionally. Do you believe this is appropriate? Why? If so, how might
this best be delivered?

Tudalen 242



45
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Community Councils

6. COMMUNITY COUNCILS

6.1.1 The WFG Act provides a shared vision for public services in Wales for the
future. Community Councils should all be considering how they can
increasingly work with other partners and local citizens to contribute to the
well-being of their area, regardless of whether they have a legal duty to do so
or not.

6.1.2 Community Councils are an integral part of local government. They are often
closest to people and local communities, and therefore uniquely placed to
see, and provide, those services which can have a significant impact on an
individual’s well-being. Where Community Councils exist within an area,
Local Authorities and Public Services Boards will look to them to be a voice
of communities. Like Local Authority Councillors, Community Councillors
must represent and be representative of their communities. They should
actively engage with their local people and businesses to help identify
ambitions and needs of local communities, but also to understand the
strengths and assets that their communities have.

6.1.3 There is enormous variability in current arrangements, not only in terms of
coverage, but in responsibilities, budgets and ambition. As such it is
important that we take the opportunity to consider what we could learn from
the high performing Community Councils and give consideration to how we
might support all Community Councils into this space. This includes
consideration of the support that Community Councils might need, but also
the flexibility that would help them go further in their ambitions.

6.1.4 We need to open up an honest debate about what the future of Community
Councils might look like, and consider what the right organisational format is
to support local communities. To contribute to this debate the Welsh
Government will commission a comprehensive review of the Community
Council sector. Until we have concluded that work we do not intend to
proceed with structural reform or to commission the Local Democracy and
Boundary Commission for Wales to undertake reviews of Community Council
arrangements at this time.

6.1.5 Whilst we need to look to the longer term future of Community Councils, the
sector cannot stand still. There are things that can be done now to strengthen
the role of Community Councils and improve their operation and governance,
enabling them to take on the provision of services and assets to local
communities where they choose to do so.

6.1.6 We have developed an ‘agenda of action’ to help build resilience and renewal
in the sector in the short to medium term. Many of these are actions we can
take together using existing powers.

e Producing a toolkit to support Community Councils in working through
what is required in taking on new services and assets, building on
experiences of the key ingredients.

e Re-energising ties between Community Councils and Local Authorities
and provide a platform to share the good examples across Wales,
bringing the new cadre of county and Community Councillors together
after the Local government elections next year at a conference focused
on strengthening these key relationships.

Tudalen 243



46

White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Community Councils

Facilitating the creation of clusters of smaller Community Councils, by
making some modest funding available to support the initial setting up of
joint arrangements.

Commissioning the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for
Wales to draw up guidelines for Local Authorities to secure consistency in
the manner in which community reviews are conducted.

Supporting Community Councils to raise awareness of and encourage
participation in Community Council elections, and to increase diversity.

6.1.7 Some of the actions we can take would require us to legislate, and we intend
to use this opportunity to do so.

Making the General Power of Competence available to innovative
ambitious Councils looking for more freedom to serve their communities.
The proposal we have previously consulted on remains essentially the
same, with some changes planned to how Councils which meet the
requirements and pass a resolution are referred to: and how long
Councils continue to hold the status after passing a resolution

Previously we proposed placing a duty on Local Authorities to consider
whether certain training should be compulsory for members of Community
Councils. We still believe there would be value in all Community Councils
considering whether they have the skills and expertise needed to be able
to operate effectively. Therefore we intend to place an obligation on
Community Councils to consider and plan for their training needs, and
publish and review their plan regularly. The duty could be met in a way
which was proportionate to the size and responsibilities of the Council.

Ensuring citizens are kept informed and have the right to make
representations on any business conducted at a Council meeting,
learning from where this is done well. This is part of an ethos of co-
production.

Consultation Question 27:

The Welsh Government believes there are things that can be done now to help build
resilience and renewal in the sector in the short to medium term and would welcome
comments on the list of actions at paragraph 6.1.6 that could be taken in the short
term to help the sector be more effective/ resilient views on any other actions which
could be taken?

Tudalen 244



47
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Elections and Voting in Wales

1. ELECTIONS AND VOTING

7.1.1 This White Paper is being published as the Wales Bill comes towards the end
of its Parliamentary journey. Therefore many of the proposals that we are
seeking views on in this chapter are predicated on the National Assembly for
Wales assuming greater responsibility in these areas. We are therefore
seeking initial views to help inform thinking on reforms to electoral
registration and voting arrangements. The National Assembly will be
considering separately the potential for reforms to its elections. A more
detailed consultation will take place later this year, subject to the Wales Bill
being passed, on the detail of reforms.

7.1.2 Proposals Welsh Government are likely to consider are; a review of postal
voting procedures, the use of all-postal elections, electronic voting, electronic
counting of votes, voting at places other than polling stations, and proposals
to hold elections on different days. Consideration will also be given to
whether local returning officers/ electoral registration officers would be
allowed to trial these reforms in different ways better to meet the needs of
different communities and locations. Proposals will be brought forward to
remove entitlement to personal fees for returning officers.

7.1.3 Welsh Government also intends to explore how a singe electronic register for
Wales might be developed. This would include looking at issues such as;
data sharing, automatic voter registration, and greater access to register
information by Local Authority staff. Importantly, consideration will be given to
reducing the voting age to 16 for local government elections. It should be
noted that the franchise for elections to the National Assembly is the same as
that for local government. On the basis of the provisions of the Wales Bill, the
Assembly would be able to determine whether that arrangement would
remain for the future.

7.1.4 Welsh Government remains committed to moving to a five-year term for local
government. However in doing so we would require greater transparency for
those standing for office. We are considering a proposal to require
candidates to make clear whether they were or are members of a registered
political party, whether they were formally selected to stand for that party or
not. All candidates would also be required to publish election statements to a
central website to allow voters easily to access information on the manifestos
of all candidates. Welsh Government intend to take forward previous
proposals preventing Assembly Members from also serving as Councillors
concurrently.

7.1.5 Each Local Authority has its own democratic mandate and is made up of
Councillors who serve as the directly elected representatives of local people.
It is vital that the system for electing local Councillors is one which
commands the respect and confidence of local people. Therefore we are
exploring the following reforms which would allow local government greater
flexibility to put in place local electoral arrangements.

7.1.6 Currently Local Authorities in Wales use the ‘First Past the Post’ system'® of
voting. It has been used in local government elections in Wales for well over
a century. ‘First Past the Post’ means that candidates with the most votes win

'8 First Past the Post System: Voters put an X next to their favoured candidate and the candidate with
the most votes in the constituency wins.
Tudalen 245



48
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Elections and Voting

seats. For example, an area is divided into a number of electoral wards and
each ward has a fixed number of Councillors, this can range from one up to
as many as five. In an election, voters in a ward have as many votes as there
are Councillors (although the voter need not use every vote). The votes cast
for each candidate are counted and totalled. If the ward is entitled to one
Councillor, then the candidate with the most votes in that ward is elected; if
the ward is entitled to two Councillors, the two candidates with the most votes
in that ward are elected, etc up to five candidates.

7.1.7 Supporters of the ‘First Past the Post’ system take the view that the voting
and counting procedures are simple and there is a straightforward
relationship between where a candidate finishes in the final tally and whether
or not they are elected. Opponents claim that the system produces results
which are often disproportional, (i.e. the system favours the strongest party
locally and therefore does not reflect the preferences of voters across the
area). Critics also take the view that this system encourages tactical voting
and votes can be “wasted” i.e. cast for candidates who have little or no
chance of winning, or for the winning candidate above the level they need to
win.

7.1.8 The Welsh Government believes, subject to powers in this area being
devolved to Wales, that like the National Assembly for Wales, local
authorities as a tier of government should have the opportunity to consider
the appropriateness of their own voting arrangements.

7.1.9 There are several other systems in use elsewhere. For example, elections to
the National Assembly for Wales, the Scottish Parliament and the London
Assembly are conducted under the ‘Additional Member’ system'®; elections
in Great Britain to the European Parliament are held under the ‘Party List’
system.?’ The ‘Additional Member and ‘Party List' systems require voters to
choose from a list of candidates presented by a registered political party.
Whilst Independent and non-affiliated candidates are able to stand their
chances of election are much reduced.

7.1.10 The Northern Ireland Legislative Assembly and local Councils in both
Scotland and Northern Ireland are elected using the ‘Single Transferable
Vote’ system.?! In the ‘Single Transferable Vote’ system voters are asked to
rank the available candidates in order of preference. To be elected, a
candidate must achieve a minimum “quota”, or share of the votes,
determined by a calculation based on the number of people voting and the
number of seats to be filled. By ranking their vote, if the voter’s preferred
candidate has no chance of being elected or has enough votes to achieve

19 Additional Member System: A hybrid voting system where voters are asked to vote in two ways. It
combines elements of First Past the Post where voters mark an X next to the candidate they want to
represent them in their constituency, and proportional representation, where voters mark an X next to
a party who have a list of candidates to represent a larger regional constituency.

2% party List System: Parties present lists of candidates, seats are awarded according to their party’s
share of the vote. This is usually done using an electoral formula or a quota.

2 Single Transferable Vote System: Voters rank candidates in order of preference. To get elected,
candidates need to reach a set share of the votes (determined by the number of seats to be filled).
Each voter gets one vote, which can transfer from their first-preference to their second-preference. If
your preferred candidate has little chance of being elected or has enough votes already, your vote is
transferred to your second choice candidate in accordance with your instructions.

Tudalen 246



49
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Elections and Voting in Wales

and exceed the quota, their vote may be transferred from the voter’s first-
preference to their second-preference.

7.1.11 The ‘Single Transferable Vote’ system produces election results which
generally reflect the proportions of votes cast for the different political parties,
groups and independents across the total area. This system does not present
the same difficulties for independent or non-affiliated candidates as the
‘Additional Member’ or ‘Party List’ systems.

7.1.12 The Welsh Government considers that, because of the substantial presence
of independent candidates, among the alternatives, the other electoral
system which best reflects the current and future needs of local government
in Wales is the ‘Single Transferable Vote’. As such, the Welsh Government
proposes to make legislation which will allow Councils in Wales to decide
which voting system best reflects the needs of their local people and
communities. Local Authorities will be able to use the ‘First Past the Post’ or
the ‘Single Transferable Vote’ systems for elections to their Council.?* It will
be for Councils themselves to make the choice of voting systems for their
own localities.

7.1.13 Councils will continue to use the current electoral system, until such time as
they decide to change. If a Council decides to change electoral
arrangements, it must use the new system for at least the next two whole
Council (“ordinary”) elections which follow the decision. After two whole
Council elections under the new electoral system, a Council will be able to
switch back to the previous system if it chooses to do so. By-elections will be
held using the same electoral system as is being used for the whole Council
elections.

7.1.14 The Welsh Government does not intend to extend the option to Community
Councils of the ‘Single Transferable Vote’ system at this time. It will be
considered as part of the review of Community Councils paragraph 6.1.4
refers.

Consultation Question 28:
The Welsh Government is seeking initial views on all of the proposals set out in
Chapter 7 on elections and voting.

Consultation Question 29:
The Welsh Government would welcome any views on the potential financial and non-
financial benefits and costs associated with the proposals in the White Paper.

Consultation Question 30:

The Welsh Language Impact Assessment published alongside the White Paper
outlines the Welsh Government’s view of the effect of the proposals contained in the
White Paper on the opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and treating
the Welsh language no less favorably than the English language. The Welsh
Government seeks views on that assessment. Are there any other positive or
adverse effects not identified in the assessment? Could the proposals be re-
formulated so as to increase the positive effects or reduce any possible adverse
effects?

2 The proposal is conditional on the National Assembly for Wales being granted responsibility for local
government elections under the Wales Bill currently going through Parliament
Tudalen 247



50
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Elections and Voting

Consultation Question 31:

The Children’s Rights Impact Assessment published alongside the White Paper
outlines the Welsh Government’s view of the effect of the proposals contained in the
White Paper on children and young people. The Welsh Government seeks views on
that assessment. Are there any other positive or adverse effects not identified in the
assessment? Could the proposals be re-formulated so as to increase the positive
effects or reduce any possible adverse effects?

Consultation Question 32:

The Equalities Impact Assessment published alongside the White Paper outlines the
Welsh Government’s view of the effect of the proposals contained in the White Paper
on protected groups under the Equality Act 2010. The Welsh Government seeks
views on that assessment. Are there any other positive or adverse effects not
identified in the assessment? Could the proposals be re-formulated so as to increase
the positive effects or reduce any possible adverse effects?

Consultation Question 33:
Please provide any other comments you wish to make on the content of this White
Paper.

Tudalen 248



6¥¢ usfepnL

51
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft Bill Consultation

8.  ANNEX ONE: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft Bill Consultation

Table One: Status of Previous Draft Bill Provisions

Policy Proposal

Included
in new

Bill

Commentary

Part 1: Local Government Areas and Councils

Local government areas
(Compulsory Mergers)

Omit

Compulsory mergers are no longer Government policy.

County Councils

Retain

These sections are mainly intended to update and make clearer the language used to
express the basic constitutional arrangements for Local Authorities in Wales. Retention
is part of a long term process to make the ancient and sometimes complex law of Local
Authority constitutions more open and transparent.

Section 12 (change of name of Council) will be retained but amended to refer to county
boroughs also, since county borough status will not be abolished as originally proposed.

Establishing the Councils
for the new counties

Omit

Proposal was consequential upon compulsory mergers.

Part 2: General Power of Competence

There was widespread support for a general power of competence. This proposal will be

councils

The general power Include included in the new BiIll.
Eligibility for the general Basic proposal remains, some changes to the community councils which meet the
power for Community Amend requirements and pass a resolution are referred to: and how long councils continue to

hold the status after passing a resolution.

Part 3: Promoting Access to Local Government

Public participation in local

This proposal will be included in the new Bill. It would place a duty on Local Authorities
to encourage local people to participate in the Council’s decision-making processes,

government Retain input their views and have them taken into account. would also require Councils will be
required to consult widely on their budget proposals.
Omit requirement to have Area Committees of the kind expressed in previous provisions.
Community area Amend The White Paper seeks views as to whether, for those local authorities which might wish
committees to operate or continue to operate area committees, any changes are required to the
current provisions.
Improvement requests Omit There was not sufficient support for this proposal.




0G¢ usfepnlL

52
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed

Annex: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft Bill Consultation

Included

Policy Proposal

in new
Bill

Commentary

Duty on Leaders/mayors to address public meetings to be modified to enable flexibility
: about how Leaders engage with the public. This will include a requirement to publish
Access to meetings etc Amend how they intend to do this and report on how successful their initiatives have been. Other
proposals in this section retained for inclusion in the new Bill.
. This proposal will be included in the new Bill. It will require Councils to produce an easy-
Duty to publish a . . o : N
o . Retain to-read summary of their constitution, enabling people to see how decisions are made
constitution guide
and by whom.
Part 4. Functions of County Councils and Their Members
Retain in principle but make some minor amendments such as the duty to hold surgeries
to be changed to one of facilitating discussion of constituents’ issues with them in
Duties on members of private; annual reports duty to be replaced by one requiring Councillors to say how they
. Amend . 2 A . .
county Councils have carried out communications with their electorate. In response to consultation
responses, we intend to extend the period of time from two to three weeks for
Councillors to respond to correspondence.
A Member receiving a sanction from a standards committee can become subject to a
Breaches of duties Amend petition which, if receiving sufficient signatures (at least 20% of the local electorate),
would trigger a by election.
Leaders of political groups to be required to promote good standards of conduct
Further provisions about . amongst their Members. This proposal will be included in the new Bill. The provisions
. Retain . ) . - . o
duties on members relating to the role of standards committees in providing advice and training on the new
duties of members will also be retained.
Executives of county We will retain the need for leaders to agree objectives with their Cabinet Members, but
: Amend - : )
Councils allow flexibility about the regularity of review.
. . , This proposal will be included in the new Bill. It will require leaders to make
Appointment of certain chief . . . .
A Retain arrangements to manage the performance of the chief executive and also provide that
officers . . , ) "
the Head of Democratic Services become a chief officer position.
Overv!ew and scrutiny . This proposal will be included in the new Bill and will require the establishment of joint
committees and standards | Retain . . ) . : i :
. overview and scrutiny committees where services are being delivered collaboratively.
committees
'V'"?‘” a_\mendments to other Retain These will be included in the new Bill.
legislation




1G¢ usjepnL

Policy Proposal

Included
in new

Bill

53
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft Bill Consultation

Commentary

Part 5: County Councils: Improvement of Governance

Duty to make arrangements

Retain This proposal will be included in the new Bill.
to secure good governance
Corporate plans Omit The WFG Act in effect already asks local authorities to produce a corporate plan.

This proposal will be included in the new Bill. Local Authorities will be required to secure

Assessments of Retain good governance, this will be tested through regular self assessment and period peer
governance arrangements review. ’
S]fe"f/re”n"’;ﬂ;e reviewsand | potain | This proposal will be included in the new Bill
Co-ordination between Amend This proposal will be included in the new Bill but amended following feedback from
regulators regulators.
Corporate governance and Retain This proposal will be included in the new Bill.

audit committees

Part 6: Community Councils

Review of Community

An independent review to take a more comprehensive look at the future of the

. Omit . ; . ! T
Council arrangements community council sector is being commissioned, .
Members of Community Rather than require Community Councillors to undertake specific training community
Councils to complete Amend councils will be placed under a duty to consider their training needs and prepare and
training publish a plan setting out how it proposes to respond to the training needs identified.
The proposal to change the term of office from four years to five years is retained but the
Community Council election change no longer needs to be linked to the timescales for introducing compulsory
Amend ) ) . ) ) ) .
dates mergers and will be linked to the introduction of five year terms for principal authorities
generally.
Part 7: Workforce Matters
Guidance on workforce Consideration will be given to retaining a statutory guidance power, enabling Welsh
Amend . . i
matters Ministers to issue guidance about workforce matters.
Public Services Staff Omit The Staff Commission will not be put on a statutory footing but will continue until April

Commission

2018.

Part 8: General and Schedules

General

Interpretation |

Amend

| Will need to reflect final content of Bill on introduction.




¢G¢ usfepnyL

54
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft Bill Consultation

Included

Policy Proposal in new Commentary
Bill

Application of Act in relation
to counties and county Omit Provision was consequential upon compulsory mergers.
boroughs until 1 April 2020
Powers to make

consequential etc provision | Amend Will need to reflect final content of Bill on introduction.
/ regulations and orders

Coming into force Amend Will need to reflect final content of Bill on introduction.
Schedules
Counties in Wales Omit Provision was consequential upon part 1, chapter 1
New_Councns. first ordinary Omit Provision was consequential upon part 1, chapter 1
elections
New Councils: finance Omit Provision was consequential upon part 1, chapter 1
Transitional etc provision Omit Provision was consequential upon part 1, chapter 1
Most of these provisions are linked to the intention to update and make clearer the
Retain language used to express Local Authorities’ constitutional arrangements and these will
The 1972 Act: amendments | with be retained. County borough status will continue so the provisions which removed the
and transitional provision some status are not needed and will be omitted. Omit the provisions which removed the

omitted options to have elections by halves and thirds. Principal authorities will continue to have
the options available to them.

Assistants to Local

Authority executives Retain Enables appointment of deputy cabinet members.

Consequential

amendments: chief Retain Council Leaders will be required to set objectives for chief executives.

executive

Community area . . . . : . L . :
committees: further Omit Consideration now being given to amending existing legislation which provides for local

authorities to have area committees, rather than replacing it.
amendments and repeals

Renaming of county Council Retain Broadens power of audit committees and renames as Audit and Corporate Governance
audit committees Committees




€a¢ usfepnlL

55
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft Bill Consultation

Table Two: Status of Proposals in the Accompanying Consultation Document to the Draft Bill (where not covered in the

White Paper above)

Policy Proposal

Included
in new
Bill

Commentary

Part 1: Local Government Areas and Councils

Accounts and Audit

If there are any changes required to the existing framework as a result of mandatory and

Requirements Include systematic regional working, these will need to be reflected in the new Bill.
Council Tax Exclude | Linked to Local Authority merger proposals.

Additional powers for Billing Authorities to require information from non-domestic rate
Non-Domestic Rates Include payers and inspect non-domestic properties, where necessary for the investigation of

potential fraud or avoidance of rates.

Part 3: Promoting Access to Local Government

Conduct of business

This will enable notices of meetings and other papers to be produced electronically only,

(review of schedule 12, Include if so desired

LGA 1972) if so desired.

Remov_al of the restriction This will enable community councils to hold meetings in licensed premises.

on having community : ) . : . .
Include There is no longer an intention to propose that community councils adopt standing

council meetings in licensed
premises

orders prohibiting the consumption of alcohol at meetings.

Part 4: General Power of Competence

Delegation of functions to

It is proposed to reform Part 2 of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994 to

third parties Include provide fora new regime that_ will aIIQW Local Authorities to delegate thg gxercise of
certain of their functions to third parties, by order made by the Welsh Ministers.

Electoral Qualifications — Consideration of whether an elected member of a principal council should be able to

‘serving on more than one Exclude | serve on a Community Council, or a community Councillor should be able to serve more

council than one community council, will form part of the review of the community council sector.

Remote attendance at Include This will make it a requirement for Local Authorities to have arrangements for remote

meetings attendance.

Remuneration of members: Exclude | Welsh Ministers can provide view to IRP in the remit letter if so desired.

power for WMS to guide the




7S¢ usfepnl

56
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex: Status of Proposals Consulted on as Part of the Previous Draft Bill Consultation

Included

Policy Proposal in new Commentary
Bill

IRP to review model of
remuneration.

Powers to dismiss Senior
Officers

Transfer of Local Authority
assets / community asset Exclude
transfer
Part 5: County Councils: Improvement of Governance
State of Local Government

Exclude | No enthusiasm to follow English route of dispensing with role of Independent Person.

Existing guidance on community asset transfers was updated in March 2016 and will
continue to be kept under review.

Report Omit We do not intend to pursue powers in this area.
Single Information Portal Omit Legislation would not be required to create an information portal

. . Complaints handling would be considered under the broader ‘good governance’
Complaints Omit

requirement

Part 6: Community Councils
Community councils:
publication of annual report

Omit No longer proceeding with this requirement.

Consultation on the previous draft bill showed general support for performance

Omit management but confirmed this was already happening as part of good employment
practices and did not need to be further legislated for.

Consideration is being given to potential for consolidation of existing legislation but any
Omit proposed changes to the provisions in the Local Government Act 1972 would need to be
informed by the review of the community council sector.

Provisions in relation to polls conducted for the purpose of forming or dissolving a
Community Polls Omit community council will stay in place pending the review of the community council sector
and any legislative reform which follows.

Performance Management
of Community Councils

Review of Community
Council legislation




57
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex Two: Consultation Questions

9. ANNEX TWO: Consultation Questions

Your Name

Organisation
(if applicable)

Email/ telephone

Your address

CHAPTER 2
Consultation Question 1. (Para 2.2.1):

The Welsh Government believes that it appropriate to consider ‘tests’ to frame
thinking around regional working.

a) Do you think the ‘tests’ set out are helpful in guiding thinking?

b) Are there other tests or considerations that might also be used?

Consultation Question 2. (Para 2.3.35):
In this White Paper the Welsh Government has set out a number of areas which it
believes should be required to be delivered on a regional basis.

a) Do you agree that these areas should be delivered regionally?

b) What practical considerations should we consider in taking these proposals
forward?

c) What other ‘ancillary’ powers would be required to ensure the effective exercise
of the functions exercised regionally?

Consultation Question 3. (Para 2.3.43):
In this White Paper the Welsh Government has set out a number of areas which it
believes could also be delivered on a regional basis.

a) Do you think that Local Authorities should also be required to work regionally to
deliver these functions?

b) Are there any other practical considerations we should be aware of?

Consultation Question 4. (Para 2.3.43):
Are there any other functions that would benefit from a systematic approach to
regional working?

Tudalen 255



58
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex Two: Consultation Questions

Consultation Question 5.  (Para 2.3.43):

Welsh Government believes that, subject to engagement with local government
and other partners, there should be flexibility to enable Welsh Ministers to mandate
additional functions to be undertaken regionally.

Do you agree or disagree? Why?

Consultation Question 6. (Para 2.3.44):

The Welsh Government believes that the new arrangements should not prevent
Local Authorities using their existing powers to undertake additional functions
regionally.

Do you agree or disagree? Why?

Consultation Question 7.  (Para 2.4.16):
The Welsh Government believes that some back office and transactional services
ought to be organised and delivered regionally or nationally.

Which services do you believe could best be organised and delivered these ways?

Consultation Question 8. (Para 2.4.16):
The Welsh Government believes that overcoming data sharing issues is key to
taking forward greater regional working of back office functions.

a) What legislative obstacles have made progress on sharing services difficult?

b) How have they been or could they be overcome?

c) What challenges does data sharing pose?

Consultation Question 9. (Para 2.4.16):
The Welsh Government believes sharing more back office functions would be
helpful. There are a number of options:
e Enable the NHS Wales Shared Service Partnership for providing services to
local government (and others)
e Establish a similar model to provide back office services to local government
(and others).
e Establish an alternative model to provide back office services to local
government (and others).

a) Which do you believe would be most appropriate to best support regional
working? Why?

Tudalen 256



59
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex Two: Consultation Questions

b) What other alternative models could work effectively and what steps could the
Welsh Ministers take to enable or encourage local government-led alternative
models to be implemented?

Consultation Question 10. (Para 2.4.21):

The Welsh Government believes that joint understanding and planning of public
sector assets is essential to maximize their impact and that this requires regional
mapping of estates assets and future intentions .

a) How can this joint governance and decision making best be achieved?

b) Is the larger economic footprint the right one?

Consultation Question 11. (Para 2.5.16):

The Welsh Government believes a strengthened joint committee (a ‘Joint
Governance Committee’) offers an appropriate governance model for regionally
delivered services and intends to set out a framework for local government to use
to deliver this.

a) What should the democratic accountability and scrutiny arrangements be for
such a model?

b) Should each participating Local Authority have equal voting rights or should
they be weighted in some way?

Consultation Question 12. (Para 2.6.5):

The Welsh Government believes that in order to put in place arrangements which
reduce complexity for Authorities and their partners the position for Bridgend needs
to be considered. Although Bridgend is fundamentally concerned in this, other
partners including other Local Authorities and the Local Health Boards also have
valid interests. We are therefore seeking views on how best to address the issues
set out here.

Consultation Question 13. (Para 2.7.9):
The Welsh Government believes that ‘Option3: A framework and a Footprint’ is the
most appropriate model for future regional working.

a) What are your thoughts on the proposed mandatory economic development
footprint for ‘Joint Governance Committees’?

b) How could a framework approach for sub-regional working in other services
areas operate in practice?

Tudalen 257



60
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex Two: Consultation Questions

c) Is it appropriate for there to be flexibility for regional working to cross economic
development boundaries in exceptional circumstances? Which circumstances
would they be?

d) How should the governance arrangements at the mandatory economic
development ‘Joint Governance Committees’ have oversight of sub regional
working?

Consultation Question 14. (Para 2.7.9):

The Welsh Government are seeking views on the appropriateness of seeking
powers to create a Combined Authority, in particular, comments on what minimum
expectations there should be in considering the appropriateness of creating a
Combined Authority would be welcomed.

Consultation Question 15. (Para 2.8.7):

The Welsh Government believes that a mandatory financial framework should be
developed to ensure the expenditure of each ‘Joint Governance Committee’ is met
through pooled contributions from the constituent Local Authorities.

a) Should the expenditure of ‘Joint Governance Committees’ be met by constituent
Local Authorities, in proportions to be agreed locally, to ensure the most flexible
approach?

b) Should the framework provide for a default position if local agreement cannot
be reached, and how such a process might be triggered?

c) What further considerations might relate to, or need to be included in, a
financial framework?

Consultation Question 16. (Para 2.10.7):

The Welsh Government believes that to support organisations to move to a more
consistent and regional approach to delivering services it will be necessary to issue
statutory guidance where there is an identified need.

Do you agree or disagree? If you agree, what types of advice, guidance and
support on leadership and workforce matters might lead to greater local, regional
and national consistency?

Consultation Question 17. (Para 2.11.4):
The Welsh Government believes it would be helpful if Public Services Boards could
collaborate or merge across Local Health Board Boundaries.

Do you agree or disagree? Why?

Tudalen 258



61
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex Two: Consultation Questions

Consultation Question 18. (Para 2.11.4):
The Welsh Government believes Public Services Boards should be allowed to de-
merge as well as merge. Do you agree or disagree? Why?

CHAPTER 3
Consultation Question 19. (Para 3.1.7):
The Welsh Government would welcome comments on what minimum expectations
there should be in considering the appropriateness of voluntary merger.

CHAPTER 4
Consultation Question 20. (Para 4.2.3):
The Welsh Government would welcome comments on any of the proposals set out
previously in the draft Local Government Bill and associated consultation paper,
Annex One refers.

Consultation Question 21. (Para 4.3.8):
The Welsh Government believes that Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2009 should be repealed for all ‘Improvement Authorities’.

Do you agree? Why?

CHAPTER 5
Consultation Question 22. (Para 5.2.8):
The Welsh Government believes there should be minimum expectations on
Councillors for interacting with their local constituents.

Do you agree or disagree? If so, what should these minimum expectations be?

Consultation Question 23. (Para 5.3.2):
The Welsh Government believes it could be helpful to make some minor changes
to existing area committee legislation to increase their flexibility.

What do you believe these changes should be?

Consultation Question 24. (Para 5.4.3):

The requirement for Local Authorities to work on a regional basis will require
Councillors, the Local Authority and employees to balance the responsibilities they
have to their local area, with those for the larger region.

How best could this be achieved?

Tudalen 259



62
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex Two: Consultation Questions

Consultation Question 25. (Para 5.5.4):
The Welsh Government intends to make a return to a form of the committee
system available to Local Authorities where it best meets local circumstances.

How would this option best work within the context of the proposals for new
regional arrangements?

Consultation Question 26. (Para 5.6.4):

The Welsh Government believes it may be appropriate to limit future designation of
relevant statutory Senior Officer posts to a regional level where the functions are
being delivered regionally.

Do you believe this is appropriate? Why? If so, how might this best be delivered?

CHAPTER 6

Consultation Question 27. (Para 6.1.7):

The Welsh Government believes there are things that can be done now to help
build resilience and renewal in the sector in the short to medium term and would
welcome comments on the list of actions at paragraph 6.1.6. Views on any other
actions which could be taken are also welcomed

CHAPTER 7 & General Questions

Consultation Question 28. (Para 7.1.14):
The Welsh Government is seeking initial views on all of the proposals set out in
Chapter 7 on elections and voting.

Consultation Question 29. (Para 7.1.14):
The Welsh Government would welcome any views on the potential financial and
non-financial benefits and costs associated with the proposals in the White Paper.

Consultation Question 30. (Para 7.1.14):

The Welsh Language Impact Assessment published alongside the White Paper

outlines the Welsh Government’s view of the effect of the proposals contained in
the White Paper on the opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and

treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. The

Welsh Government seeks views on that assessment.

a) Are there any other positive or adverse effects not identified in the assessment?

b) Could the proposals be re-formulated so as to increase the positive effects or
reduce any possible adverse effects?

Tudalen 260



63
White Paper - Resilient and Renewed
Annex Two: Consultation Questions

Consultation Question 31. (Para 7.1.14):

The Children’s Rights Impact Assessment published alongside the White Paper
outlines the Welsh Government’s view of the effect of the proposals contained in
the White Paper on children and young people. The Welsh Government seeks
views on that assessment.

a) Are there any other positive or adverse effects not identified in the assessment?

b) Could the proposals be re-formulated so as to increase the positive effects or
reduce any possible adverse effects?

Consultation Question 32. (Para 7.1.14):

The Equalities Impact Assessment published alongside the White Paper outlines
the Welsh Government’s view of the effect of the proposals contained in the White
Paper on protected groups under the Equality Act 2010.The Welsh Government
seeks views on that assessment.

a) Are there any other positive or adverse effects not identified in the assessment?

b) Could the proposals be re-formulated so as to increase the positive effects or
reduce any possible adverse effects?

Consultation Question 33. (Para 7.1.14):
Please provide any other comments you wish to make on the content of this White
Paper.

Tudalen 261



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

15FED MEDI 2017

Eitem Rhif 10

CWYNION A CHANMOLIAETH

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Nodi’r adroddiad

Y rhesymau:

Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad hwn yn rhan o faes gorchwyl y Pwyllgor.

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y

Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:

Y Prif Weithredwr

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees-Jones

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swyddi:

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r
Gyfraith

Rheolwr Dros Dro y
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol

Rhifau ffon:
01267 224018
Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Q, ===\
oy g
Uty Con®®

Carmarthenshire

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 263



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS

The authority received 731 complaints during 2016/2017, compared to 501 in
2015/2016. This reverses the trend which has seen the number of complaints reduce
from 573 in 2014/2015. The increase is largely attributable to a significant rise in
complaints regarding waste collection services.

A total of 693 complaints were responded to during the year, including a number
carried over from the previous municipal year.

The number of cases responded to within the required time period rose to 74% which
represents a significant improvement over both previous years (62%and 66%
respectively).

The number of compliments received again fell slightly from 542 to 515.

A detailed analysis of complaints and compliments received by department is set out in
the attached report.

The Committee is asked to note the report.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 264



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“ty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 265



CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 266



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-145

Legal Services, County Hall

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(ot
Ol'l](y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 267




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Complaints and Compliments Report
End of Year

April - March

2016/17

Anthony Maynard
Communities & Safeguarding Manager

Tudalen 269

Page 1 of 24



Contents:

Scrutiny Guidance note 3
1 Principles 4
2 | Definition 4
3 | Complaints investigated & responded to during 2016 - 17 5
4 | Summary of Complaints 6
5 | Redirected Communication 8
6 | Complaints with any equalities or Welsh Language issues 9
7 | Complaints determined by the Ombudsman during 2016/17 9
8 | All Departments Compliments 10
9 Departmental Complaints & Compliment Analysis
9.1 | Chief Executive’s 11
9.2 | Education & Children’s Services (inc corporate and statutory complaints) | 13
9.3 | Corporate Services 15
9.4 | Community (inc corporate and statutory complaints) 16
9.5 | Environment 20
9.6 | Cross Departmental 23

Tudalen 270

Page 2 of 24




Scrutiny Guidance Note

Please refer to these sections of the report

Committee oge
specifically:

9.4
Leisure
Housing

9.5
Planning
Property Services

Community

9.4
Environment & Public Protection | Public Protection
9,5

9.4
Social Care & Health Primary, Community & Social Care
Mental Health & Learning Disabilities

Education & Children’s Services 9.2

9.1

Policy & Resources
9.3

Tudalen 271

Page 3 of 24



1. Principles

Carmarthenshire County Council’s Complaints Procedure was adopted in May 2011.
The procedure aims to emphasise the following principles:

e To ensure that as many complaints as possible are resolved at stage 1 local
resolution.

e To ensure that investigations follow the ‘Investigate Once, Investigate Well’
principle.

e To adopt a stronger emphasis on learning from complaints and utilising them
where possible to reform service design.

2. Definition

The definition of a complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction or concern,
o about a public service provider’s action or lack of action
o or about the standard of service provided
o which requires a response
o whether about the public service provider itself, a person acting on its
behalf, or a public service provider partnership.

Complaints which are currently open and under investigation are not included in this
report.

The complaints referred to within this report are those where the investigation has
been completed during the review period.

Tudalen 272

Page 4 of 24



€lL¢ usfepnyL

3. Complaints investigated and responded to between April 2016 — March 2017

Stage 1 Stage 2

SERVICE No. of No. receiving a No. receiving a No. of No. receiving a No. receiving a

Complaints full response full response Complaints | response within response after

responded within allocated after allocated responded allocated time allocated time

to time period® time period® to period” period

Chief Executives 13 11 85% 2 15% 1 0 0% 1 100%
Education & Children’s Services (excluding
Statutory Complaints) 50 36 72% 14 28% 3 1 34% 2 66%
Corporate Services 24 24 100% 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0%
Communities (excluding Statutory
Complaints) 108 68 63% 40 37% 11 7 64% 4 36%
Environment 445 277 62% 168 38% 13 2 15% 11 85%
Cross Departmental Issues 10 5 50% 5 50% 1 0 0% 1 100%
Statutory Social Services Complaints —
covering Children Services, Adult Social
Services and Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities® 43 11 26% 32 74% 9 0 0% 9 100%
TOTAL 693 432 62% 261 38% 38 10 26% 28 74%

! This is the cumulative figure of complaints investigated and responded to within the period of the report this financial year

2 Any corporate complaint which has been investigated and responded to within 10 working days. Any Statutory Social Service Complaint where an investigation has been undertaken and a
response has been sent within the allocated time period. This initially would be 10 working days, with an additional 10 working day extension with the complainant’s consent

3 Any complaints which have been investigated and responded to outside the allocated time period

4 Any corporate complaint which has been investigated and responded to within 10 working days. Any Statutory Social Service Complaint where an investigation has been undertaken and a
response has been sent within the allocated time period. This initially would be 25 working days, or up to 3 months with the complainant’s consent
® These are any complaints logged which fall under the Statutory Social Services Complaints Procedure

Page 5 of 24




4. Summary of complaints

e The Authority investigated and responded to 731 complaints during 2016/17, compared to
501 during the same period for 2015/16.

e The increase in the number of complaints received is largely attributable to a spike in
complaints regarding refuse collection, following the rationalisation of routes.

e Overall, 60% of cases received a response within the allocated time period, compared to
62% for the same period last year.

Department Total No. of complaints received

Chief Executive’s Department 14
Education & Children’s Services (excl Statutory 53
Complaints)

Corporate Services 24
Communities (excluding Statutory Complaints) 119
Environment 458
Cross Departmental 11
Statutory complaints for Children Services, Adult Social 59
Services and Mental Health and Learning Disabilities

Total 731

Tudalen 274 Page 6 of 24



500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

50

**Comparisons are approximations only due to departmental reorganisations**

Number of Complaints investigated & responded to
during 2016/17 compared to 2015/16

458

Chief Executive’s
Department

Education &
Children’s
Services (excl
Statutory
Complaints)

Corporate
Services

W 2015/16

Communities
(excluding
Statutory

Complaints)

W 2016/17

Environment

Cross
Departmental

Statutory
complaints for
Children Services,
Adult Social
Services and
Mental Health
and Learning
Disabilities

Tudalen 275



Complaints by Department 2016/17

\

m Chief Executive’s m Education & Children’s Services (Corp Complaints)
m Corporate Services m Communities (Corp Complaints)
m Environment = Cross Departmental

m Statutory complaints

5. Redirected Communication

The Complaints Team also addressed a further 586 “Redirects” — enquiries and requests for
assistance which offered the team the opportunity to try and rectify difficulties before complaints
arise. This figure would also include any dissatisfaction received regarding properly made Policy
decisions which would not be addressed by the formal Complaints Policy.

Department Total No of Redirected
communication received
Chief Executive’s Department 28
Education & Children’s Services 36
Corporate Services 13
Communities 175
Environment 300
Cross Departmental 26

Tudalen 276 Page 8 of 24



External Providers

Total

586

Tudplen 277



6. Complaints with any equalities or Welsh language issues

During 2016/17 we received five complaints which involved specific Welsh language
issues (Education & Children’s Services 1, Communities 2, and Environment 2)

7. Complaints determined by the Ombudsman

Ombudsman conclusion

Concluded
b Not Out of Referred
v Settled Discontinued | . . . .. back to Upheld
Ombudsman upheld jurisdiction Authorit
2016-17 ¥
Chief 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Executives
Education &
Children's 5 0 1 1 2 1 0
Services
Resources 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Communities 11 1 0 2 3 5 0
Environment 20 2 0 6 7 5 0
Cross
Departmental 1 0 0 0 0 1 0
Issues
Total 37 3 1 9 12 12 0
Tudalen 278

10 of 24




8.

All Departments Compliments

Service No. of compliments received
Chief Executives 52
Education & Children's Services 36
Corporate Services 2
Communities 235
Environment 183
Cross Departmental Issues 7
Total 515

250

200

150

100

50

The Authority received 515 compliments during 2016/17, compared to 542 for

2015/16.

**Comparisons are approximations only due to departmental reorganisations**

Number of compliments received during 2016/17

compared to 2015/16
235
215 210
183
79
52
29 36
_ [ L
I I
Chief Executives  Education & Corporate Communities Environment Cross
Children's Services Departmental
Services Issues
W 2015/16 02016/17
Tudalen 279

11 of 24



9. Departmental Complaint & Compliment Analysis
9.1 Chief Executive

Complaints Regeneration and People Management Administration IT
Policy and Performance and Law

Stage 1 12 0 1 0

Complaints

Investigated

Upheld 6 50% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Partially Upheld 4 33% 0 0% 1 100% 0 0%

Not Upheld 2 17% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Stage 2 1 0 0 0

Complaints

investigated

Upheld 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Partially Upheld 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Not Upheld 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Analysis of the nature of complaints and the trends

Registrars received two complaints that were upheld. One related to a delay in acknowledging and
addressing a request for a death certificate for family history purposes and the other concerned the
manner of a member of staff during a telephone call. Both situations were reviewed and apologies
given.

A complaint was partially upheld for the Administration and Law section. It was acknowledged that a
conversation could have been handled more effectively.

Two complaints were partially upheld for Customer Services. Apologies were issued to a complainant
who felt customer care was lacking and to a complainant who had concerns with the newly introduced
appointment system. They were reassured that staff receive ongoing training on such matters and that
improvements were planned. One complaint was upheld regarding the advice given surrounding a
Council Tax enquiry. The Council Tax team advised that they would review the case and offer any
additional guidance / training that may be required to their Customer Service Centre colleagues.

Two complaints regarding the Contact Centre were upheld. An apology was given after the agent
misinformed the caller regarding the details of an imminent visit from a Building Inspector. A new
appointment was arranged for the tenant as soon as possible. An apology was also given to a
complainant who was concerned with the manner of an agent during a telephone call. One complaint
regarding the Contact Centre was partially upheld. The complainant felt that the call handler was not as
helpful as they could have been.

One complaint regarding the conduct of Carmarthen Market security staff was upheld. An apology was
given and the matter discussed with those involved. A complaint made regarding the tender of sale of
property was partially upheld. The Investigating Officer met the complainant and discussed the
concerns.

Compliments Regeneration and Policy IT
Compliments received 50 2
Tudalen 280

12 of 24



Analysis of the trends:

Registrars received 11 compliments about the way in which they conducted wedding ceremonies

“...you made the ceremony so special...you made everything so personal”, “what an absolute pleasure

it was to have you there... You really did make the most important part of our day very, very special”

The “excellent work” of the Electoral Services Manager and her team was commented upon by a
candidate -“Always well briefed, courteous & professional... The process was conducted very
efficiently”

The Complaints Team were thanked for assistance given to members of the public “Thanks for your
time, | really appreciated you looking into this for me”, “Thank you so much. That is very helpful, “I
greatly appreciate your effort”

The Communications Team were complimented for work carried out on the Discover
Carmarthenshire Website “congratulate your department on changing the system for the better”

Compliments were received in relation to the manner of the staff working in the Customer Service
Centres. “very professional, compassionate & helpful in dealing with my enquiry, excellent service”, “I
felt that she gave me the time to deal with the query properly instead of fobbing me off”, “He has a

lovely manner and is a very helpful young man, a credit to Carmarthenshire County Council”

Contact Centre staff were also complimented on the way they addressed matters for the public.
“Excellent Customer Service”, “prompt action by Contact Centre agent”, “He has a lovely manner and
is a very helpful young man, a credit to Carmarthenshire County Council”, “He was very patient and

helpful on the phone by”

IT received a compliment for the support they provided during the election process
“Give them a pat on the back for their efforts before and during the Election process”

Tudalen 281

13 of 24




9.2 Education and Children Services including Statutory Complaints

Procedure (Covering Children Services)

Children’s Services Education Services Strategic Development
Stage 1 Complaints 2 32
Investigated
Upheld 4 19% 29% 24 75%
Partially Upheld 24% 14% 9%
Not Upheld 12 57% 57% 16%
Stage 2 Complaints )
Investigated
Upheld 0 0% 0% 0 0%
Partially Upheld 0 0% 100% 0 0%
Not Upheld 2 100% 0% 0 0%

Analysis of the nature of complaints and the trends

Children’s Services

Of the 21 complaints received by Children’s Services, 4 were upheld. Issues related to the accuracy of
an assessments, disclosure of information in court documentation and the support provided to a child
at a Youth Club. Apologies were issued and cases reviewed and appropriate actions taken.

5 complaints were partially upheld. Issues related to the way assessments were carried out, the way
invoices for supported lodgings were addressed, concerns around putting an emergency plan in place
for a family and the way in which concerns were raised with the Duty team. Apologies were given
where appropriate. Concerns were discussed with those involved, ensuring outstanding issues were
addressed and recommendations considered.

Education Services

2 complaints were upheld. These related to a parent not being aware that their child was being
taught through the medium of Welsh and an administration error with school meals payments. Action
was taken to rectify errors as soon as possible.

1 complaint was partially upheld. It related to the way concerns with security lighting, which was
considered as a nuisance, had been addressed.

Strategic Development

Of the 32 complaints received by Strategic Development, 24 were upheld. They related to problems
communicating with the School Admissions team. The team acknowledged difficulties managing
contact from parents. The Team manager reviewed the cases raised as complaints and ensured that
personal contact was made with the parents to explain process and apologise for communication
difficulties.

Tudalen 282

14 of 24


file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/cevans/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/2333D33.xlsx%23RANGE!%23REF!
file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/cevans/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/2333D33.xlsx%23RANGE!%23REF!

3 complaints were partially upheld. They related to lack of contact from the Admissions team,
concerns with a Breakfast Club and the delivery of a child’s educational statement. Explanations and
apologies were offered where appropriate, along with any outstanding actions being completed.

Compliments Children’s Services Education Services Strategic Development

Compliments received 11 22 3

Analysis of the trends

Children’s Services

‘I’'m thankful for your understanding, kindness, patience & love for your work. Keep making a
difference’

‘You have been my rock in my darkest hour. With your dedication & right intervention she has
strived....” - Children with Disabilities

“Thank you for everything you have done for our family’- Children with Disabilities
“Today is definitely a day when you can go home knowing you are really making a difference”

"....was straight, she knew exactly where she stood, and this made her feel a lot less stressed’ —
Support from Social Worker
Education Services
“Thanks for hard work ensuring that a Head teacher is in place for September”
“Your presence obviously added much professionalism and integrity to the process”

“Thank you ever so much for your help once again - very much appreciated” (History Curriculum
Information)

“Gair byr i ddiolch o galon i ti am dy gymorth a'th amynedd heddi - mae'n cael ei werthfawrogi”

Strategic Development
“Thanks for your presentation earlier. Very valuable for the school”
“I just wanted to say a huge thank you for your help yesterday”

“Thank you very much, appreciated. You've been brilliant, given all the help | needed, thanks again” -
School Admissions

Tudalen 283

15 of 24




9.3 Corporate Services

Complaints Financial Services Audit and Risk Management
e o 2 :

Upheld 3 13% 0 0%
Partially Upheld 4 17% 0 0%
Not Upheld 17 70% 0 0%
Stage 2 Complaints 0

Investigated

Upheld 0 0% 0 0%
Partially Upheld 0 0% 0 0%
Not Upheld 0 0% 0 0%

Analysis of the nature of complaints and the trends

24 Stage 1 complaints were received regarding Financial Services.

Ten complaints related to Council Tax. One complaint, relating to a delay in processing a Council Tax
refund, was upheld with an apology being provided. It was a busy time of year, which meant payment
took longer than usual. Two complaints were partially upheld. One related to recovery action
continuing for a payment which had been partially made and one concerned the information and
forms supplied by the team.

14 complaints were received regarding Benefits, 2 of which were upheld. They related to incorrect
documents being sent out. Apologies were provided and improvements are being made to processes
to ensure it doesn’t happen again. 2 complaints were partially upheld. One concerned not being
advised of how to claim costs for removals when moving house and the other related to an error when
processing a change of circumstances.

Compliments . . .
p Fmanual Services

Compliments received per division 2

Analysis of the trends:

e  “Having good people working for you is a tremendous support - 1'd class her as one of the best!”"—
praise given to Financial Services for the support provided when setting up Shop Mobility

e “..he had an excellent manner. | had a query about my council tax and he went above and beyond
to help me. | think he deserves to be praised and recognised for his customer service skills”

Tudalen 284

16 of 24



9.4 Communities Department including Statutory Complaints
Procedure (Covering Adult Social Care, MHLD)

Complaints Cross Primary, Mental Health Public Housing Leisure

Divisional | Community & & Learning Protection

Social Care Disabilities

Stage 1
Complaints 1 37 9 5 54 35
Investigated
Upheld 0 0% 9 24% 2 22% 1 20% 11 | 20% | 16 | 46%
Partially 0 0% 19 52% 3 33% 2 40% 18 | 34% 8 23%
Upheld
Not Upheld 1 100% 9 24% 4 45% 2 40% | 25 | 46% | 11 | 31%
Stage 2
Complaints 0 6 2 3 6 2
investigated
Upheld 0 0% 3 50% 1 50% 1 33% 0 0% 1 50%
Partially 0 0% 2 33% 1 50% 0 0% 2 33% 0 0%
Upheld
Not Upheld 0 0% 1 17% 0 0% 2 67% 4 67% 1 50%

Analysis of the nature of complaints and the trends

Primary, Community and Social Care

Nine Stage 1 complaints were upheld. The Blue Badge Team offered a sincere apology to the family of
an individual who had passed away after a Blue Badge renewal pack was sent out in error. An applicant
was also unhappy with a delay in receiving their Blue Badge. Concerns were raised by a mother
regarding assistance to care for her children. She was thanked for highlighting where planning and
dialogue between Adults and Children’s Services could be strengthened. An apology was issued to a
service user for the use of an incorrect name in records and for not being fully updated with the
outcome of the assessment. Three of the upheld complaints related to the services provided by
external care providers, such as a cancelled call and the way in which gloves were discarded. Two
complaints against Careline were also upheld. They related to difficulty getting through on a Saturday
to report flooding. An apology was given, as well as assurances that staffing levels would be reviewed,
where possible, as times of inclement weather. The other concerned being accidentally cut off after
waiting some time to get through to an agent.

Nineteen Stage 1 and two Stage 2 complaints were partially upheld. Concerns included the availability
of respite care, a delay in carrying out an assessment, the a delay in addressing a Blue Badge
application, the continuity of carers attending calls, being unhappy with way care was provided in a
care home, the level of support provided to assist with the hospital discharge process, outstanding
gueries regarding financial assessments, level of communication between Social Worker and client’s
family and poor time keeping from carers.

Three Stage 2 complaints were upheld. One concerned the care received by a gentleman whilst in
residential care. The two other complaints that were upheld related to the care and support provided
by an external care provider. Alternative care providers have now been found for the clients
concerned.

Mental Health and Learning Disabilities
The two Stage 1 complaints that were upheld related to the Transition Team. The first concerned

Tudalen 285

17 of 24



file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/cevans/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/2333D33.xlsx%23RANGE!%23REF!
file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/cevans/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/2333D33.xlsx%23RANGE!%23REF!

general contact and advice given by the team. The second complaint raised concerns with a telephone
conversation with a Social Worker. Apologies was provided and concerns were discussed with those
involved. The 3 that were partially upheld concerned the way a Social Worker arranged a homecare
package and the way the Transitions Team addressed and communicated on 2 specific cases.

The Stage 2 complaint that was upheld concerned an assessment carried out by the Transitions Team.
The partially upheld Stage 2 addressed the need to find more suitable accommodation for a lady with
mental health needs.

Public Protection

Two partially upheld complaints were recorded. One related to waste which had been left in a rear
lane. Unfortunately, there was a failure with internal communication, meaning that there was a delay
in clearing the waste. Concerns were also raised regarding an individual’s honours not being displayed
correctly on correspondence. This software glitch was resolved and an apology was issued. An apology
was also issued regarding a Stage 1 complaint which was upheld. It was found that communication
around a water contamination issue could have been better than it was.

The Stage 2 complaint that was upheld concerned a privately owned septic tank. It was acknowledged
that, with hindsight, the matter could have been dealt with differently, which may have brought the
matter to a conclusion more swiftly.

Housing

There were six complaints recorded at Stage 2. Of these, two were partially upheld, one due to a delay
in communication between the department and the complainant and the other because of an error
recording a name. The remaining four were not upheld.

54 Complaints were recorded at Stage 1, with 11 found to be upheld. Issues highlighted included
concerns around communication between relevant teams and tenants, some outstanding issues
following Disabled Facilities Grant works and the lack of bilingual signage at a sheltered housing were
the concerns raised.

18 complaints were recorded as partially upheld. Issues included delays in issuing a bond payment,
arranging for litter to be cleared and for an officer to contact an individual. A number of complaints
involved elements of concern with communication, for example, failure to acknowledge a piece of
correspondence or tenants not fully understanding advice that has been provided.

Leisure

Two Stage 2 complaints were received, both in relation to Pembrey Country Park. A concern as to the
booking procedures for the onsite camping facilities was upheld. The additional complaint was not
upheld.

16 of the 35 Stage 1 complaints were recorded as upheld and 8 were classed as partially upheld.
Concerns included a delay in issuing a refund, Direct Debits not being cancelled, the management of
meeting rooms and levels of heating in leisure centres, lack of refreshment facilities in Pembrey
Country Park during a period of hot weather, a light which had been out of order in a library for some
time and the Museum of Speed having to close because of staff shortages.

Comoliments Primary, Community Mental Health & Cross Public Housin Leisure

P & Social Care Learning Disabilities | Divisional | Protection &
Compliments 89 9 3 16 43 75
received

Analysis of the trends

Primary, Community and Social Care

“Thank you for all the care, attention, help and encouragement... you built up my confidence...thanks
for your patience and support” — convalescence beds

Tudalen 286

18 of 24



“My Uncle was very pleased with the care team that your arranged to come in to help him” — Social
Work Team

Thanks were received for the recent help provided by Careline when a lady fell. She appreciated how
quickly help was arranged.

“You restored her faith in her power to recover - as a family, we are so grateful” — convalescence beds
“Carers were outstanding - excellent and he is sincerely grateful to them” — internal carers

“I wouldn't have been able to care for my mother without their care, compassion, company and
humour” — internal carers

“Everyone could not believe how much | had improved...this was due to the nursing & good food” - CCC
Residential Care

“superb service... thanks for supplying the form so quickly, checking the progress and confirming the
application was successful” — Blue Badge Team

Mental Health & Learning Disabilities
“Please compliment the Staff at Llys Arthur...for the Care and diligence in support’

“He has helped me so much...kind, supportive & very understanding. Thanks for all that you do” —
Substance Misuse team

“Without your help | would be dead, | just can’t say thank you enough”- Substance Misuse team

“Thanks to everyone who has helped my daughter over the years. Words are not enough, a million
thank you’s” — Social Work Team

Cross Divisional
“It serves as a wonderful model of how life should be. Never been to a place so well thought out!” -
Coleshill Centre Very Well Designed For Disabled

Public Protection

“The report is well-structured, comprehensive & an example of best practice” — Welsh Government
feedback on Local Air Quality Management Progress Report

“I am very grateful for your intervention” — assistance provided with noise pollution matter

“You handled it in such a supportive manner. The way you handled the problem was so kind &
supportive” — assistance provided by EHO regarding a build-up of waste at a property

“It is comforting to know that the council takes its responsibilities regarding animal welfare so
seriously and that such professional and dedicated staff work for the service” — Dog Warden Service

Housing
‘Just wanted to thank you for your help in the beginning and for getting Gwalia Care to contact me’ —
Housing Officer

‘Her attitude and pro-active work ethos was fantastic — Homelessness Officer’s support to a prison
leaver.

“..a massive thank you....the work that they have done for me it has changed my life to a standard that
I can fend for myself... My occupational therapist has been unbelievable with me and without her none
of this would have been possible” — Housing Adaptations Team

‘I felt you have treated me fairly, with kindness and respect’ - Housing Options

“They were really impressed by how efficient and considerate you had been and they both said how
much of a gentleman you were when dealing with their cases” — assistance provided by Housing Officer

Tudalen 287

19 of 24




‘Many thanks to you and the team for acting so swiftly to help re-house the family’ — Housing Options

“Over the past few months there has been a noticeable improvement in the general appearance of the
estates and | am grateful for this” — thanks from the local Councillor

‘Over the moon that we have helped with prevention fund and am grateful for all the Council’s help’ —
Housing Options

Leisure
Great customer service, helpful staff, excellent facilities and lovely coffee’- Llanelli Leisure Centre

‘What a wonderful day we had in Wales, one of the highlights of our 3 week tour’ — South African
touring party’s visit to Laugharne, and the Boathouse.

“The collection is informative and interesting” — Museum of Speed

“Great way to bridge gap between Primary & Secondary, as well as keeping children active - good
work!” - Hockey Club At Bryngwyn Secondary School

“Been coming here for 10 years, improves every year” — Pembrey Country Park

“The process of enrolment was done speedily, so impressed us with her enthusiasm and helpfulness” —
Library Assistant

Tudalen 288

20 of 24



9.5 Environment

Complaints Planning Street Scene Property Transport & Cross
Services Engineering Divisional
Stage 1 Complaints
Investigated 21 327 63 34 1
Upheld 2 | 10% | 197 | 60% 25 40% 8 24% | o | 0%
Partially Upheld 7 | 33% | 64 | 20% 21 33% 4 12% | 0 | 0%
Not Upheld 12 | 57% | 66 | 20% | 17 | 27% | 22 | 64% | 1 130
(0]
Stage Z Complaints 7 ) 1 3 0
Investigated
Upheld 0 0% 1 50% 0 0% 0 0% o | 0%
Partially Upheld 5 | 71% 0 0% 1 100% 1 33% | 0o | 0%
Not Upheld 2 | 29% 1 50% 0 0% 2 67% | o | 0%

Analysis of the trends

Planning

2 Stage 1 complaints were upheld. They both related to issues with correspondence / communication.
Three of the Stage 1 complaints that were partially upheld related to the same matter — enforcement
issues relating to agricultural buildings. Other issues raised related to the handling of an urgent

enforcement enquiry, concerns with planning applications and a conservation matter.

5 of the Stage 2 complaints were partially upheld. They included issues such as action taken over a
high hedge, concerns with the way a planning application relating to a quarry were publicised and the
way documentation was made available during the planning application process.

Street Scene

Highways — The Highways section received 23 Stage 1 complaints in total. The 4 complaints that were
upheld concerned cut grass blowing onto a car whilst strimming took place, inadequate signage

regarding the expected length of time of roadworks, a delay in addressing water ponding and

outstanding concerns regarding draining / kerbs. Apologies were issued and required action arranged.
Of the 7 complaints that were partially upheld, concerns included issues with blocked drains on the
highway, surface water drainage, untidy grass cutting, not receiving a response to a letter and
concerns regarding the safety of a piece of fencing.

Refuse, Recycling & Cleansing — 293 complaints were received. Of these complaints, 191 were upheld
and 55 were partially upheld. They related to a variety of things, such as not clearing spills to advice
regarding tyre recycling. However, the majority of complaints related to the implementation of new
collection routes in the autumn. Complaints raised concerns around continued missed collections and
uncertainty regarding their collection days while the new routes were introduced.

Street Scene — Remaining Complaints

The rest of Street Scene received 13 complaints. The 3 that were upheld related to the cleanliness of
toilet facilities and a Health and Safety concern at Trostre civic amenity site. Apologies were provided
and concerns were addressed with appropriate agencies. A slight delay occurred in addressing an

Tudalen 289

21 of 24




abandoned car and also in dealing with concerns raised about lighting which was too bright.
Explanations were provided and necessary work chased up.

Property Services

Property Services received 63 Stage 1 complaints, 25 of which were upheld. 21 of these complaints
were partially upheld. The issues raised included problems with communication, the illegal parking of
council vehicles, the actions of scaffolders acting on our behalf, mess being left behind after grass
cutting and delays in carrying out works.

The Stage 2 complaint received was found to be partially upheld. This related to the removal of a
chimney at a property.

Transport and Engineering

Of the 34 Stage 1 complaints received, 8 were upheld. These related to the allocation of an addition
residents parking permit, a parking ticket not being finalised despite payment having been received,
correspondence to Parking Services not being responded to, a delay in addressing a parking ticket
appeal, concerns around the creation of a parking space from a turning area and disruption caused by
temporary lighting used by contractors. Apologies and remedial action was taken where appropriate.
4 Stage 1 complaints were partially upheld, they concerned the challenge to a parking fine, a vehicle
parked in a disabled bay in staff carpark without a blue badge, a misunderstanding about parking
arrangements and delays installing signage. Explanations and apologies were issued where
appropriate, with any outstanding work addressed as soon as possible.

A Stage 2 complaint was partially upheld on a minor point. The complaint related to the introduction
of traffic calming measures in Alltwalis.

P T
Compliments Planning Street Scene rop.erty rar.lspor.t & (.:r'o..c,s
Services Engineering Division
Compliments 18 89 23 51 2
received per division

Analysis of the trends

Planning

“Thank you for keeping me informed throughout. | am very grateful to you” — Enforcement
“Thank you for this impressively complete, comprehensive and timely response”

“Thank you so much for such an efficient service- very impressive!” — Building Control
‘Thank you for the professional way you gave information about the planning application’
‘Thank you for the very fast response to our request’ — In relation to a planning enquiry.

“Both officers were 'very helpful & very flexible....Overall, a very professional service!”— Building
Control

Street Scene
Highways
‘Thank the driver of the lorry for cleaning this street of mud and stones has done a fantastic job'

'Thank you and the team who carried out the repairs. The work was done to a very high standard' —

highway repairs

Tudalen 290

22 of 24



“Many thanks for the sterling work you have done regarding this - | really appreciate your efforts”
'Many thanks to all involved, the repair is greatly appreciated by the residents' — bus shelter repair
‘I am grateful for the swift attention to the pothole, only reported two days ago’

‘Team extremely helpful & obviously knowledgeable in this area, and of the work required’- Blocked
gulley

Refuse, Recycling & Cleansing
“..Helped with mess after bird broke bags. | really appreciated their help, they went out of their way”

“On many of occasion | have noticed how courteous, helpful and polite they have been” — Llanelli
Refuse Crew

“Thank you for assistance with arranging assisted lift - acted so promptly in assisting myself & my
wife”

“Compliment the team that had been out as they did an exceptional job” — Cleansing Team
“Quick response to the phone call as the refuse had been missed. Excellent service'

Street Scene — Remaining Compliments

“Say a big thank you to the street lighting department as they have done a great job”

“Thanks for your speedy response to my complaint, what an excellent service”- Environmental
Enforcement’s handling of dog fouling concerns

“He was SO helpful & genuinely concerned”- assistance given by cleaner of toilet with lost property

query

Property Services

“He was very quick & clean. I'm satisfied with the job he did. Would like to thank him for a good job”
“Please pass on my profound thanks to the carpenter who has made an excellent job”

‘They were wonderful. | can only praise the Council’ — Roofers’ prompt response in bad weather.
“He is a professional young man who you should be proud to have in your team”- Building Inspector

“All workmen have been considerate and friendly whilst doing the work” — Tenants new roof
Transport and Engineering
“..prompt and effective actions in ensuring the safety of the public following damage to lights”

“A million thanks for all your support and guidance.... | have really enjoyed working with you and your
input has helped the Council to make significant progress in the interests of our local communities”
Community Clerk thanking Road Safety & Traffic Manager

“Installation of the two bollards has made the area around the ditch much safer. Thank you”
“Thank you for all your great work with our children' — Kerbcraft Team
“Confident that the Road Safety Works will contribute greatly to the safety of pedestrians”

‘Skills learnt during the Dragon Rider Course will lead to safer, and increased riding pleasure’

Tudalen 291

23 of 24




9.6 Cross Departmental

Complaints Cross Departmental

Stage 1 Complaints Investigated 10

Upheld 0 0%
Partially Upheld 2 20%
Not Upheld 8 80%
Stage 2 Complaints investigated 1

Upheld 0 0%
Partially Upheld 0 0%
Not Upheld 1 100%

Analysis of the nature of complaints and the trends

None of the Cross Departmental complaints were upheld.

Two Stage 1 complaints were partially upheld. One concerned various issues, including rent payments,
Housing Benefit and Council Tax. It was resolved following a full investigation and meeting to discuss
the concerns. The second related to concerns raised with the Complaints Team regarding a Property
Services matter. An apology was given for any misunderstanding regarding the complainant’s intention
with the communication and arrangements were made to complete outstanding jobs.

Compliments 7

Analysis of the trends

e The Freedom of Information, HR & Accountancy teams were praised for the work carried out on a
request for data - “Comprehensive & detailed response to our request - it is very gratefully received”

e “Thanks for support given by Museum Service & Grounds Staff - very helpful” - Parc Howard Summer
Family Event

e “Enthusiastic assistance given - staff could not have been more helpful with the preparations -
Queen's 90th Birthday Celebrations

e Thanks were passed on to a Housing Officer & Building Inspector for their “Courteous
manner....constructive efforts to help us whilst adhering to council policies & rules”

e “He really cared about the work done” — Officers from Housing Services & Property Services were
thanked for addressing problems with a property.

e The Contact Centre and Refuse Crew were thanked for addressing an outstanding waste collection
quickly.

e “A great deal of work has obviously been involved in its research and compilation” — The work of the
Freedom of Information & Animal Health Teams was acknowledged

Tudalen 292

24 of 24



Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

15FED MEDI 2017

Eitem Rhif 11

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD G SQUIRES

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Ystyried y cais a phenderfynu arno

Y rhesymau:

Mae'r testun dan sylw yn yr adroddiad hwn yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y

Pwyllgor

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y

Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:

Y Prif Weithredwr

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees-Jones

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swyddi:

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r
Gyfraith

Rheolwr Dros Dro y
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol

Rhifau ffén:
01267 224018
Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Q, ===\
oy g
Uty Con®®

Carmarthenshire

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 293



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNCILLOR G SQUIRES

An application for dispensation to speak and vote and make written representations in
respect of applications for financial assistance by the Ferryside OAP Club and St.
Ishmael’s United Parish has been received from Councillor G Squires of St. Ishmaels
Community Council. (Copy attached)

Councillor Squires has a personal interest in these matters by virtue of paragraph 10(2)
(@) (ix) (ee) in that the business in question will relate to a private club, society or
association operating in the authority’s area in which she is a member.

These interests are prejudicial as a member of the public with knowledge of the facts
would reasonably regard those interests as so significant as to be likely to influence the
Councillor's judgement of the public interest.

Councillor Squire’s application is based on the following grounds in the Standards
Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001,

1. Paragraph (d) that her participation will not damage public confidence.
2. Paragraph (e) that the interest is common to her and a significant proportion of the
public.

3. Paragraph (f) that her participation is justified by her particular role or expertise

4. Paragraph (g) the business is to be considered by an overview or scrutiny
committee

5. Paragraph (h) the business relates to the finances of a voluntary organisation of
whose management she is a member and she has no other interest

Of these grounds, paragraphs (e) and (g) do not apply in this case, whilst paragraph
(h) would only allow Councillor Squires to speak (but not vote or make written
representations) on these matters.

If the committee is minded to grant a dispensation, it has an absolute discretion as to
duration. It may wish to grant the dispensation until one of its scheduled meetings,
some other date or until the Councillor’s term of office comes to an end.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 294



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“ty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 295



CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 296



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-154

Legal Services, County Hall

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(ot
Ol'l](y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 297




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPLICATION TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE g
FOR DISPENSATION
Please note that each section MUST be completed. Please refer to the attached
Guidance Notes when completing the form.

1. YOUR DETAILS ]
Your full name:- Mrs Gloria Jean Squires 172JuL 2017
PRIZ WETHREDWR

Name of your Council:- St Ishmaels Community Council

Your address and postcode:- 2 Brynhyfryd Ferryside Carms SA175RS

Contact telephone number(s):- 01267267477

Email address:- gloria.squires@btinternet.com

2. DETAILS OF YOUR INTEREST

What is the matter under consideration?

Possible application for financial assistance from Ferryside OAP Club
And also from the Council of St Ishmael’s United Parish

What is your interest in the above matter?

I am the Secretary of the OAP Club
I am a Parish Warden with St Ishmael’s United Parish

When will the above matter be considered?

At any time during the course of the Council on which I serve.

Are you applying for dispensation to:

Speak only: ] Speak and vote: [/
Make written Exercise Executive
Representations Powers []

(I’m not sure if I should tick the box with written representation as I am the Secretary of
the OAP Club)

Tudalen 299



3. GROUNDS FOR DISPENSATION

Regulations issued by the National Assembly for Wales prescribe the circumstances in
which the Standards Committee may grant a dispensation. These grounds for granting a
dispensation are summarised below and are set out in full in the attached guidance notes.
On which of the following grounds do you believe that a dispensation should be granted in
this case? Please tick the appropriate box(es).

«__at least half of the members considering the business has an interest O

- my inability to participate would upset the political balance of the meeting to U
such an extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected;

« _my participation would not damage public confidence S

- the interest is common to me and a significant proportion of the general %
public;

« my participation in the business is justified by my particular role or M
expertise;

- the business is to be considered by an overview and scrutiny committee and 4
my interest is not a pecuniary interest; '

« the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of ™
whose management committee or board I am a member and I have no other
interest

« it is appropriate to do so in all the circumstances where not otherwise
possible to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate a person’s
disability

4. INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF YOUR APPLICATION

O

Please set out below the reasons why you consider that the Standards Committee should
grant a dispensation in this case:

(Please note that failure to complete this section will result in the application form being
returned to you)

FERRYSIDE OAP CLUB

I am the Secretary of Ferryside OAP Club whose present membership is 90 + between the
ages of 55 and 97 in our Community, I feel that should the need arise I would be able to
give any information that the Council would require when making any decisions regarding
any representations the Club would make.

PARISH WARDEN
As a Parish Warden I would be able answer any questions that the Council may have

should the Church Council make any representations to the Community Council

(please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)
I confirm that the information provided on this form is true to the best of my knowledge. 1
agree that this application and all the information contained within it may form part of a
public report to the Standards Committee. I request a dispensation in respect of the above
matter.

signed: LA T Bepires Dete: __1he(©7 12017

Please return this form to the Monitoring Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Carmarthenshire
County Council, County Hall, Carmarthen, SA31 1JP.

Tudalen 300




Eitem Rhif 12

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU
15FED MEDI 2017

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORWYR GARETH THOMAS,
JEAN LEWIS, KEN HOWELL, TYSSUL EVANS, MANSEL
CHARLES, EIRWYN WILLIAMS AC ANN DAVIES

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Ystyried y cais a phenderfynu arno

Y rhesymau:
Mae'r testun dan sylw yn yr adroddiad hwn yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y

Pwyllgor

Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Ddim yn berthnasol

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Y Prif Weithredwr

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: | Swyddi:

Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r | Rhifau ffon:
_ Gyfraith
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Cyfeiriadau E-bost:
Rheolwr Dros Dro y _
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
N

Carmarthenshire A ]
&, =224 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 301



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
15" SEPTEMBER 2017

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNCILLORS
GARETH THOMAS, JEAN LEWIS, KEN HOWELL, TYSSUL
EVANS, MANSEL CHARLES, EIRWYN WILLIAMS AND ANN
DAVIES

An application for dispensation to speak and make written representations in respect of any
council business relating to or likely to affect farming and agriculture has been received from
the above County Councillors.

The Councillors potentially have a personal interest in such business by virtue of paragraphs
10(2) (a)(i), 10(2)(a)(iv), 10(2)(b)(i) and 10(2)(b)(ii) of the members code of conduct in that
they are all either actively engaged in farming in the County, own farm land which is actively
farmed by others or have close personal associates who are actively engaged in farming.

Those interests should also be considered prejudicial member of the public with knowledge of
the relevant facts would reasonably regard the interests as so significant that they would be
likely to prejudice the councillors’ judgement of the public interest.

The application is made on 2 grounds set out in the Standards Committees (Grant of
Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001 namely;

1. The Councillors participation in such matters would not damage public confidence in
the conduct of the Council’s business
2. That their participation is justified by their particular expertise

Councillors Gareth Thomas and Jean Lewis have previously been granted dispensations in
respect of these matters, which expired at the end of their previous term of office.

If the committee is minded to approve the application they have absolute discretion as to the
duration of any dispensation granted.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 302



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“ty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 303



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration and Law

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 304



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-154

Legal Services, County Hall

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(ot
Ol'l](y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 305




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPLICATION TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
FOR DISPENSATION
Please note that each section MUST be completed. Please refer to the attached
Guidance Notes when completing the form.

1. YOUR DETAILS

Your full name:

GARETH THOMAS
JEAN LEWIS

KEN HOWELL
TYSSUL EVANS
MANSEL CHARLES
EIRWYN WILLIAMS
ANN DAVIES

Name of your Council: CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Your address and postcode: c/o County Hall, Carmarthen, SA31 1JP

Contact telephone number(s):

Email address:

2. DETAILS OF YOUR INTEREST

What is the matter under consideration?

Any matter relating to or likely to affect farms or farming in the County of Carmarthenshire

What is your interest in the above matter?

The applicants are either;
1. Working farmers
2. Close personal associates of working farmers or
3. Owners of working farm land

In the County of Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 307

Page 1 of 6



When will the above matter be considered?

At any time during the councillors current term of office

Are you applying for dispensation to:

Speak only: X|:| Speak and vote: D
Make written Exercise Executive
Representations X|:| Powers D

3. GROUNDS FOR DISPENSATION

Regulations issued by the National Assembly for Wales prescribe the circumstances in which
the Standards Committee may grant a dispensation. These grounds for granting a dispensation
are summarised below and are set out in full in the attached guidance notes. On which of the
following grounds do you believe that a dispensation should be granted in this case? Please tick
the appropriate box(es).

. at least half of the members considering the business has an interest

. my inability to participate would upset the political balance of the meeting to such an
extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected:;

« my participation would not damage public confidence

« My participation in the business is justified by my particular role or expertise;

. the business is to be considered by an overview and scrutiny committee and my
interest is not a pecuniary interest;

. the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of whose
management committee or board | am a member and | have no other interest

[]
[]
x[]
. the interest is common to me and a significant proportion of the general public; ]
x[]
[]
[]
[]

. itis appropriate to do so in all the circumstances where not otherwise possible to
make reasonable adjustments to accommodate a person’s disability

Tudalen 308

Page 2 of 6



4. INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF YOUR APPLICATION

Please set out below the reasons why you consider that the Standards Committee should
grant a dispensation in this case:

(Please note that failure to complete this section will result in the application form being
returned to you)

The County Councillors making this application all have considerable direct knowledge and
experience of the issues affecting farming and those working in the industry. They have
experience in both dairy and non-dairy farming and represent constituencies all across
Carmarthenshire.

Agriculture makes up an important part of the economy of the County and members of the
public working in the industry, or whose families are directly connected with the industry, make
up a significant part of the population of many parts of Carmarthenshire.

Many of the functions of the Council relate to or directly affect the farming industry. Decisions
taken by elected members relating to farming matters can have a significant impact not just
upon individual farms, but also upon the wider agricultural sector and the communities that they
are a key part of.

If Councillors who have a personal and prejudicial interest in farming related decisions are
unable to speak, not only would farming communities in the County be denied democratic
representation when such decisions are made but also those Councillors who do not have such
an interest would be denied the benefit of their expert knowledge.

Public confidence in the conduct of the Council’s business would not be damaged by allowing
these Councillors to speak in any debate or make written representations on farming related
matters.

Tudalen 309

Page 3 of 6




(please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)

Tudalen 310

Page 4 of 6




| confirm that the information provided on this form is true to the best of my knowledge. | agree
that this application and all the information contained within it may form part of a public report to
the Standards Committee. | request a dispensation in respect of the above matter.

Signed: Gareth Thomas

Signed: Jean Lewis

Signed: Ken Howell

Signed: Mansel Charles

Signed: Eirwyn Williams

Signed: Ann Davies

Signed: Tyssul Evans

Please return this form to the Monitoring Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Carmarthenshire County
Council, County Hall, Carmarthen, SA31 1JP.

Guidance notes
(1) Please read through the Code of Conduct and decide which of the paragraphs is most

appropriate to your case. Brief details of the relevant paragraphs are noted in the table
below. If you are unsure, please contact the Monitoring Officer for advice.

Para. Type of personal interest

10(2)(a) | Council business which relates to or is likely to affect:

your employment or business,

your employer, firm or company

a contract made between the Council and you

any land, lease or licence in which you have an interest

a public body or other association in which you have membership or
hold a position of general control or management

10(2)(c) : Council business which affects your well-being or financial position, or
the well-being, financial position or other interests of a person with whom
you live or have a close personal association

13 Council business which is being considered by an Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and which relates to a decision of the Cabinet or another
Committee of which you were a member at the time [County Council

only]

(2) The Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001 (as amended)
state that a Standards Committee may grant dispensations where:

(&) no fewer than half of the members of the relevant authority or of a committee of the
authority (as the case may be) by which the business is to be considered has an
interest which relates to that business;

Tudalen 311

Page 5 of 6



(b) no fewer than half of the members of a leader and cabinet executive of the relevant
authority by which the business is to be considered has an interest which relates to that
business and either paragraph (d) or (e) also applies;

(c) inthe case of a county or county borough council, the inability of the member to
participate would upset the political balance of the relevant authority or of the committee
of the authority by which the business is to be considered to such an extent that the
outcome would be likely to be affected,;

(d) the nature of the member's interest is such that the member's participation in the
business to which the interest relates would not damage public confidence in the
conduct of the relevant authority's business;

(e) the interest is common to the member and a significant proportion of the general public;

(f) the participation of the member in the business to which the interest relates is justified
by the member's particular role or expertise;

(g) the business to which the interest relates is to be considered by an overview and
scrutiny committee of the relevant authority and the member's interest is not a
pecuniary interest;

(h) the business which is to be considered relates to the finances or property of a voluntary
organisation of whose management committee or board the member is a member
otherwise than as a representative of the relevant authority and the member has no
other interest in that business provided that any dispensation shall not extend to
participation in any vote with respect to that business; or

(i) it appears to the committee to be in the interests of the inhabitants of the area of the
relevant authority that the disability should be removed provided that written notification
of the grant of the dispensation is given to the National Assembly for Wales within
seven days in such manner as it may specify.

() Itis considered appropriate in all the circumstances to do so where not

otherwise possible to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate a persons
disability

Tudalen 312

Page 6 of 6



	Agenda
	3 PENODI CADEIRYDD AC IS-GADEIRYDD
	4.1 1AF MEHEFIN, 2017
	4.2 9FED MEHEFIN, 2017
	5 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CYMRU 2016/2017
	Adroddiad
	Performance Report
	Ombudsman’s Review of the Year
	Who we are, what we do
	/The Complaints Service
	/
	Overall Casework Statistics
	Cases of Note
	Annual Sustainability Report
	Annual Equality Report
	Key Financial Data
	Accountability Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities
	Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
	Remuneration Report
	National Assembly for Wales Accountability and Audit Report
	Reconciliation of Net Resource to Net Cash Requirement
	The Certificate and Report of the Auditor General for Wales to the National Assembly for Wales
	An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includ...
	Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
	Statement of Financial Position
	Statement of Cash Flows
	Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Pensions Disclosures
	Annex A: Public Body
	Complaints closed – Statistical Breakdown by outcomes by public body
	Annex B: Code of Conduct Complaints closed – Statistical Breakdown by outcomes by local authority
	Annex C: Complaints About PSOW service

	Financial Statements
	Annexes


	6 COFLYFR CÔD YMDDYGIAD
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3

	7 HYFFORDDIANT YNGHYLCH Y CÔD YMDDYGIAD AR GYFER CYNGHORWYR SIR
	8 HYFFORDDIANT YNGHYLCH Y CÔD YMDDYGIAD AR GYFER CYNGHORWYR TREF A CHYMUNED
	9 PAPUR GWYN LLYWODRAETH CYMRU AR DDIWYGIO LLYWODRAETH LEOL
	Adroddiad

	10 CWYNION A CHANMOLIAETH
	Adroddiad

	11 CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD G SQUIRES
	Adroddiad

	12 CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORWYR GARETH THOMAS, JEAN LEWIS, KEN HOWELL, TYSSUL EVANS, MANSEL CHARLES, EIRWYN WILLIAMS AC ANN DAVIES
	Adroddiad




